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July 21-25 
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July 17-21 
July 16-20 
July 21-25 
July 20-24 
July 12-16 
July 18-22 
July 16-20 



Officers and Board Members 

General Officers 

Moderator . ... Assistant M d · t. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Ralph Hampton 
o era or . . . . . . . . c 1 Ch hi Cl rk . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ar es er 

As~ist~~t Cl~ · k · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Waldo Young 
r · · · · · · · · · · · K "th B d 

E 
· S · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · et ur en 

xecuhve ecretary-Treasurer M 1 · w h" · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . . e vm ort mgton 

General Board 

1992 
New Mexico: Earl Jenkins 
North Carolina: Tom Lilly 
Northeast Association: Jim Nason 
Northwest Association: Mike 

Criswell 
Ohio: Delmar Sparks 
Oklahoma: Jack Richey 
South Carolina: Joe Cagle 
Tennessee: Raymond Riggs 
Texas: Thurmon Murphy 
Virginia: Jeff Crabtree 
West Virginia: Carl Vallance 

1991 
Alabama: John Edwards 
Arizona: Paul Thompson 
Arkansas: David Joslin 
Atlantic Canada: Oral McAfee 
California: Doice McAlister 
Colorado: Bob Thomas 
Florida: Robert Owen 
Georgia: Herbert Waid 
Idaho: Tommie Carlson 
Illinois: Wallace Malone 
Indiana: Archie Ratliff 
Kansas: Steve Hendrix 
Kentucky: Tim York 
First Louisiana: Steve Trail 
Maryland: Lester Horton 
Mexico: Fred Jones 
Michigan: Charles Cooper 
Mississippi: J. L Gore 
Missouri: Dale Skiles 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

~rairman: Ralph Hampton, 5614 Meadowcrest Nashville TN 37209 
erk: Waldo Young, 1101 East Cammack, Sh~wnee, OK 74801 

1991 

Charles Cooper (Mich.) 
J. L Gore (Miss.) 
Bob Thomas (Colo.) 

1992 

Tom Lilly (N.C.) 
Jack Richey (Okla.) 
Carl Vallance (W.Va.) 
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Officers 

Ralph Hampton (Tenn.) 
Carl Cheshier (Ark.) 
Waldo Young (Okla.) 

BmLE COLLEGE TRUSTEES 

Chairman: Ken Walker, 2121 29th Street, Ashland, KY 41101 
President: Tom Malone, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 

1992 

Clarence Burton (Mo.) 
W. B. Hughes (N.C.) 
Douglas Little (Ark.) 

1994 

Ken Walker (Ky.) 
Bob Ketchum (Okla.) 
Howard Price (Ga.) 

1996 

Sam Truett (N.C.) 
Larry Montgomery (Fla.} 
J. M. Creech (Miss.) 

FOREIGN MISSIONS BOARD 

Chairman: Bill Jones, 2207 Carter Creek Parkway, Bryan, TX 77801 
Director: Eugene Waddell, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202 

1992 

Joe Grizzle (Okla.) 
Bill Jones (Texas) 
Dean Dobbs (N.C.) 

1994 

William Reagan (Canada) 
Robert Trimble (Md.) 
Norwood Gibson (S.C.) 

1996 

Alton Loveless (Ohio) 
Galen Dunbar (Ga.) -
Archie Mayhew (Calif.) 

HOME MISSIONS BOARD 

Chairman: Rue Dell Smith, 209 East Robinson, Springdale,AR 72764 
Director: Roy Thomas, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202 

1991 

Milburn Wilson (Calif.) 
Glenn Thomas (Ga.) 
Larry Russell (La.) 

1993 

Lynn Wood (Okla.) 
Rue Dell Smith (Ark.) 
Wendell Walley (N.C.) 

1995 

Fred Hanson (Canada) 
Earl Hendrix (S.C.) 
J. D. Norris (Ala.) 

MASTER'S MEN BOARD 

Chairman: Wendell Leckbee, 1 Amber Lane, N. Little Rock, AR 72118 
Director: James Vallance, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202 

1991 

Howard Gwartney (Okla.) 
Tim Jordan (Ga.) 
Thurman Pate, Jr. (Tenn.) 

1993 

Wendell Leckbee (Ark.) 
Dwight Fletcher (Ga.) 
Charles Denman (Texas) 
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1995 

Johnny Fowlkes (Ark.) 
James Orr (Ky.) 
Waymon Ray (Okla.) 



BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

Chairman: Ron Barber, 5829 E. 46th Place, Tulsa, OK 74135 
Director: Herman Hersey, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202 

1991 

Ron Barber (Okla.) 
Roger Harwell (Okla.) 
Milton Hollifield (N.C.) 

1993 

Robert Morgan (Tenn.) 
Lincoln Varney (Ky.) 
Bobby Floars (N.C.) 

1995 

Jack Daniel (Ga.) 
Wayrnond Fields (Ala.) 
Wilburn Beasley (S.C.) 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 

Chairman: MiJton Worthington, 368 Starr Drive, Troy, Ml 48083 
Director: Roger Reeds, P.O. Box 17306, Nashville, TN 37217 

1992 1994 1996 

Connie Cariker (Okla.} 
Edwin Hayes (Ohio} 
Larry Clyatt (Ill } 

Milton Worthington (Mich.) David Sutton (Texas} 
Billy Hanna (Ga.} James McAllister (Calif.) 
Jim Shepherd (Okla.} Larry Hughes (Ark.} 

COMMISSION FOR THEOLOGICAL INTEGRITY 

Chairman: Leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Avenue, Nashville, TN 37205 

1991 Lonnie Skiles (Mo.) 1993 Fred Hall (Tenn.) 
1992 Leroy Forlines (Tenn.) 1994 L. C. Johnson (Tenn.) 

1995 Daryl Ellis (Ill.) 

HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

Chairman: David Joslin, P.O. Box 1404, Conway, AR 72032 

1991 David Joslin (Ark.) 1993 Mary Wisehart (Tenn.) 
1992 Jack Williams (Tenn.) 1994 Robert Picirilli (Tenn.) 

1995 Steve Hasty (Ala.) 

RADIO-TELEVISION COMMISSION 

Chairman: Sandy Goodfellow, P.O. Box 50117, Nashville, TN 37205 

1991 Sandy Goodfellow (Tenn.) 1993 Terry Boyd (Tenn.) 
1992 Bill Gardner (Tenn.) 1994 James Vallance (Tenn.) 

1995 Bob Shockey (Tenn.) 

20 

MUSIC COMMISSION 

Ch · . Bill Gardner 2518 Una-Antioch Pike, Antioch, TN 37013 atrman. , 

1991 Rodney Whaley (Tenn.) 1993 Bill.Gardner (Tennd) 
1992 Douglas Little (Ark.) 1994 Blame Hughes (N. . 

1995 Vernon Whaley (Okla.) 
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Proceedings 

Sunday School/Morning Worship - July 15, 1990 

Mike Lewis led the co t · · · · 
Sunday School ti J L n~ega to~ m sm~ng choruses to open the Adult 
morning worship,~~d~ ope;:~e, r~m~;~estded at .both Sunday School and 

P
a vocal ensemble from CaJifor~a Chris~a~n~~~~~ P~:~egr. '~T~l ntdhs oSiftJoy, 

asses By." ' ' I e orm 

D Malcolm Fry, editor-in-chief of the Sunday School and Church T · · 
epartment, taught the Adult Sund S h J Th I rammg 

Genesis 5 the life of E h Th ay. c 00 · e essen was based on 
' noc · e sess1on ended at 10·45 s d ,; J 

presented special music to open the morning h. . : oun s o, oy 
J. L Gore led in prayer. wors tp servtce at 11:00 a.m. 

Mike Lewis led the congregation in sin . "All H .I 
Sounds of Joy sang "R d d, Aft gmg, at the Power." 
ing offering was rec~iveJ. eeme . er prayer by Pastor Gore, the morn-

The congregation sang, "Great is Thy Faithfulness" 
Ken Walker, pastor of the Second FWB Ch h. 

~=~t?I;oJ#~c~~~o a bJ:~~s1:e:II~~t~~in~~::~h 1~i ~;~I!~e:~::;;: 
esus. 

Pastor Walker read Matthew 5·43-48 and b 
"Christians Can Out-Do the World." Aft' rought the message on 
Lord" was sung as a benediction. . er announcements, "Thank you 

Sunday Evening Worship Service - July 15, 1990 

wo~~ Sunday evening service was called to order at 7:00p.m. The call to 
Jesus. ,P was a trumpet solo by Brad Williams who played "Stand up for 

?~vi~ Re~ce, who presided at the service, led in prayer. 
e rut and Peace youth group presented special music 

Th
The Yo

1 
udth Evangelistic Team sang, ''Take It to All the w·orld , D 

omas e the con f · . . · anny 
Jesus , "B th Wgregha Jon m smgmg one verse each of "Victory in 

' re ren, e ave Met to Worship," "It Is No Secret" and 
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"Wonderful Grace of Jesus." 
The McAllister Trio from Calitornia presented special music. "His Name 

is Wonderful" was sung by the congregation. 
The men's quartet from Southeastern Free Will Baptist College sang, 

"The Old Time Way of Praising the Lord" and "Then Came the Morning" 
as the offering was received. 

J. B. Varney, pastor of the Kirby FWB Church, Taylor, Michigan, was 
introduced to bring the message. Just before the message Lisa Wallace 
presented special music. 

Pastor Varney preached on "Total Care of God's Family." After 
announcements, the congregation sang, "The Family of God" as the bene­
diction. 

Monday Evening Worship Service - July 16, 1990 

Blaine Hughes led the congregation in singing, "What a Savior" to begin 
the Monday evening service. Paul Thompson, presiding officer, made intro­
ductory remarks and called on Arizona moderator Charles Marshall to 
lead in prayer. 

Clerk Waldo Young called the 54th convention into official session. He 
also introduced Moderator Ralph Hampton, dean of the Graduate School 
at Free Will Baptist Bible College. 

The moderator announced the appointment of the following commit­
tees: 

Credentials Committee-Jeff Crabtree, Joe Cagle, Thurmon Murphy, 
Lester Horton and John Edwards. Resolutions Committee-Daryl Ellis, 
John Reed, Billy Sharpston, Mance Cason and Ernest Harrison. Nominat­
ing Committee-David Shores, Randy Scott, Frank Wiley, Jerry Rackley 
and Leroy Cutler. 

Pastor Thompson welcomed the delegates and visitors to Phoenix, the 
convention city. Sounds of Joy, an ensemble from California Christian 
College, sang a medley of hymns. The ensemble also sang, "Sweet Beulah 
Land." 

The congregation sang, "A New Name in Glory." 
The Mass Choir under the direction of Douglas Little sang, 'cHow 

Majestic is Your Name" and "Praises We Sing." 
Herman Hersey played, "Onward Christian Soldiers" and "Stand Up, 

Stand Up for Jesus" as a piano solo while the convention offering was 
received. "Old Time Power" was sung by the congregation. 

David Joslin, promotional director for Arkansas State Association, was 
introduced as the speaker. Just before the message, Cinda Thompson 
sang, "We Are Standing on Holy Ground." 

The speaker read I Kings 19:19, Mark 10:29-30, Acts 1:4-8 and brought 
the message on "The Spirit-Filled Disciple." "Breathe on Me" was sung as 
an invitation hymn at the close of the message. After announcements were 
made, "Amazing Grace" was sung as the benediction. 
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Tuesday Evening Worship Service- July 17, 1990 

Vernon W~a1,7y led the congregation in singing, "Brethren, We Have 
Met .to Worsh1p to open the Tuesday evening service. Clarence Burton 
was mtroduced to preside. He led in prayer. 

The Men's Chorale sang, "Great Is the Lord." 
The congregation sang, "I Will Praise Him." Daryl Ellis led in prayer. 
The congregation sang, "Fairest Lord Jesus," "He Is Lord " "Jesus 

~or~ t.o Me" and "In My Life, Be Glorified," as members of the ~ongrega~ 
bon JOmed hands . 

. The music en~emble~ and quartets from Free Will Baptist Bible College, 
Hillsdale Free W11l Baptrst College, California Christian College and South­
easter.n Free Will Baptist College joined together in singing, "We Are 
Stand:ng on Holy Ground" and "Holy, Holy, Holy." 

The con.vent.ion offering was received. Clarence Burton led in prayer, 
and .New Life Smgers from Hillsdale FWB College sang a medley of songs. 

J1~ Shepherd, president of Hillsdale FWB College, Moore, Oklahoma, 
was mtroduced as the speaker. He read Colossians 3: 1-4 and brought the 
~essage o,~ "Alive in Christ." After announcements were made, "To Be 
Like Jesus was sung as the benediction. 

Wednesday Morning Business Session- July 18, 1990 

Moderator ~alph Hampton called the business session to order at 9:00 
a.m. He read T1tus 2:11-15, brought devotional thoughts and led in prayer. 

~he clerk read the report of the Credentials Committee. A motion 
earned that the Credentials Committee report be adopted and the dele­
gates be seated. 

The clerk read Item #2 of the General Board report. A motion carried to 
adopt I tern #2. 

The clerk read Item #1 of the General Board report. A motion carried to 
adopt Item #1. 

. Executive Secr~tary M~lvin Worthington gave the report of the Execu­
tJ~e .Office. A matron earned to receive the report and adopt the budgets 
Within the work of this office. 

Director. Herman Hersey gave the report of the Board of Retirement. 
He . recogmzed Robert Picirilli for 11 years of service on the Board of 
Retirement. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

The moderator recognized former moderator Ralph Staten a minister 
who was. a part of the first National Association in 1935, pres~nt for this 
54th sesston. 

The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. 
~bby Floars (N.C.) was elected to fill the 1993 term on the Board of 

Retirement, replacing the late Billy Samms. 
Director Roy Thomas gave the report of the Home Missions Depart_ 
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ment. He presented checks to home missionaries in the Phoenix area 
designated for the purchase of property. A motion carried to receive the 
report and adopt the budget of the Home Missions Department.. ~ynn 
Wood (Okla.) was elected to fill the 1993 term on the Home M1ss1ons 
Board replacing Richard Adams who resigned. 

Dir~ctor James Vallance gave the report of the Master's Men Depart­
ment. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Director Roger Reeds gave the report of the Sunday School and 
Church Training Department. A motion carried to receive the report and 
adopt the budget. David Sutton (Texas), James McAllister (Calif.) and 
Larry Hughes (Ark.) were elected to six-year terms on the Sunday School 
and Church Training Board. 

Director R. Eugene Waddell gave the report of the Foreign Missions 
Department. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 
Alton Loveless (Ohio), Archie Mayhew (Calif.) and Galen Dunbar (Ga.) 
were elected to six-year terms on the Foreign Missions Board. 

Herman Hersey gave the report of the Free Will Baptist Foundation. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Herman Hersey also gave the report of the Benevolence Committee. A 
motion carried to receive the report, including the financial report. 

Chairman Leroy Forlines gave the report of the Commission for Theo­
logical Integrity. A motion carried to receive the report and ado~t !he 
budget. Daryl Ellis (Ill.) was elected to a five-year term on the CommiSSion 
for Theological Integrity. 

Bill Gardner gave the report of the Music Commission. A motion car­
ried to receive the report and adopt the budget. Vernon Whaley (Okla.) 
was elected to a five-year term on the Music Commission. 

David Joslin gave the report of the Historical Commission. A motion 
carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. Steve Hasty (Ala.) was 
elected to a five-year term on the Historical Commission. 

Larry Hampton gave the report of the Radio-TV Commission. A motion 
carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. Bob Shockey (Tenn.) 
was elected to a five-year term on the Radio-TV Commission . 

Melvin Worthington introduced C. H. Overman, general secretary of 
the North Carolina State Convention of Original Free Will Baptists. He 
brought greetings to the National Association from the organization he 
represents. 

A motion carried to recess until1:35 p.m. 

Wednesday Afternoon Business Session - July 18, 1990 

Assistant Moderator Carl Cheshier read Psalm 121 and led in prayer to 
begin the afternoon session. . . 

Former president Charles Thigpen gave the report of Free W11l Baptist 
Bible College. Newly-elected president Tom Malone addressed the 

25 



National Association. A motion carri d t . 
budget of Free Will Baptist Bible Co~ o Scetv~ the report and adopt the 
gomery (Fla.) and J M Cr h . ege. am ruett (N.C.), Larry Mont-
the Bible College Bo.ard.of lr~~te~~Iss.) were elected to six-year terms on 

The clerk read Item #3 of the G al Bo . adopt Item #3. ener ard report. A mot10n carried to 

~~~sc:~n~=~ ~:e~e ~e~~r~ ~rd report were also adopted. 
made and seconded to ado t It e # eneral ~oard report. A motion was 
to amend Item #6, by substifutio~r:s ~ll~w~·otton was made and seconded 

That we authorize the sale of th · 
Road, and that the indebtedness 

0 
e prhes~nt probp~rt¥ O? Murfreesboro 

$400,000. n pure asmg or utldmg ts not to exceed 

The motion to amend lost. 
The motion to adopt Item #6 carried 
Steve Hendrix (Kan.) and Steve T. ail (La) 

terms on the General Board. r . were elected to one-year 

The clerk read nominations for the G l Bo 

SOo~~!~tet~r~~o&!;~he following ~ere :~e:t~d t;rt~:G':~~:a~~=~1}~; 
Lilly (N C) J" N therr(Nrespective states. Earl Jenkins (N.Mex.) Tom 

· · ' tm ason ortheast A ) M.k C . ' 
Assoc.), Delmar Sparks (Ohio) Jack ~~o~. ' (Okf ) nswell (Northwest 
Raymond Riggs (Tenn) Thu~on M tc ey a. , Joe Cagle (S.C.), 
and Carl Vallance (W.V~.) . urphy (Texas), Jeff Crabtree (Va.) 

Those elected to the Executiv C . 
Tom Lilly, Jack Richey and Carl v:uan~~mtttee for two-year terms were 

2
, J~~dc~e~e~=~~~~e~~port of the Resolutions Committee. Resolutions 1, 

Melvin Worthington gave the re rt f h 
motion carried to adopt the re ort po 

0 
. t e Bu?get Committee. A 

Committee study and bring back~ 199 A motton car~ted that the Budget 
from all areas of the denomin ti . 1 a pl~n to enltst better cooperation 

a on m supportmg the Executive Office. 

Wednesday Evening Worship Service - July 18, 1990 

Larry Clyatt led the congregation in . . "S 
the Wednesday evening service Conn·e Csmgikmg, e~dd the Light" to open 

The Moss Choir · . . 1 ar er prest ed. 
Rise." Douglas Litt1~7~~rt~~e c~~~~~~~ti of J?ou~la~ Little sang, "We Shall 
Way." Connie Cariker led in prayer on m smgmg, "Have Thine Own 

The Mexican Quartet presented . 1 . 
member gave a testimony. specta mustc and each quartet 

Director Eugene Waddell intr d d h f . . . 
present. Director Roy Thomas o in~~~du~ ed ~~etg~ mtssto~a~es w~o were 
were present. In the case of those presente fr eth orne mt~stonanes who om e target ctty of Phoenix 

' 
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Arizona, whole congregations were introduced along with their pastors. 
"We've a Story to Tell" was sung by the congregation. A convert from 
Spain who came on his own to the convention, sang, "Thank You." Con­
nie Cariker led in prayer. Rejoice, an ensemble from Free Will Baptist Bible 
College, presented special music as the missions offering was received. 
The missions offering was a record $24,189.22 

Bobby Lee Thomas sang, "There Is a Savior." 
Larry Powell, pastor of Cofer's Chapel FWB Church in Nashville, Ten-

nessee, was introduced to bring the message. He read Matthew 5:13 and 
brought the message on "The Salty Tang." "I Surrender All" was sung as 
an invitation hymn. Several people responded to the invitation. After 
announcements the congregation sang, "Blest Be the Tie" as the benedic-

tion. 

Thursday Morning Business Session- July 19, 1990 

Assistant Clerk Keith Burden opened the morning session at 9:00 a.m. 
by reading John 17:1-11. He also led in prayer. 

Jim Lauthern gave the report of the National Youth Conference. A 
motion carried to receive the report. 

Mary R. Wisehart gave the report of the Woman's National Auxiliary 
Convention. A motion carried to receive the report. 

The clerk read the report of the Registration Committee. The report 
was received as information. 

A motion was made and seconded that the Executive Committee study 
procedures for disciplining a minister, to outline procedures, seek legal 
opinion on how it would stand up in court if challenged, and to report back 
to next year's convention for consideration by the body. The motion 

carried. 
A motion was made and seconded that "Whereas this body has pre-

viously passed a resolution against abortion, and whereas the Louisiana 
legislature has presently passed the strongest anti-abortion bill of any state, 
and whereas if this bill becomes law it has potential influence in the over­
turning of Roe versus Wade ruling, Be it resolved that this body send a 
letter to Governor Buddy E. Roemer encouraging him to sign this bill into 
law." The motion carried. 

The clerk read the final report of the Nominating Committee regarding 
their nominations for officers. 

Ralph Hampton (Tenn.) was elected moderator. 
Carl Cheshier (Ark.) was elected assistant moderator. 
Waldo Young, (Okla.) was elected clerk. 
Keith Burden (Okla.) was elected assistant clerk. 
A motion carried to adjourn. After several requests were heard, a time 

of prayer was observed. 
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1990 
THE EXECUTIVE SECRETARY'S REPORT 

The Executive Secretary attended 19 state associations during 1989. 
Reports during these meetings indicate a renewed interest and involve­
ment in the work of Free Will Baptists. Harmony, honesty, humility and 
happiness characterized these associations. The Target 90 Campaign con­
cluded its fourth year. Statistics for 1986-1989 reflect steady growth. 

Baptisms 
Members Added 
Members Lost 

1986 1987 1988 1989 Total 
8,517 8,407 7,910 8,678 33,512 

12,052 12,132 12,436 12,726 49,346 
7,314 6,581 6,454 7,511 27,860 

The Campaign's four-year net membership goal was 35,000. Actual 
gains were 21 ,486-13,514 short of the projected goal. From 1986-
1988 Free Will Baptists planted 103 new churches. Churches planted in 
1989 will be included in 1990 statistics. 

Executive Church Bonds was brought into existence for the purpos£ of 
helping Free Will Baptists churches with building programs. This included 
church buildings, parsonages, and various activity buildings. Executive 
Church Bonds has continued to serve churches that needed assistance 
with details on existing programs. All first mortgage programs that we are 
aware of have been released. Therefore, we feel it is proper to conclude 
the operation of Executive Church Bonds and release the remaining funds 
to the Executive Office Special Projects Fund. These funds will be held two 
years in the event a need arises. We commend the work of Harold 
Critcher who faithfully served as trustee of Executive Church Bonds. 

The 1990 Denominational Digest provides and overview of the opera­
tion and outreach of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. Copies 
are provided for each state meeting. The 1990 Free Will Baptist Yearbook 
provides minutes from the 1989 annual convention, 1988 audits, 1990 
projected budgets, listings of pastors and churches, and other materials 
pertaining to Free Will Baptists. 

The National Ministries Sunday offering for 1989 totaled $28,514.65. 
September 30, 1990 has been designated National Ministries Sunday. We 
encourage every Free Will Baptist to participate in this offering. Based on 
the 1990 gift income budgets of National Ministries, each Free Will Bap­
tist needs to give $34.81. We challenge you to give a gift of $34.81 
above your systematic and other special gifts. This Stewardship Emphasis 
in September can be a blessing to every Free Will Baptist ambassador, as­
sembly, association and agency. 

Rejoice: The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book is available from Randall 
House Publications at a cost of $9.98 per copy. More than 66,000 hym­
nals have been sold. Only 36,640 remain. 

The biennial Leadership Conference, sponsored by the national depart­
ments met December 4-5, 1989 in Nashville, Tennessee for two days of 
workshops on denominational accountability. Leaders from 23 states at-
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nf The biennial All-Boards Conference will meet De-
tended the co erence. . 

b 3 4 1990 in NashVIlle. . 1 t · 1 f cern er - , . t . t information and inspirationa rna ena or 
Contact contmues o p~m o ies are provided for students at 

the denomina~ion .. Comphment~I(sd~l: FWB College, Southeastern FWB 
Free Will Bapti~\ Btb~e ~~ll~~~'nHCollege. We urgently need to increase the 
College and Ca 1 o~~ta . ns d to underwrite publication costs for the 
number of s~bsc~t ers. m or ~~tin the denomination's official voice. 
mag~e .. Jo(t~oot) us; ~~~higan f2001) voted to host the national c~n-

Cahform.a . ~ . . conducted in Long Beach, Anahe~ 
vention. Stte ms.pection ~~tts.tw~r~pections will be made to sites in Micht-
and Fresno. A_s ~me perhmtts stem tions beginning in 2002 need to con­
gao. States Wt~hmg t? os conven 

tact the Execu_tive artce. nd Foreign Missions Department continue work-
The Executive tee f . . an International Association of Free 

ing on the possibility o organttzCmgmmittee continues to move toward re­
Will Baptists. The Mana~emen o 
locating the National Off(t~sD) . l'gious education at Vanderbilt Univer-

My doctoral program · · 10 r.e 1 have been completed. Written 
sity is on schedule. All course requrrem~n~uled to be ·completed in 1990. 
comprehensives and oral ex~ms are sc e 
My graduation goal is the spnnr. of 1 ~92 ~present the National Association 

The Executive Secretary c?~ m~es . 0 r R li ious Conference Manage­
of Free Will Baptists by partictpatmg 10 ~~~ P~e~s Association American 
ment Associ~ti~n (Presi?ent),:v~~We~~ristian Stewardship Association, 
Family Assoctation (~dVI~(' . ?at (N f nal Board) Association of Statis­
Citizens For Responstble. ~ eVIs~n di a ~~hristian M'inistries Management 
ticians of Amer_tcan Rehgtcouhs ~ L es,d rs and Religious Alliance Against 
Association, Umted States urc ea e ' 

Pornography. . 9 totaled $1 329,171.7 0. Of this 
Cooperative Channel gifts for 198 . t d) J $1 009 688.56 des­

amount $319,483.14 was Coop (undestgna e an rt ' of National Min­
ignated. We commend you for your generous suppo 
istries through the Cooperative Channel. 

Charting Contributions 
Through The Cooperative Channel 

DESIGNATED 

1979 
$ 134,692.98 

56% 

1980 
189,065.28 (+40.37%) 

60% 

COOP 

$105,071.32 
44% 

123,740.30 (+17 .77%) 
40% 
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TOTAL 

$ 239,764.30 

312,805.58 (+30.46%) 



1981 
1987 23,900.46 188,013.53 211 ,913.99 

279,830.55 (+48.01%} 191,661.52 (+54.89%) 471 ,492.07 (+50.73%} 24,646.15 193,102.83 217,748.98 
1988 59% 41% 225,448.32 
1989 25,129.16 200,319.16 

1982 
495,612.97 (+77.11%) 263,766.24 (+37.62%) 759,379.21 (+61.06%) FOREIGN MISSIONS 

65% 35% 

1983 DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL 

487,876.30 (-1.56%) 314,162.76 (+19.11%) 802,039.06 (+5.62%) 
$ 13,257.51 $ 57,672.34 61% 39% 1979 $ 44,414.83 

1980 61,804.75 20,148.48 81,953.23 
1984 26,592.81 191 ,273.12 

560,490.44 (+14.88%) 380,000.33 (+20.96%) 940,490.77 (+17.26%) 1981 164,680.31 
39,351.22 365,299.56 

60% 40% 1982 325,948.34 
1983 344,625.52 42,196.29 386,821.81 

1985 1984 394,245.60 51,900.33 446,145.93 
563,474.05 (+0.53%) 374,804.51 (-1.37%) 938,278.56 (-0.24%) 1985 404,689.59 47,985.31 452,674.90 

60% 40% 46,141.70 583,782.76 1986 537,641.06 
1986 1987 592,450.15 23,352.50 615,802.65 

780,988.61 (+38.60%) 368,470.06 (-1.69%) 1,149,458.67 (+22.51 %) 1988 661 ,447.78 29,944.15 691,391.93 
68% 32% 1989 701 ,975.57 27,407.66 729,383.23 

1987 
FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 876,378.54 (+ 12.21 %) 289,547.31 (-21.42%) 1,165,925.85 (+1.43%) 

75% 25% 
DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL 

1988 
944,949.06 (+7.82%) 323,295.09 (+11.66%) 1,268,244.15 (+8. 78%) 1979 $ 25,457.15 $ 12,184.22 $ 37,641.37 

75% 25% 20,148.48 49,135.42 1980 28,986.94 
1989 1981 33,071.94 26,592.81 59,664.75 

1,009,688.56 (+6.85%) 319,483.14 (-1.18%} 1,329,171.70 (+4.80%) 1982 47,803.36 39,351.22 87,154.58 
76% 4% 1983 31 ,836.48 42,196.29 74,032.77 

1984 23,947.63 51,900.33 75,847.96 

Cooperative Channel Contributions Increase from 1979-1989 1985 25,166.41 47,985.31 73,151.72 

1986 27,947.85 46,141.70 74,089.55 
Designated 649.62% COOP 204.06% 1987 51,479.96 23,352.50 74,832.46 

1988 57,775.58 29,944.15 87,719.73 

1989 61,876.60 27,407.66 89,284.26 
EXECUTNE OFRCE . 

HOME MISSIONS 
DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL 

DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL 
1979 $ 21,658.Lt1 $ 59,977.69 $ 81,636.10 
1980 30,802.50 53,719.01 84,521.51 1979 $ 25,416.61 $ 6,123.71 $ 31,540.32 
1981 22,030.85 87,375.54 109,406.39 1980 43,906.92 14,686.19 58,593.11 
1982 16,619.41 109,447.70 126,067.11 1981 47,108.20 19,814.37 66,922.57 
1983 7,945.88 130,700.41 138,646.29 1982 96,256.71 29,320.54 125,577.25 
1984 1,770.14 154,384.33 156,154.47 1983 96,231.01 33,023.18 129,254.19 
1985 2,257.83 166,172.19 168,430.02 1984 123,410.33 40,580.05 163,990.38 
1986 9,528.25 167,852.99 177,381.24 1985 111,277.57 37,553.90 148,831.47 
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1986 180,869.97 36,111.27 216,981.24 1984 976.00 13,539.32 14,515.32 
1987 172,901.51 18,276.22 191,177.73 1985 935.86 12,518.03 13,453.89 
1988 160,944.26 23,434.61 184,378.87 1986 1,217.65 12,037.33 13,254.98 
1989 176,544.28 21,449.50 197,993.78 1987 840.23 6,092.41 6,932.64 

1988 3,878.10 7,811.61 11,689.71 

RETIREMENl"& INSURANCE 1989 5,754.97 7,149.83 12,904.80 

DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

1979 $ 11 ,094.89 $ 8, 793.21 $ 19,888.10 DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL 
1980 14,608.09 9,844.04 24,452.13 
1981 8,517.88 19,292.79 27,810.67 1979 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
1982 5,852.79 28,548.94 34,401.73 1980 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1983 3,882.39 27,519.44 31,401.83 1981 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1984 2,895.35 33,848.23 36,743.58 1982 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1985 1,509.93 29,205.96 30,715.89 1983 137.71 1,834.61 1,972.32 
1986 2,542.21 28,086.77 30,628.98 1984 102.60 2,256.42 2,359.02 
1987 2,349.53 14,215.04 16,564.57 1985 208.88 2,086.06 2,294.94 
1988 2,322.02 18,226.89 20,548.91 1986 278.48 2,005.83 2,284.31 
1989 2,186.00 16,682.98 18,868.98 1987 688.28 1,015.06 1, 703.34 

1988 676.30 1,301.90 1,978.20 
MASTER'S MEN 1989 757.28 0.00 757.28 

DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL COMMISSION FOR THEOLOGICAL INTEGRITY 

1979 $ 5,041.22 $ 4 ,509.39 $ 9,550.61 DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL 
1980 7,429.10 4,489.07 11,918.17 
1981 3,374.71 10,428.77 13,803.48 1979 $ 1,431.52 $ 225.59 $ 1,657.11 
1982 1,111.94 15,431.87 16,543.81 1980 1,526.98 705.03 2,232.01 
1983 511.85 23,850.21 24,362.06 1981 1,046.66 1,564.43 2,611.09 
1984 2,041.91 29,334.90 31,376.81 1982 734.71 2,314.75 3,049.46 
1985 753.60 27,122.71 27,876.31 1983 342.00 1,834.61 2,176.61 
1986 585.38 26,080.81 26,666.19 1984 100.31 2,256.42 2,356.73 
1987 3,617.10 13,199.87 16,816.97 1985 236.71 2,086.06 2,322.77 
1988 4,859.96 16,924.93 21,784.89 1986 265.32 2,005.83 2,271.15 
1989 4,414.04 16,682.98 21,097.02 1987 705.84 1,015.06 1,720.90 

1988 719.71 1,301.90 2,021.61 

1989 786.88 1,191.60 1,978.48 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION 
RADIO & 1V COMMISSION 

DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL 
DESIGNATED COOP TOTAL 

1979 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
1980 0.00 0.00 0.00 1985 382.29 2,088.98 2,471.27 

1981 0.00 0.00 0.00 1986 714.33 2,005.83 2,720.16 

1982 0.00 0.00 0.00 1987 1,585.32 1,015.06 2,600.38 

1983 1,192.06 11 ,007.72 12,199.78 1988 1,188.13 1,162.12 2,350.25 

1989 901.78 1,191.60 2,093.38 
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We encourage churches to support every local, district, state and na­
tional ministry. Systematic, special and sacrificial giving will provide ade­
quate funds for all ministries. The Cooperative Plan, when properly under­
stood and prayerfully implemented can fairly and fully support all 
denominational ministries. Brochures explaining the Cooperative Plan 
may be obtained from the Executive Office. 

Contributions to national ministries in 1989 totaled $6,489, 782.33. 
We appreciate your faithful support. Comparative figures since 1980 are: 

1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 

$3,520,691.10 
4 ,506,067.27 
4,233,825. 98 
4,627,217.56 
5,055,269.03 

1985 
1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 

$5,634,007.92 
5,826,768.00 
5, 797,896.42 
6,428,621.22 
6,489, 782.33 

We commend the Executive Office staff: Bookkeeper Melody Hood, Ed­
itorial Assistant Marilyn Pritchard, Con tact Circulation Manager and Re­
ceptionist Geneva Trotter, Executive Assistant and Contact Editor Jack 
Williams, part-time workers Anne Worthington (Church Directory/Secre­
tary) and Sue Larson (secretary). We praise the Lord for competent, con­
sistent and cooperative staff serving with us. Maintenance Superintendent 
Jack Trotter injured his foot in September. He plans to return to work this 
spring and retire in August 1990. 

Melvin Worthington, Th.D., CMP 
Executive Secretary 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF 

THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS INC. 

BALA.~CE SHEET 

OPERATING FUND 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 

- Contact Magazine 
- Special Projects 

Accounts receivables - Contact l-lagazine 
- Special Projects 
- Executive 
- Hymnals 

Notes receivable - Plant Fund 
- Contact 

Inventory (Note 3) 
Prepaid insurance 
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YEAR ENDED 
DEC~ffiER 31 

1989 

$ 20,396.23 
705.40 

5' 4 29. 21 
466 . 20 
115.50 

3.50 
25 , 407.83 
23,600.00 
17,000.00 

330,015 . 40 
2,392.96 

425,532 . 23 

1988 

$ 27' 6 79.20 
678.02 

5, 716.06 
391.74 

71. 16 
11,678.46 

500.00 

2,317.59 
49,032.23 

FIXED ASSETS - (Note 1) 
Auto 
Office equipment 

Less _ accumulated depreciation 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable - General 

- Contact Magazine 
Loans payable - Executive (Note 2) 

- Special Projects 
- Contact 

Payroll taxes 

FUND BALANCE 

15,985.25 
77,497.13 
93,482.38 
55,269.17 
38,213.21 

$463,745.44 

$ 151.47 
450.00 

8,990.00 
384,158.91 

21,000.00 
1 , 206.42 

415,956.80 

47,788.64 

<:463,745.44 

15,985.25 
62,466.18 
78 , 451 . 43 
42 , 685.06 
35,766.37 

$ 84,798.60 

$ 623.86 

10,400.00 
472,693.10 

1,702.65 
485,419.61 

( 400,621.01) 

$ 84,798.60 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND FUND BALANCE 

OPERATING FUND 

GENERAL INCOME 
Cooperative Plan 
Gifts 
Leadership Conference 
National Ministries Offering 
Target 90 
Travel, lodging , meals, etc. 
Other income 

Total income 

GENERAL EXPENSES 
Accounting and legal 
Bad debts 
Executive Committee - travel 
Gifts 
Insurance - general 

• 

Insurance and retirement - employees 
Office space rental 
Office supplies and printing 
Books, dues, and registrations 
Payroll taxes 
Postage 
Promotion 
Leadership Conference 
National Ministries Offering expense 
Salaries 
Housing allowances 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

1989 1988 

$200,319.15 $193,102 .83 
25 ,1 29. 16 24,646.15 
10 , 753.70 3,415.54 
28,514.65 

2,191.20 
2,601.81 

3, 320.56 12 592.28 
268 2910.75 226,676.28 

650.00 2,500.00 
407.24 

4,048.65 4,272.02 
350.00 

3 , 203 . 51 4,292.44 
20,582.84 16,499.24 
16,267.80 15,411.60 
8,376.74 9,320.42 
1,3~5.66 

4,090.92 3,608 . 47 
1,567.79 996.05 

607.71 
10,879.66 2,718.95 
28,514 . 65 

91,667.36 98,173.17 
23,883.24 23,000.04 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Telephone 
Travel 
Target 90 expenses 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Net income (loss) 

CONTACT MAGAZINE INCOME 
Sales 
Less cost of sales 
Less bad debts 

Net income (loss) 

SPECIAL PROJECTS INCOME 
Sales 
Less cost of sales 

Net income (loss) 

Total net gain (loss) 
Fund balance, beginning 
Prior period adjustment (Note 3) 

Fund balance , ending 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - general 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid insurance 

Total current assets 

BALANC~ SHEET 

PLANT FUND 

PROPERTY 1 PLANT 1 AND EQUIPMENT (Note 1) 
Land, building, and accessory equipment 
Telephone equipment 
Vehicle 
Lawn equipment 
Paving parking lot 
Mailing machine 

Total capital assets 
Less-accumulated depreciation 

Total property , plant & equipment 

OTHER ASSETS 
UPS Deposit 

Total assets 

3,161.49 
10,863.43 
l, 360.71 
2,347.19 

12,584. 11 
1!060.48 

253 1282.04 

$ 15:628.71 

$ 60,235.34 
71,066 .92 

116.58 

($ 101948 . 16) 

$163,004.21 
49 , 290.51 

$113,713.70 

$118,394.25 
( 400,621.01) 

3301015.40 

$ 47,788.64 

3,446.81 
12,295.27 
1,837.01 
4,094.19 

11,988.57 
1,247.53 

210,210.92 

$ 16,465.36 

$ 54 ,686 . 29 
64,507.63 

61.10 

($ 9,882.44) 

$227,788.62 
738,330.84 

($510 , 542. 22) 

($503, 959 . 30) 
103,338.29 

($400,621.01) 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

$ 

1989 

4,176.54 
22.08 

7,187.51 
11,386.13 

298 , 853.35 
37,829.40 
5 ,091. 73 
4,016.86 
8,147.00 
71735.00 

361,673.34 
206,820.61 
154,852.73 

176 . 62 

$166,415.48 

1988 

$ 1,367.10 
142.62 

6 , 287.31 
7,797 .03 

298,853.35 
37,829.40 

5,091. 73 
4,016.86 
8,147.00 

353,938.34 
189,612.21 
164 , 326 . 13 

176.62 

$172,299.78 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 231.69 $ 710.09 
Accounts payable 3,62.0.97 3,620.97 
Property taxes 507.55 1,212.76 
Payroll taxes 

(Note 2) 16,958.42 27,222.68 
Board of Retirement and Insurance 5,624.41 
Note payable - telephone system 23,600.00 500.00 
Note payable - Executive 44 ,918.63 38,890.91 

Total current liabilities 

FUND BALANCE 
121,496.85 133,408.87 

Total liabilities and fund balance $l66 !415.48 $172,299 . 78 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES 1 AND FUND BALANCE 

PLANT FUND 

GENERAL INCOt-tE 
Rent 
Telephone 
Hospitalization , dental, and life insurance 
Postage meter 
Other income 

Total income 

GENERAL EXPENSES 
Yearbook ads 
Audit 
Hospitalization, dental. and life insurance 
General supplies 
Insurance - general 
Interest 
Janitor service and supplies 
Property taxes 
Retir ement expense 
Nail truck expense 
Mail room expense 
Maintenance - general 
Payroll taxes 
Salaries 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Postage 
Depreciation 
Other expeTlSes 

Total expenses 

Net income (loss) 
Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance , ending 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

1989 1988 

$ 78,379.32 
24,068.07 
94 , 510 . 15 
42,785.31 

( 

1,416.35 
241,159 . 20 

600.00 
850 .00 

96,280 . 80 
746 .81 

8,178 . 80 
2,821.88 
3,646.29 
3,620.97 
1,025 . 44 

795 .69 
2,756.54 
3,012 . 46 
2,370.34 

31,562.34 
18,418.36 
13,763 . 83 
42,863.81 
17,208.40 
2,548.46 

253,071.22 

11 ,912 .02) 
133,408.87 

$121 , 496.85 

$ 85,265.28 
24,994.34 
79,630 . 35 
35,654.08 

( 

3 , 258.20 
228,802.25 

82,137.65 
975.53 

8,747.76 
4' 705.41 
3,555.69 
3,620.97 

86 7. 12 
800.55 

3,044.62 
5, 797.13 
2,463.78 

32 , 854.70 
16 ,430. 11 
12,365.89 
34 '994. 13 
19,543.24 
3,214.08 

236 , 118.36 

7,316.11) 
140,724.98 

$133,408.87 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BALANCE SHEET 

CONVENTION FUND 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Loans receivable - Contact (Note 2) 

- Executive (Note 2) 
Total assets 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund balance 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

1989 198B 

$24,366 . 78 
311.56 

4,000.00 
8,990.00 

$37,668.34 

$37,668.34 

$35,469.57 
509 . 24 

$35,978.81 

$35,978.81 

STATEMENT OF P~VENUE, EXPENSES, AND FUND BALANCE 

CONVENTION FUND YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

1989 1988 

GENERAL INCOME 
Banquet tickets $ 7,637.02 $ 6 . 710.00 
Offerings 5,216.34 6,408.15 
Church fees 1,350.00 20.00 
State fees 25,160.00 25,200 .00 
Booth fees 10,400.00 7,175 .00 
Host state gift 10,000 .oo 6,371.00 
Interest 2,178.22 3,057.33 
Travel 815.75 
Other income 4,397.07 

Total income 62 2 757.33 59!338.55 

GENERAL EXPENSES 
Audit 650.00 
Printing and promotions 13,929.86 12,269.58 
Auditorium rent and signs 15,ll4.02 18,743.07 
Booth installations 4,535.08 
Convention office 1,954.36 7,840 .09 
Insurance 200.00 175.00 
Honorariums 600.00 700 .00 
Telephone 686.55 613.21 
Truck expenses 112.12 988.71 Postage 478.44 537.62 
Travel expenses 14,295 . 67 12,914.53 
Banquet tickets 7,637.02 8, 372.54 Music 204.00 
Other expenses 670.68 1,180 . 27 

Total expenses 61,067.80 64,334.62 

Net income ( Loss) 1,689.53 ( 4,996.07) 
Fund balance, beginning 35,978 . 81 40,974.88 

Fund balance, ending $37,668.34 $351978.81 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

CONTRIBUTIONS THROUGH THE COOPERATIVE CHANNEL 

RECEIPTS 
Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Canada 
Colorado 
Delaware 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Maryland 
Mexico 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Northwest Association 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Oregon 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
Washington 
West Virginia 
Other 

Total receipts 

DESIGNATED 

DISBURSEMENTS 
25,129.16 Executive Office $ 

Foreign Missions 701,975.57 
61,876.60 FWBBC 

176,544.28 Home Missions 
Retirement and 

2,186.00 Insurance 
4,414.04 !-taster's Men 

FWB Foundation 5,754.97 
Historical 

757.28 Commission 

$ 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

1989 1988 

7,145.95 $ 7,110.80 
1,398.20 1,638.17 

58,086.06 54,876.72 
17,556.43 18,219.32 

525.31 545 .98 
-0- -0-
-0- 3,348.36 

22,061 C'Q 24,664 . 89 
118,631.84 101' 150. 25 

-0- -0-
618.73 760 .97 

114,952.91 96,761.98 
6, 309.77 7. 344.72 

-0- -0-
694.74 946.25 

5,457.89 1,436.86 
2 '793. 90 5,806 . 57 

-0- -0-
52,103.60 72,067 . 18 

5,513.02 6,965.97 
102,215.28 84,956.28 

-0- -0-
138.58 257.30 

20,074.46 22,998 . 68 
728 . 67 233.45 

34,058.33 51,656.75 
4 77' 100.39 428,152 .09 

-0- -0-
123,232 . 76 124,422.01 
27,265.85 27,532.12 
93,326.10 93,347.36 

5,235.83 4,906.36 
-0- -0-

31,944.93 26,136.29 
.27 . 47 

$1 '329 ,171. 70 $1,268,244 . 15 

TOTAL TOTAL 

COOP 1989 1988 

$200,319.15 $ 225,448.31 $ 217,748.98 

27,407.66 729,383.23 691,391.93 
89.284.26 87 '719. 73 27,407.66 

184,378.87 21,449 . 50 197.993 . 78 

16,682 .98 18,868.98 20,548.91 

16,682.98 21,097.02 21,784.89 
12,904.80 11' 689.71 7,149.83 

757.28 1,978 . 20 
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Conunission for 
Theological 
Integrity 

Hillsdale FWB 
College 

Radio and TV 
Commission 

Other 

Total 
Disbursements 

786.88 

24,935.77 

901.78 
4,426.23 

$1,009,688.56 

1,191.60 

1, 191. 60 
. 18 

$319,483.14 

1,978.48 

24,935.77 

2,093.38 
4,426.41 

$1, 329, 17 1 . 70 

S~~y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

DECEMBER 31, 1989 

2,021.61 

22,220.83 

2,350.25 
4,410.24 

$1,268,244.15 

Following is a summary of the significant accounting ~olicies 

of the Executive Office of The National Association of Free Will 

Baptists, Inc. 

Assets, liabilities , revenues, and expenses are recognized on 

the accrual baeis except where indicated. 

Property, plant, and equipment consisting of major items, (land 

building, and accessory equipment, telephone equipment and certain 

other equipment) are handled through the Plant Fund. The Plant 

Fund charges other departments with a proportional part of the expenses . 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1989 

Note 1- Property, plant, and equipment as of December 31, 1989, was 
held as follows: 

Land, building, and 
accessory equipment 

Telephone equipment 
Vehicles 
Office equipment 
Lawn equipment 
Paving parking lot 
Mailing machine 

Less - accumulated depreciation 
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OPERATING FUND 

$ 

15,985.25 
77,497.13 

93,482.38 
55 , 269.17 

$ 38,213.21 

PLANT FUND 

$298,853.35 
37,829.40 

5 ,091. 73 

4,016.86 
8,14 7. 00 
7 , 735.00 

361,673.34 
206,820 . 61 

$154,852.73 

Note 2 - Obligations 
at December 

of the Operating Fund on notes were as follows 
31, 1989: 

Note 3 -

Contact 
Executive 
Special Projects 

$ 21,000.00 
8,990.00 

38lt, 158.91 

$414,148.91 

h Plan t Fund on notes were as follows at 
Obligations of t e 
December 31, 1989: 

Executive 
Board of Retirement and Insurance 

$ 23,600.00 
16,958.42 

$ 40,558.42 

d an a reement with the Sunday School 
The Executive ~f~iceBhas dm:n: Rand!ll House Publications to ware­
and Church Tra1n1ng oar f S ecial Projects . They will 
house and distribute the ~ymna~s dor a~d remit such collections , 
invoice the customer , col ect u~ s , 1 sold to the Executive 
net of commissions of $ . 795 per ymna , f th hymnals was 

. f December 31 1989, the inventory o e 
Ofhce. As o . t , . eluded until this year; therefore, 
$330 015 40 Th1s was no 1n 
the ~und.Baiance was credited with the closing expense. 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

DECEt-ffiER 31, 1989 

OPERATING FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash 
A~counts receivable 
Notes receivable 
Inventory (Note 3) 
Prepaid insurance 
Deposits 
Land 
Buildings & accessory equipment 
Telephone equipment (net) 
Office furniture (net) 
Auto (net) 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable _ trade 
Property taxes payable 
Note payable- Ret. & Ins. Dept. 

- Convention 

Payroll taxes 
- Executive 

Fund Balance 

(net) 

GENERAL 

$ 20,396.23 
3.50 

40,600.00 

2,392.96 

29,154.90 
9 ,058.31 

$101,605 .90 

$ 151.4 7 

8,990.00 

1,161.17 
91,303.26 ( 

$101 2 605.90 

CONTACT SPECIAL 
MAGAZINE PROJECTS 

$ 705.40 $ 5,429.21 
466.20 25,523.33 

330,015.40 

$ 1 J 171.60 $360!967.94 

$ 450.00 $ 

384,158.91 
4,000 .00 

17,000.00 
45.25 

20,278.40)( 23 1 236.22) 

$ l! 171.60 $360,967.94 

Lo~~:8receivable and payable of $53,590.00 in 1989 
, have been eliminated in department totals . and $10,900.00 in 

EZRA JONES 

lf~9~~ 
1181 MURFREESBORO ROAD 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37217 

February 22, 1990 

To the Executive Committee of 
The National Association of Free 
Nashville, Tennessee Will Baptists, Inc. 

and Pfa~:v;u:~a:;n~~et~=e~~!:~~eo~~~ets of the Op~rating Fund 
ation of Free Will Baptist I ce of the Nat1onal Associ-
1988, and related statemen~~ o~c;;vas of December 31, 1989 and 
halances for the years the d d enues, expenses, and fund 
balance sheets of the C n e~ e . I have also examined the 
and 1988 d h onvent1on Fund as of December 31 1989 

' an t e related statements of revenues, expe~es, 

42 

TOTAL 

$ 26,510.84 
25,993.03 
40,600.00 

330,015 .40 
2, 392.96 

29,154.90 
9,058.31 

$463,745.44 

$ 601.47 

384 J 158.91 
12,990.00 
17,000.00 
1,206.42 

47!788.64 

$463 , 745 .44 

PLANT FUND 

$ 4 ,1 76.54 
22.08 

7,187 . 51 
176.62 

62,044.59 
89,122.60 

630.49 

3,055 .05 

$166,415.48 

$ 231.69 
3 , 620.97 

16 J 958.42 

23,600.00 
507.55 

121,496.85 

$166,415.48 

CONVENTION 

$24,366.78 
311.56 

12,990.00 

$37 J 668.311 

$ 

37,668.34 

$37 ,668.34 

EXECUTIVE 
OFFICE 
TOTALS 

1989 

$ 55,074.16 
26,326.67 

330,015.40 
9,580.47 

176.62 
62,044.59 
89,122.60 

630.49 
29,154.90 
12,113.36 

$614 , 239.26 

$ 833.16 
3, 620.97 

401,117.33 

1,713.97 
206,953.83 

$614,239.26 

EXECUTIVE 
OFFICE 
TOTALS 

1988 

$ 70,909 .95 
2,393.22 

8,604.90 
176.62 

62,044.59 
89,545.78 

7,565.88 
23,511.01 
17!425.24 

$282,177.19 

$ 1,333.95 
3,620.97 

499,915.78 
5,624.41 

2,915.41 
( 231,233.33) 

$282,177.19 

and fund balance for the years then ended. I also examined 
the Cash Receipts and Disbursements of the Cooperative Plan 
of Support for the years then ended. My examinations ~vere 
made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
a~d, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records 
and such other auditing procedures as I considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

In my opinion, the financial statements identified above 
present fairly the financial position of each of the afore­
mentioned organizations at December 31, 1989 and 1988, and 
the results of their operations and the changes in the fund 
balances for the years then ended, in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis. 

,. 
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1990 
Executive Office Budget 

Administrative 
Convention (1990) 
CONTACT 

Total 

1991 
Administrative Budget 

PROJECTED EXPENSES 

Total 

Salaries 
Housing 
Social Security 
Retirement 
Employees Insurance 

(Dental, Hospital, Life, Travel) 
Office Rental 
Office Supplies 
Equipment Maintenance 
Telephone 
Postage 
General Insurance 
Travel 
Executive Committee 
Auditing 
Promotion/Printing 
Biennial Leadership Conference 
Equipment Purchase/Computer 

PROJECTED INCOME 

Total 

Cooperative Plan 
Designated Gifts 

•7. 21% increase 

44 

$259,455.40 
62,549.00 
82,531.40 

$404,535 80 

$113,813.16 
25,000.00 
15,793.09 
4,849.47 

23,150.88 

20,548.80 
5,000.00 
5,000.00 
4,000.00 
2,300.00 
4,000.00 

15,000.00 
7,000.00 
2,000.00 
4,500.00 
2,000.00 
5,500.00 

$259,455.40. 

$219,000.00 
40,455.40 

$259,455.40 

Convention Budget 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

July 15-19, 1990 
Phoenix, Arizona 

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 

Total 

Auditorium 
Printing and Promotion 
Convention Office 
Convention Personnel 

Meals 
Travel 
Lodging 

Convention Officials 
Honorariums 
Decorator Services 
Meal Functions 
Executive Committee 

Meal and Motel Expenses 
Pre-Convention Expenses 

PROJECTED RECEIPTS 

Total 

Booth Fees 
State Association Fees 
Church Delegate Fees 
Host State (Arizona) 
Offerings 

2,088.00 
3,307.62 
3,136.98 

1991 
Contact Budget 

PROJECTED EXPENSES 

Printing 
Postage 
Art 
Writer's Fees and Photos 
Promotion 
Computer 
Mail Services 
Telephone 
Office Supplies 

45 

$ 10,150.00 
17,552.00 

5,499.00 
8,532.60 

6,683.84 
700.00 

4,411.98 
1,819.58 
1,200.00 

6,000.00 
$ 62,549.00 

$ 8,325.00 
25,170.00 

1,000.00 
0.00 

28,054.00 
$62,549.00 

$52,088.40 
13,000.00 

1,000.00 
4,000.00 
1,000.00 
2,500.00 
6,000.00 

200.00 
300.00 



Travel 
Bound Copies 
Other 
Books, Dues, Registrations 

1,300.00 
400.00 

50.00 
693.00 

Total Expenses $82,531.40 

PROJECTED INCOME 

•convention coverage 
••subscriptions 

$ 8,681.40 
73,850.00 

Total Income $82,531.40 

~wo issues 
••Based on 8,035 subscriptions 

(4 ,000@ $ 8 50- $34 000 ( 500 @ $ 9 · 00 =: $ ' · 00 Church Family Plan) 

(
3 · - 4,500.00 Bundle Plan) 

'535 @ $10·00 = $35,350.00 Individual Plan) 

EXECUTIVE CHURCH BONDS, INC. 

GENRAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES - AND FUND BALANCE 

ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS 

DECEMBER 31 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Office equipment 

Total assets 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund balance 

46 

1989 

$ 963.16 
2,063.70 

$3,026 .86 

$3,026.86 

1988 

$3,219.98 
2,063 . 70 

$5,283.68 

$5,283 . 68 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED AND EXPENSES PAID 

DECEMBER 31 

1989 1988 

REVENUES COLLECTED 
$ 102 .01 

Interest on savings 
Transfered from Service & Trust Fund 

Total to be accounted for 
102.01 

EXPENSES PAID 
33.35 

452 . 73 
253.75 
89.74 

Advertising 
Leadership & National Conference 
Accounting and auditing 
Digest expenses 125.00 
Payroll taxes 

1,100.00 
169.18 

Postage 
Salaries, commissions & trustee fees 
Telephone 134 . 63 
Repairs .45 
~iscellaneous 

Total disbursements 
2,358.83 

Excess of revenues over (expenses) ( 2,256.82) 

Cash beginning 
3,219.98 

$ 963.16 
Cash, ending 

SERVICE AND TRUST FUND 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

RESULTING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS 

$ 152.40 
1,362 . 75 

1,515 .15 

374.00 
250 .00 
91 .80 

125 . 00 
2 . 78 

1,104. 71 
310 .85 

2,259 . 14 

( 743.99) 

3,963.97 

$3,219 . 98 

DECEMBER 31 

1989 1988 

ASSETS 
$19,107.37 $18,039.76 

Cash 

FUND BALANCE 
$18,039 ~ $19,107.37 

Fund balance 

47 
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SERVICE AND TRUST FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE COLLECTED AND EXPENSES PAID 

DECEMBER 31 

1989 

REVENUES COLLECTED 

Inter est on savings 
Transter to Regular Fund $ 1 , 067 . 61 

Cash beginning 

Cash ending 

18 , 039.76 

$19,107.37 

EZRA JONES 

~.,.4-j{ec.~ .9~ ~~"-~' 
1161 MURFREESBORO ROAD 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37217 

April 20 , 1990 

Executive Church Bonds, Inc . 
Nashville, Tennessee 

1988 

$ 1,007 . 95 
( 1 , 362.75) 

18,394.56 

$18 , 039 . 76 

I have examined the statements of assets and liabilities and fund 
balances arising from cash transactions of Executive Church Bonds , Inc . , 
and Services and Trust Fund , as of December 31, 1989 and 1988 , and 
the related statements of revenue collected and expenses paid for the 
years then ended . My examination was made in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and , accordingly , included such tests of 
the accounting records and such other auditing pr ocedures as I con­
sidered necessary in the circumstances . 

The corporations ' s policy is to prepare its financial statements on 
the basis of cash receipts and disbursements; consequently , certain 
revenues and the related assets are recognized when paid rather than 
when the obligation is incurred . Accordingly , the financial s t atements 
are not intended to present financial position and results of opera­
tions in conforomity with generally accepted accounting principles . 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly the assets and liabilities arising from cash transactions of 
Executive Church Bonds, Inc . , as of December 31, 1989 and 1988 , and 
the revenues collected and expenses paid during the years then ended , 
on the basis indicated in the preceding paragraph, which is consistent 
with that used in the preceding year . 
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HOME MISSIONS BOARD REPORT 

God blessed the Home Missions Department during 1989. Sixty four 
(64) families of missionaries and associate missionaries served in the 
United States, Canada, Mexico, Puerto Rico, and the Virgin Islands. 
Twenty (20) national workers in Mexico served, eighteen (18) of these in 
starting new churches, and two (2) as instructors at the Bible Institute near 
Tampico. Ten (10) "tentmakers" served as church planters. 

Eight (8) Free Will Baptist chaplains ministered to the men and women 
in the military. These were Chaplain James Bishop, U. S . Army; Chaplain 
Bill Conlon, U. 5 . Army; Chaplain Robert Cooper, U. S . Navy; Chaplain 
Larry Langford, U. S . Army; Chaplain Gerald Mangham, U. S . Army; 
Chaplain Kerry Steedley, U. S . Army; Chaplain Tim Sturgill, U. S . Army; 
and Chaplain Terry Austin who was inducted into the Army Chaplaincy in 
1989. 

The Home Missions Traveling Team conducted twenty three (23) evan­
gelism conferences throughout the year and also an Old Time Camp 
Meeting at the National Association. 

Missionary Builder Howard Gwartney assisted four (4) missionaries with 
new buildings. A crew of twenty (20) lay people accompanied him to the 
Virgin Islands to repair damage done by Hurricane Hugo to the Free Will 
Baptist Church and School in St. Croix. 

Five (5) sets of blueprints were drawn by Mr. B. H . Price for use by mis­
sionaries in constructing first unit buildings. 

The Church Extension Loan Fund grew to $1 ,699,317. A total of thirty 
(30) loans have been made to home mission churches, with some com­
pletely repaid. 

Five (5) missionaries led their churches to become self supporting in 
1989. Our thanks go to Tim Trimble , Alabaster, Alabama; Norris 
Hawkins, Artderson, South Carolina; Ron Parker, Tyler, Texas; Ralph 
Hester, Gulfport, Mississippi; and Sam Hensley, Fairfield, California. 

New missionaries sent out in 1989 were David McGowan, Hamilton, 
Ohio; Mark Thomas, Greeley, Colorado; John Turner, Portland, Oregon; 
Richard Atwood, Dover, Delaware; Jim Taylor, Phoenix, Arizona; and J . 
L. Gore, Southaven, Mississippi. 

The fifth couple, George and Linda Harvey, were approved for the Tar­
get City Project, Phoenix, Arizona. 

Roll Call Sunday, 1989 saw a record attendance of 269,425 with 569 
saved. 

Thousands of pieces of literature were mailed to assist churches and 
pastors. The use of Home Missions Follow Up Lessons was instrumental 
in establishing new churches on the island of St. Lucia in the Caribbean. 

Income for the year grew to $1 ,859,133. I thank God for the consis­
tent support from Free Will Baptist churches and individuals who faithfully 
prayed and gave. I am thankful for the dedicated missionaries, chaplains, 
board and staff who served. Please pray for the National Home Missions 
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send "Missionaries To Every State For 
Department as we. se.~k to 
Churches In Every Ctty. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Roy Thomas, General Director 

BOARD OF I lOME MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Balance Shccl 

December 31, 1989 

(with comparative totals for 1988) 

Assets 

Cash nnd cosh equivalents 
Marketable securi tes, at cost (mnrket value of 

$290, 194) (note 2) 

Inventory . . 
Equipment nt cost. l e.~!l nccumulntcd Jcprcnnlwn of 

$108,1\0l (nolo 3) 
Accounts receivnble 
Accrued interest receivable 

Note receivable (note 6) 
Real property held for sole, nt cost 

Total assets 

Liabilities ami fund Ualanccs 

Accounts payable 
Rest ricted deferred revenue - missionAry accounts 

(note 4) 
Deferred compensation (note 5) 
Notes payable (note 7 nnd 8) 

'I olal !labilities 

Fund bolnnces: 
Undesignated 
Net investment in plant 

Totnl fund bnlnnces 

Totallil,bilities and fund b:~lnnces 

Commitments (note 9) 

.,__ · otes to finnnciol slnteruenl,... .,.,., occornpanymg n 

Oil!: rating 

$ 22,408 

342,564 
7 , 127 

3,629 

14,205 

11,909 

$ 401,842 

s 4 ,046 

325,488 
114 ,305 
22,908 

466,747 

(64,905) 

(64,905) 

$ 401,842 
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1989 
Total 

Plonl All 

func.l Funds 
~ 

22,408 

342,564 
7,127 

32,590 Jl,Wll 
3,629 

14,205 
11,909 

32,590 434,432 

4 ,046 

325,488 
114,305 
22,908 

466,747 

(64,905) 

32,590 32,590 

32,590 (32,315) 

32,590 43t1,t1J2 

1988 
Total 

All 
Func.ls 

36.348 

314,580 
R.O.Il 

4 'i ,'1()1\ 

286 

15,576 
II ,909 

432.145 

3,344 

306,905 
121,619 
25,778 

457,646 

(70,905) 
45,404 

(25,501) 

4J'l,145 



Slalemenl of Support and Revenue, Expenses, 
CapilaJ Additions, Transfers Among Funds and Changes in Fund Balances 

Support and revenue: 
Contributions 
Printing services 

Investment income 
Reutnl iucome 

Totol support nud t evcnue 

Year ended December 3 1, 1989 

(wiiJt comp4rotive totals for 1988) 

1989 
Opera tin~ 

Unrestricted Restricted 

$ 3 12,135 1,494,861 

29,498 
2;100 

J"" ,o:n 1,11911,861 

Plant 
Fund 

1988 
Total Total 

All Pwtds 

J ,806,996 

29,498 
2,•100 

All Funds 

1,711,622 
10,197 
29,462 

Expenses: 
1,1!38,894 1,751,281 

Administrative expenditures 
Missionary mainteuonce 
Depreciation 

Loss on sale of assets 

Total expenses 

E.11cess (deficiency) of 
surport and reveuue 
over eJI~JISeS 

353,996 

353,996 

{9,963) 

1,478,588 

13,124 

1,478,588 13,124 

I 6,273 

353,996 
1,478,588 

13,124 

1,845,708 

389,329 
1,409,891 

15,176 
5,659 

I ,820,055 

Fund bolnuces, beguming of ycnr 
Transfer to plant for acquistions 
Allocation of printing service costs 

(70,905) 
(310) 

16,273 (I 6,273) 

(13,1 211) 

45,1104 

310 

(6,814) 

(25,501) 

(68, 7711) 

4J,l7J 

Fund balances, end of year $ (64,905) 32,590 
Sec accompanying notes to fiunneinl slnlcmcul:o;. 

(32,315) (25,501) 

Noles lo Financial Slalements 

Dcceml>er 3 1, J 989 

Board of llome Missions is operated under the auspices of The Nuhonal Association of Free Will Baptists. 

(l) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The major accounting principles and practices followed by Ute Board of I lome Missions of Notional 
Association of Free Will Onplists are presented below to assJst U1e reader in evaluntmg UJe finaucial 
statem.=nts. The financial statements ore presented in accordance wiUt standards recommended in • Audils 
of Certain Nonprofit Organizations" an Audit and Accountmg Guide (Amen can lnslJlute of Certified Publtc 
Accountants). 

Fund Accow1liug 

In order to ensure observance of limita tions and reslnctions plnced on the usc of resources av;ulable to the 
Board, Ute accounts of the Uoatd are ruaintained in accordance wrth the principles of "fuull accounting". 
This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes ore clnssrfied for accountiug :mll reporting 
purposes into funds U.at are in accordance wiUt activities or objectives specified. 

Tho ISSeis, liabilities and fund balances of the Uoard are reported in self-balancing fund groups as 
follows: 

a. Operating fuuds - such funds include unrestricted funlls available for support of 
Board operations and restrictell funds for support of missions. Unrestricted 

funds ore reported as revenue in the year received or accrued. Hestricted funds 
oro recorded as additions to deferred revenue. Such restricted opernling funds 
11re recorded liS revenues during the reriod Utey are e.11pended. 
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(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

Plant funds - such funds represent resources restric!ed for plnnl acquisitions b. 
and funds expended for pia nl. 

Plant Assets and Depreciation 

. nt nc uisilions nrc accounted for as transfers lo rlanl funds. 
Uses of opernllng funds for. pin . q . I C I d uselul lives of the respective nssels on a 
Depreciation of etluirment IS rrovnlcd over lte es una e 

straight line basis. 

Jncmno Ta.11es . 

1.1· 1 no provision for Income The Donrd of !lome Missions is exempt front income taxes; nccot tng y, 
lues hns been mode in I he accompanying financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents . 

and cosh e uivnlents nre considered to be demand dcpostls 
For purposes of the statement of cnsh nows, cnsh d bq . I Is purchased with n maturity of three 

• • 1 • 1·t 1·0 5 ns well as e t tns rumen · • and interest bearing wtth finnnctn ~~~~ r u • n • 
months or Jess. 

Jnvcstmenls d TJ 

. . I tatemenls al cost lind are comprised of mutual fun s. •e 
Investments are ptesented 111 the fiu:me•n s . • I d m:uket value of investment assets. 
following sumuu~ri7.es the relationshil• between tho cnrrymg va uc an • 

Dalnnce at end of year 

Bnlnnce nl l>eginning of ye:tr 

Unrealized decrease in market vnluc for year 

Plant Funds 

A summary of plnnt funll assets is ns follows: 

Furniture and Equipment 

Automobiles 

Less accumulated deprecintiou 

Net invested in plant 

Depreciation e.llpense amounted lo $13,124 dut ing 1989. 

Restricted Deferred Revenue 

Changes in restricted deferred revenue is as follows : 

Contributions 

Costs: 
Expenses 
Allocation of printing service costs 

Net increase 

Balance, beginning of yenr 

Balance, end of year 

57 

Carrying 
Value 

$ 342,564 

$ 314,580 

$ 

Market 
Value 

290,194 

275,588 

120,245 
20,747 

140,992 
108,402 

$ 

S 32,590 
=~= 

$ 1,513,444 

1,478,588 
16,273 

1,494,861 

18,583 

306,905 

$ 325,488 

Excess of 
Cost Over 

Markel 

(52,370) 

(38,991) 

( 1],378) 



(5) Deferred Compensation 

The Board of llome Miss ions provides for ench full -time employee deferred compensation based on a 
formul1 combining a percent of sotnry nnd ye:~rs of service. The amounts nre payable when employment rs 
terminated. 

A summary of U1e liability at L>ecember 3 I , 1989 is as follows: 

Balance, beginning of yenr 
Contributions for benefit of: 

M issionnries 
Administrative employees 

Terminntious 

Balance, end of year 

(6) Note Receivable 

$ 

$ 

121,619 

20,577 
8,299 

150,495 
36,190 

l 14,305 

The note receivable amounting to $14,205 relates to properly sold in Wisconsin. Such note bears 11 % 

interest And is repayable at $251 per month including interest. A lump surn final payment is required 111 

Jnnunry, 1990. The note is secured by the real property. 

(7) Noles Payable 

Notes pny11ble consists of the following: 

Note payable secured by real properly in Amory, Mississippi 
l I % note pnyable to related party (see note 8) 

(8) Related Party Transactions 

$ 6,892 
16,016 

s 22,908 

The Church Ell tension Loan l'und, Inc., nn nffilintcd organization, shores the o ffi ce facilities and 
administrative stnff of the IJonrd <•f llonac Missions ntno cost. Also, llac Uonrd hns nn II% note paynhlo in 
the amount of $16,016 to llais related oagnniznlion to be repnid monll1ly 111 inst.1llrnents of $274 with linal 
payment in 1996. 

(9) Commitments 

The Board has conlingent liabilities in the amount of approxirnnlcly $43,000 for ll1c gunrnntee of debt 
relating to cerlnin churches. 

Schedule of Unreslricled Fund and Rcslricled Fund Expenses 
as Compared lo Dudgcl 

Year ended December 31, 1989 

Unrestricted fund expenses: 
Adminisuative: 

Salaries 
llousing allowance 

$ 

l'nyroll tnl!e!l 
Employee snvings 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Printing and poslnge 
Telephone 

Bonr d member el!pense 
Computer service 

Legal and audit 
Miscellaneous 

Automobile and travel 
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Dud get 

150,000 
30,000 

9,000 
7,000 

20,000 
5,000 

71,000 
12,000 
10,000 

3,000 
3,000 
7,000 

25,000 

Actual 
Cli!?CIISCS 

155,909 
29,101 

8, 9-IJ 
8,299 

24 ,3 II 
4,453 

27,596 
8,688 

12,390 

3,900 

5,041 
23,696 

Actual 
(Over) 

Under 
Uudgct 

(5,909) 

899 
57 

(I ,.l99) 
(4,311) 

547 
43,404 
3,312 

(2,390) 
3,000 

(900) 
1,959 
1,304 

8,000 736 7,264 

Promotion 10,000 1,700 8,300 
Literature 6,000 6,000 
Personal revivals 6,000 6,000 
Roll call Sunday 18,000 19,300 ( 1,300) 

Rent 15,000 11,427 3,573 
omce supplies and equipment 2,506 (2,506) 
Interest expense 

Tol.lll unrestricted fund expense $ 415,000 353,996 6 1,004 

Restricted fund expenses: 

39,849 Missionary maintenance: 
$ 1,265,000 1,225,151 

Salaries 65,000 57,411 7,589 
Trnvel and promotion 

25,000 20.577 4,-123 
Employee savings expense 

30,000 77,718 (47,71 8) 
Postnge nnd printing 

20,000 21,678 ( 1,678) 
M iscellnneous 

60,000 45,789 14,211 
Land and building 4,366 (4,366) 
Aim for target - Phoenix, Arizona 25,898 (25,898) 
Carribenn hurricane relief 

$ 1,465,000 1,478,588 (13,588) 
Tol.lll restricted fund el!pense 

Plant fund: 
$ 20,000 13 , 124 6,876 

Depreciation 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND, INC. 
llalancc Sheet 

December 31, 1989 

(with comparative Lolals for 1988) 

1989 1988 

Tolnl Totnl 

Plant All All 

fund Funds funds 
Operating 

Assets 
183,499 19,160 

$ 183,499 
Cash ond cash equivalents 

966,806 MarkeLoble securities, nl cost (market value 866,981 866,981 
$803,320) (note 2) 629,036 602,647 

629,036 
Notes receivable (note 3) 8,397 4 ,890 

8,397 
Accrued interest 
Equipment at cost, less accumulated 11,404 11 ,404 

depreciation of $1,267 (note 4> 
1,687,913 11,404 1,699,317 1,593,503 

$ 
Total essets 

Liabilities and Fund Dalaoces 

Liabilities: 20,044 20,459 s 20,044 
75,000 75,000 Accrued interest 

75,000 
Revocable t.rust (note 5) 43,680 31,943 

43,680 
Deferred compensation (note 6) 1,295,954 1,178,155 

1,295,954 
Notes payeble (note 7) 

1,434,678 1,434,678 J ,305,557 

Totnl liabilities 

Fund balances: 108,923 143,634 
108,923 

144,312 144,312 Undesignated 
144,312 

Designnled (note 8) 11,404 11,404 
Net investment in plant 

11,404 264,639 287,946 
253,235 

Tolnl fund balances 
11,404 1,699,317 1,593,503 s 1,687,9 13 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

. o•-· to fiMncill statements. See eccompaoymg n ""' 
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Noles to Financial Smlcmcnts 

December 3 I, I 989 

The Church Extension Lonn rund, Inc. is opernted under llte auspices of tJte Notionnl Associntion of Ftee Will 
Baptists. The fund is administered under llte direction of llto Bonrd of Home Missions. Tlus fund wns estnblishcd 
primarily to assist churches in their building projects. 

(J) Summary of Signific:tnl Accounting Policies 

The major accounting principles ond practices followed by tJte Church Extension Loan Fund, Inc. are 
presented below to assist the reader in evaluating llte financial statements. The financial sl.'ltemenls nre 
presented in accordnnce wilh standards recommended in "Audits of Certain Nonprofit Organiz.ations, • an 

Audit and Accounting Guide (Americnn Institute of Certified Public Accountants). 

Fund Accounting 

In order to ensure observnnce of limilntions nnd restrictions plnced on lltc use of resources nvnilnble to the 
Lo11n found, lJte aeeounts of lJtc found ntc mnintained in occordnnco with tho principles of "fund nccounhng·. 
This is lJte procedute by which resou1ces fnr various purposes nre classified for accounting and reporting 
purposes into funds lltnl ore in accordnnco with activities and object1ves specified. 

The assets, liobilit1es nnd fund balances of the Board are reported 1n self-balancing fund groups ns 
follows: 

a. Operating funds - such funds include undesignoted funds available for support of 
Loan Fund operations and designated funds for ocquasation of new church facilities 
(see note 8). Funds are reported as revenue in the year they are received or accrued. 

b. Plant funds - such funds represent plant assets acquired net of depreciation. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the ststement of cash Oows, cosh and cosh equivalents are considered to be demnnd deposits 
and interest bearing deposits wilh finnneinl institutions, as well as, debt instruments w1th n mnt1111ly of three 
monllts or less. 

Income To~es 

The Church Extension Loan Fund, Inc is exempt from income taxes; accordingly no provision for income 
taxes hns been mnde in lhe nccompnnying finn11cinl statements. 

(2) Investments 

Investments are presented in the finnneinl statements at cost, and are comprised of the following: 

Cost Market 

Mutunl funds $ 673,676 608,172 
U.S. government oblignlions 193 ,305 195,148 

$ 866,981 803,320 

The following labulntion summnraz.es the relnlionslup between llte carrying values ond market values of 
investmentusets. 

Ellcess of 

Carrying Market Cost 
Vnlue Value Over Markel 

Balance nl end of year $ 866,981 803,320 (63,661) 

Balance at beginning of year $ 966,806 941,500 (25,306) 

Unrulized decrease m market value (38,355) 

Realized net loss for yenr (49,317) 

Totnl net loss for ycnr, ou n market vnluc bnsts $ (87,67l) 
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(3) Notes Receivable 
10% to 12% notes receivable ore ns follows (as compnred to 1988 balances): 

Secured by first mortgage on the real estate: 

First Free Will Baptist Church - Salem, Oregon 

Grace Free Will Baptist Church - Memphis, Tennessee 

Fin.t Free Will Dnptist Church - Fort Collins, Colorado 

Thompson Memorial Free Will Baptist Church - Vineland, New Jersey 

The Harvest Free Will Baptist Church - Colorado Springs, Colorndo 

Heritage Free Will Oaptist Church- mkhart, Indiana 

Tri-Cities Free Will Bnplist Church - Kennewick, Washington 

Maranadtn Free Will Baptist Church -Omaha, Nebreska 

Heartland Free Will Baptist Church - Eliz.abelhtown, Kentucky 

Maryland Stale Miss ion Donrd 

First Free Will Baptist Church - Oalon Rouge, Louisiana 

Polk Bayou Assoication of Free Will Baptist- Cheyenne, Wyoming 

Jleritage Free Will £Japtist Church - rredericksburg, Virginia 
guaranteed by the Maryland State llome Missions Doord 

Unsecured notes pnyable: 

Heritage Free Will Baptist Church -Gilbert, Ariz.ona 

Alabama Stale Mission Donrd 

Board of Home Missions (note 9) 

1989 

$ 24.422 

46,100 

86,196 

31,147 

74,793 

21,920 

150,000 

8,055 

77,575 

9,752 

17,223 

15,011 

47,528 

3,294 

16,020 

$ 629,036 

1988 

28,797 

27,014 

47,694 

54,146 

33,499 

76,249 

23,600 

99,270 

44,448 

80,000 

17,387 

49,133 

3,948 

17 ,462 

602,647 

(4) Equipment 

(5) 

(6) 

Equjpment consist o f llte following: 

Automobile 
Office equipment 

Less: accumulnted depreciation 

s 11,821 
850 

12,671 
1,267 

s ll,<lo-1 

Revocable Trust 
. f $75 000 The Loan Fund is required to make 

d · · · t f revocable trust 111 lhe amount o , · 
;~;u~~: ~u;;,e ~~e:;ec;.~;:~y :f ;!i% of interest cnrued on llte trust funds within ccrtnlll hmitntions. 

Deferred Comvcnsatiou 

1 he Board o f Home Missions, n related party (see note 9), provides for eachr full-.lime.;~tp~~::t!:r:~~ed 
b' · a percent of salary and years o servJce. e 

compensalion bnsed 00 I formula COlli 1010~ • . • I A . t'on or Free Will Baptists have 
Assistant Director of the Board or Home MISSions of llte ~ahona SSOCIIIbel . ·--' in the work of llte 

lh · -• r -·• npensauon accounts to mvesu:;u eJected to transfer the balance Of e1r ue err.,.. COl 

Church Extension Loan Fund, Inc. 

A summary of the liabihty is as follows: 

Balance at beginning of yenr 
Trnnsfers from the Board of llome M 1ssions 

Interest added to pnncipal 

Other oddiiJons 

Balnnce at end of yenr 
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$ 31,943 
5,525 
3,512 

2,700 

$ 43 ,680 



(7) Noles Payable 

Notes payable, amounting to $ 1 ,295,954, consist of 5 ~ to 9 ~ demand notes to individuals nod churches. 
Such funds are availnble to be loaned to qunlifying churches to finnnce building projects. 

(8) Designated Fund Ualance 

The Loon Fund received as o contribution, proceeds from U1c sale of church real property in Anchorage, 

Alaska. This contribution hns been designnted by U1c administration of the Lo:~n Fund to be held in trust 
until such lime Umt new facilities nre ncqui red. 

(9) Related Party Transactions 

lnr~ A I loll 
I~U <'t'll I No·.ol 

N.ontl' '> Allo·n 

The Loon Fund shares ofrice facilities :md administrative staff wiU1 the Uonrd of llorue Miss ions nt no cost. 

1\s indicated iu note (4), U1e Lonu Fund hns nu 11 % note receivable from the Donrd of Home Missions to be 
repaid monthly in installments of $274 wiU1 final payment in 1996. The bnlance amounts to $16,020. 

1\s indicnted in note (6), T he Bonnl of llorne Missious transferred $5,525 to fund deferred compensation 
11rro ngements. 

liill, NeaJ & Allen, P.C. 
Ccmf1cd l'ubl11. Au.:ounwnt5 

Ooard of Directors 

Jndcpcndcnt Auditors ' Report 

Uoard of I lome Miss ions of The National 
Association of J:rcc Will Uaplists: 

Urrul\\t'tkll '' Ull\t ( \'llh' 

il•ll llclllu ~"' > l~•uln.ucl 

"""' I Ill 
Ill< 11111•~•1 IN ll<ll i 
HI I• I 'i/377 HH'> 
h\\ (>I'VJ77 1·1H8 

We hove nudiletlthe ba lance sheet of the Boord of Home Missions of The Nntionnl Association of 
fo ree Will IJnpli~l~ "-"of lJcccrnhcr J I, 1989, nnd tho 1clotcd statements of supp01t nnd 1cvcnue, 
expenses, c..1pilnl odd•llons, lrnn~fers 11n1ong funds and chnnges in fund balances and cnsh !lows fur 
the yenr then ended. 'I hese linnncinl SlntcUicnts ore U1e responsibility of the Oo:uu's mnnngemcnl. 
Our responsibility is to e~pres~ nn opin1on on U1ese financial statements based on our nuuit. 

Information for U1e year ended IJecemher J I, 1988 is presented for compnrnllve purposes only and 
was extrncted from the fin:mcinl slatcmenls presented by fund for U1at ye:~r, on which we expressed 
an unqunlified opi111on dated February 10, 1989. 

We conducted our nudrt in acco1dnnce wrlh generally accepted auditmg standards. Those standn1ds 

require thnt we plnn and perform the nud1t to obtain rensonnble nssu1nnce about whether the linnncinl 
statements 11re free of mnterinl misstatement. An Dud it 10cludes exnnuning, on a test basis, ev1dence 

supporting the amounts nnd disclosures in the financial sl:ltements. An nudit also includes assessing 
the nccounting principles used nnd significDnt estimates mode by mnnngcment, ns well ns evnlullfing 

the over11ll financial st:.tement presentation. We believe that our nudrt provides n reasonable b:1srs for 
our opinion. 

Jn our opinion, the finnncial statements 1eferred to above present fairly, in nil nmterinl respects, the 

fi nancia l position of the Oonrd nf llome Missions of The Nationnll\ssocintion of Free W1ll Onptists 

AS of lJecenrhcr J I, 1989, nnd the ~upporl nnd revenue, expenses, cnpllnl nddilions, trnn~fcrs nn•on~ 
funds and changes in fund hnl:•nccs nnd cash flows for the yenr then ended in con for nuty with 
generally accepted accounting prmciples. 

February 12, 1990 
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Proposed Faith Budget for 1991 

_MissionaQJ Maintenance 
Salaries 
Travel & Promotion 
Employee Savings 
Postage & Printing 
Miscellaneous 
Land & Building Fund 

Total 

Missionary Assistance 
Printing & Postage 
Telephone 
Board Member Expense 
Computer Service 
Auditing 
Literature 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

Administrative 
Salaries 
Housing 
Social Security 
Pay Roll Taxes 
Employee Savings 
Insurance 
Utilities 

Total 

Evangelism 
Auto & Travel 
Promotion 
Revivals 
Roll Call Sunday 

Total 

Plant 
Office Space 
Equipment & Supplies 
Depreciation 

Total 

Build My Church Campaign: 

Total Faith Budget: 
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1991 Budget 
$1 ,312,000.00 

65,000.00 
25,000.00 
30,000.00 
20,000.00 
50,000.00 

$1 ,502,000.00 

$ 60,000.00 
10,000.00 
12,000.00 

3,000.00 
4 ,500.00 
5,000.00 
5,500.00 

$ 100,000.00 

$ 195,000.00 
42,000.00 
15,000.00 
10,000.00 
10,000.00 
30,000.00 

6,000.00 
$ 308,000.00 

$ 25,000.00 
8,000.00 
6,000.00 
6,000.00 

$ 45,000.00 

$ 22,000.00 
11,000.00 
12,000.00 

$ 45,000.00 

$ 100,000.00 

$2,100,000.00 



Proposed State Quotas for 1991 

State 1991 Quotas 

Alabama ....................... $150,000 
Alaska . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500 
~ ········· 

ona .......... . .................. 15 000 
Arkansas ......... . ........ . ..... 115 '000 can · ' C I orma ........... .............. 95,000 

anada ...... ..................... ... 2 000 
Colorado ......... ......... . ....... 20 '000 
Rorida ............................ 1 00 '000 
Georgia ................. . .......... 7 0 '000 
H .. ' a wan............... 500 
Idaho ................. :::::::::::::::::2.500 m· . , 

tnOIS · · · · · · · · · · .. · .................. 60 000 
I di ' n ana ......... . ................... 25 000 I , owa....... .... 500 
Kansas ...... . :::::::::::::::::::::: l 0:000 
Kentucky ......................... 60 000 
Louisiana ............................ 5 '000 
M . ' ame ................................. 2,500 
Maryland .............. ............ 20 000 
Mexico ................................. ~500 
Michigan .... .. ...... . .............. 60 000 
Minnesota ............................. ~ 500 
Mississippi ......................... 50,000 
M· . 

lSSOUn ............ . ............ 155 000 
Montana ............................... ~ 500 
Nebraska ............................ 5, 000 

State 1991 Ouotas 

New Hampshire ....... . ... $ 17 000 
New Mexico ........................ 2:000 
New York. ........................... 1 , 000 
North Carolina ................ 160 000 
Ohio ....................... .......... 90 '000 
Oklahoma ......... . ............ 180:000 
Oregon ...... ..................... . .. 4 000 
Pennsylvania ...................... 1:000 
~erto Rico ........... .. ... . ........ 2, 500 

ode Island ...................... 2 000 
South Carolina .................. 90 '000 
South Dakota ...................... 5:000 
Tennessee ....................... 250 000 
Texas ................................ 20:000 
Vermont ........... . .................... 500 v· . . Irgmta ............................. 7 0 000 
Virgin Islands ..................... 26 '000 
Washington ....... . ................ . 3:000 
West Virginia ..................... 20 000 w . ' yommg ....... . .................... 2 000 
Other States ....................... 5:000 
Other Income .......... . ......... 7 4 , 000 
Church Extension 

Loan Fund ... ................. 50,000 
Total 1991 Quotas $2,100,000 
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MASTER'S MEN DEPARTMENT REPORT 

Information ... 
The lay ministry of Master 's Men Department shows a steady rate of 

growth in effectiveness and service to the Free Will Baptist denomination. 
Proposed in 1955, voted into being in 1956, and beginning to serve in 
January, 1957 ... this work has matured into a vital, dedicated and exciting 
part of the denominational ministry. This convention in Phoenix marks 
the 34th year of continuing emphasis on service through mission and min­
istry of the laity. Men show forth His image as they work "All Together To 
Advance Christ's Kingdom". 

The stated task of Master's Men Department is to encourage every man 
to be more like the Master. The programs and activities seek to develop 
Christlike men. 

In a real sense the laity are the denomination. Their portion of the min­
istry of Free Will Baptists is much greater than just the Master's Men De­
partment. One pastor noted, "Without the laity, we would have just a 
bunch of preachers with no pastorates, no congregations, no church facili­
ties, no finances and very little accomplished. We need the laity!" His 
statement shows awareness of the contribution lay people make in the 
Lord's work. 

Just as the overall picture shows the commitment of the laity, the work 
of Master's Men shows increased awareness and involvement. 

In Service ... 
* ATTACK magazine is again in print, providing a visible boost to the 

morale of the Department. Men appreciate the magazine .. .it's new for­
mat, size and upgrade of artwork and layout. ATTACK proclaims the in­
volvement of our laymen in ministry and mission. 

*MASTER'S HANDS PROJECTS provide opportunities for men to in­
volve themselves in physical ministry. By 1989 year's end men partici­
pated in 28 known projects. Each church represents one project. At some 
locations, the men have had several organized work times over a span of 
months. They've included head, heart and hands in saving over $500,000 
in building costs. The concept is spreading. Now, men are planning vaca­
tions around building projects, and even calling the office for places they 
can serve. At least four projects are planned in the 1990 calendar year. 

* MISSIONS PROJECTS in 1989 included donations totaling $1,000 
channeled to Spanish-speaking brothers to purchase builder's tools. Now 
these tools are providing the means to repair existing facilities and build 
new centers for worship. 

* DECADE OF DISCIPLESHIP studies continue in this sixth year. "Dis­
ciples In Deed!" is the theme for the year. The lessons are in-depth word 
portraits of the 12 men who walked with Jesus. Men are learning they can 
be "change agentsu in society and make the world a better place to live. 

*ABOVE ALL. .. TAKE THE SHIELD enlistment campaign produced 
some needed growth in 1989, and continues into 1990. First year results 
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showed 26 new chapters with 280 new members. The campaign encour­
ages men to add the shield to their spiritual armor. While it may be heavy 
to carry, it does provide great protection when in battle against the Foe. 

The Department desires to add a hundred chapters and grow to over 
3,000 active members. The cooperation and interest of pastors is a prior­
ity. Men need to show initiative by joining in the activities and member­
ship. 

According to denominational statistics, there are already that many men 
involved in the work. However, in our records, only about 2,000 men 
have paid dues and participate. Obviously, a lot of churches use the name 
or the concept, but avoid overall involvement. It 's sad that they miss a lot 
of the potential help the Department offers. 

The interest and involvement of pastors is one of the keys to the suc­
cessful mission of Master's Men. The lives of laymen provide open doors 
to ministry. Master's Men needs both to provide an effective combination 
in mission and ministry through Free Will Baptists. Is it possible for us to 
work "All Together To Advance Christ's Kingdom?" 

• UFEMEMBERSHIP soared with the addition of 101 new members 
during the calendar year, bringing the total to 374. 12 women were added 
to the LifeFriend list, and Riverview Free Will Baptist Church in Iowa be­
came the first LifeFriend Church on the list. Deposits to the Endowment 
Trust Fund totaled over $37,000 by year's end. The Fund is held in trust 
by Free Will Baptist Foundation. Their management of the Trust provides 
interest income to the General Fund. 

• ENDOWMENT BUILDERS is a name given to a precious group of our 
membership who have promised over $350,000 in future income. Several 
persons have life insurance policies with the Department named as owner 
and beneficiary. At least three families have placed Master's Men in their 
Wills for settlements. One family has included Master's Men in a Living 
Trust for a percentage of the remainder. All funds received will be placed 
in the Endowment Trust Fund. This type of giving will eventually be a 
great blessing to this ministry. More men need to consider ways to give an 
abundant gift at the end of their lives as testimony of their love for the 
Master's work. All Departments could benefit from similar programs or by 
promoting the Cooperative Trust Fund. 

*RNANCES in 1989 improved over the previous year, but shortages 
left the budget in a deficit of $8,000. Spendable income was nearly 
$15,000 below the needed level for ministry. When the budget is divided 
into daily needs, we were short of operating funds nearly 60 days. The 
budget for 1990 projects daily needs of $225.00. 

Cooperative gift receipts totaled over $20,000. These funds are a real 
blessing. More support is necessary for the Department to be able to func­
tion to the desired capacity. 

The National Ministries Sunday offering produced over $3,000 income 
for Master's Men. The NMS offering this year needs the participation of 
every church member. Pastors need to promote this method of support. 
The potential of this offering is tremendous, giving hope for meeting the 
budget needs of every Department. 
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In Honor ... 

e Master's Men Board selects two laymen to receive. honor 
Eac~ year t~butions in life to the work of the Master. Pastors nommate a 

for tht'r co~~r congregations to be considered for the award of LAYMAN 
man rom YEAR and RUNNER-UP LAYMAN OF THE YEAR:· 
OF THBE d t d and the recipients for 1988 year of seiVIce were: Lay­

The oar vo e S F 1 mber of Wooddale FWB 
an of the Year 1988, Elbert . ar ey, me f th v 1988 Phil 

m .11 "t Runner-up Layman o e 1 ear , 
Church, KnoxVl e,b e~e~ee~ony F'WB Church, Kansas City, Missouri. 
Ledgerwood, mem er 0 

. ar but are intended to call at-

te~;:~~~~~\~f=r~o~~ib~~~~~ ~~ :~ ~~.' Our denomination is hon-

or~w'; v~:r~~~~~r'd ~~~hers were honored as they f com~et: &:0'1: 
~f~~i<~~~~~t~.:c~~;~~~. ~::~ ~~r~~~r:S~nd

0

were not eli-

gible for re-election. t d with plaques recognizing their 
Both Lee and Kennedy were presen e .d d t bility and leadership dur­

contributions and service. These men proVI e s a 
ing an important time in the work of Master's Men Department. 

In Summary .. . 

Master's Men Department exists to serve ... the Master, the de:a; 
tion the local churches the laity. In order to serve well, ~e .DepTh ~ _ 

' . . . ' f th support of the denommation. e 1 

needs the partictpation ° men, e h 1 1 and lead The Di-
rector and the Board depend on the Master t~ e f> .P an f th d _ 
rector and the Board expect and need the hfe-gtVlng support o e e 

nomination, the churches and the laity. ff rt d see exciting accomplish-
! believe we can produce greater e o an 

ments together for the Master as His men. 

Respectfully submitted, 

James E. Vallance 
General Director 

THE MASTER'S MEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

BALAf\CE Sl-EET 
December 31 , 

1989 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash . 
Trust account - Lifetime membersh1p 

$ 2, 705 
35,901 

Interest receivable 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
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1988 

$ 793 
27,595 

1,056 
1?9 



Inventories 
Cash value of endowment insurance 

Total current assets 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net (note 2) 

TOTAL assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Acccunts payable 
Deferred revenue (note 3) 
Accrued expenses 
Notes payable (note 4) 

Total current liabilities 

LONG-TEAM DEBT (Note 4) 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) (noteS) 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Total fund balance (deficit) 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

1' 100 
217 

$ 40,609 

3,832 

$ 44,441 

$ 

$ 

( 

$ 

$. 

6,529 
382 
616 

7,527 

7,527 

7,997) 
44 911 

36,914 

44 441 

STATEMENT CF AEVENUE, EXPENDITUAES ANO D-IAI\GES IN FUND BALAf\CE 
Years ended December 31, 

1989 
Unrestricted Restricted TOTAL 

REVENUE 
Dues form members $ 8,241 $ 8,241 
Cooperative program 23,114 23' 114 
Merchandise sales 1 ,336 1 ,336 
Gifts/other income 33,101 14,213 47,314 

$ 651792 $ 141213 ~ 801005 

EXPENJITI.ffS 
Salaries and wages $ 26,022 $26,022 
Payroll taxes and 

employee benefits 5,706 5,706 
Cost of printing and sales 4,228 4,228 
Travel expense 9,740 630 10,370 
Conferences/conventions 12,013 12,013 
Office expense 6,165 6,165 
Postage 2,157 2, 157 
Promotion expense 577 577 
Professional fees 550 550 Bookkeeping expense 900 900 Depreciation 2,386 2,386 

( 

1,093 

$ 30,666 

4 174 

$ 34,840 

$ 2' 796 
89 

539 
1 418 

$ 4,842 

4,842 

2' 130) 
32' 128 

$ 29,998 

$ 34,840 

1988 
Total 

$ 8,902 
20,229 

591 
45,512 

~ 751234 

$25,949 

5,216 
1 '705 
9,322 
7,577 
5, 116 
1,173 
1,225 

500 
900 

2,248 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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124 124 
1,244 Interest expense 944 300 

Insurance expense 147 147 
500 aues/subscri~tions 500 

Missions proJects 

$ 711659 $ 1,430 $731089 

AEVENJES OVEA { UNOEA) 
EXPEf\DITUAES $ { 5,867) $ 12,783 $ 6 ,916 

FUf'IJ BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT 
( JANUARY 1, 1989 21 130) 32 I 128 29,998 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT 
71997) $ 441911 $361914 $ ( oe:CEMBEA 31 , 1989 

STATa.EN'T OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 
Years ended December 31, 

WCH<Itll3 CAPITAL PAOVICED (APPL:~ED) 
Revenue over (under) expendltur~s 
Items not affecting working capltal 

Depreciation 

Working capital provided by (used For) 
opeations 

Additions to property and equipment 

!!'CREASE (DECREASE) IN WORKING CAPITAL 

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN WOAKII\G CAPITAL 

Increase (decrease) in current assets 
Cash 
Trust account - Lifetime membership 
Interest receivable 

· ranee Cash value of endowment lnsu 
Inventories . 
Prepaid expenses and deposlts 

Decrease (increase ) l·n current liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued expenses 
Notes payable 

1989 

$ 6,916 

2 1386 

9,302 

( 2,044) 

$ 71258 

$ 

( 

1, 912 
8,306 
1 ,056) 

217 
7 

557 

( 3,733) 
( 293) 
( 77) 

1 418 

$ 7,258 

123 
701 

61689 

$681444 

$ 6,790 

231208 

~ 291998 

1988 

$ 6, 790 

2 , 248 

$ 9,038 

($ 655) 

$ 81383 

($ 

( 

1 ,492) 
7,531 

243 

231) 
129 

( 164) 
31 

( 59) 
21395 

$ 81383 

The notes are an integra accompanying 1 Part oF the Financial statements. 
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I\OTES TO FINAI'CIAL STATBENTS 
December 31, 1989 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Maste~·s 
Men, a Department of the National Association of Free Will Baptists, hereafter 
referred to as the Department. 

GOVERNMENT - The Department operates under the auspices of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists and is governed by a Bead of Directors. 

RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWAI\CE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS - Accounts receivable are 
presented in the financial statements at the amount deemed collectible 
by management . Any provision for doubtful accounts is recognized using 
the allowance method. 

INVENTORIES - The inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, 
with cost being determined by using the first-in, first-out method. 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION - Property and equipment are presented 
in the financial statements at cost and are depreciated by the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets of 3-10 years. 

INCOME TAXES - The Department is exempt From Federal and State income taxes; 
accordingly, no provision For income taxes is made in the financial statements. 

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND ~IPMENT 

The following is a summary of property and equipment owned by the Department 
at December 31 , : 

1989 1988 Equipment and furniture 
$ 16,251 $ 14,207 Less accumulated depreciation 12,419 10,033 

Property and equipment, net 
$ 3,832 $ 4, 174 

NOTE 3 - DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred revenue consists of due~ received for future years as of December 
31, 1989 and 1988. 

NOTE 4 - NOTES PAYABLE 

The Departmer•t had notes payable summarized as follows as of December 31, : 

Note payable to First American Bank, 
Nashville,TN; interest at 9.75%; 
dated 12/19/87 payable at $210 monthly 
thru 5/19/89; unsecured 

Less current portion 

Long-term debt 
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1989 

$ 

$ 

1988 

1 ,418 

1, 418 

1,418 

RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 
r.l)TE 5 - · d 

balance is revenue deslgnate 
Tka restricted fundll ·ng as of December 31,: ,... F the fo owl 

for specific projects and 

consists o 
1989 1988 

$ 942 
Missions projects 
Lifetime Membership 

$ 1,135 
31,186 431776 

MICHAEL .JOHNSTON 
.f. d Public Accountant Cert1 1e 

$_ 441911 $ 321128 

106 N. Fifth, P.O.Box 
6ffingham, IL 62401 

1403 
Phone: (217)342-9632 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S OPINION 

The Board of Directors f the 
Department o 

The Master's Me~, ~ Free Will Baptists 
National Assoclatlon of 

Nashville, Tennessee 

's Men a Department of 
b lance sheets of The Master f' December 31' 1989 

I have audited the. a. of Free Will Baptists, as o "tures and changes 
the National Assoclatlond tatements of revenue, expendhel ars then ended. d the relate s · · for t ye 
end 1988, an l·n financial posltlon 8o rd of Directors. 1 nd changes · · 1 · t of the a in fund ba ance a the respons1b1 1 Y . 

1 
statements 

These financial statements are n opinion on these financla . . . . to express a My respons1.b1l1ty lS 
based on my audit. 

t d auditing standards. . h nerally accep e . 
accordance wlt ge ditto obtal.n reason-

! conducted my audit. in that I plan and perform the au e free of material 
Those standards requlreh h r the financial statements abr . evidence sup-

about w et e . a test as1s, . a~le assurance An ud"t includes examinlng, ~n . 1 tatements. An audlt 
mlsstatement. a ld d" losures in the flnancla s d "gnificant 
porti~g the amounts ~n t~:caccounting principle~ used S:ve~~ll financial 
also lncludes assesslng 11 as evaluating the ble 

gement ' as we . . des a reasona estimates made by mana 
1

. e that my aud1. t prov 1 . I be 1ev statement presentation. 
basis for my opinion. 

. . statements present fairly the 
forementioned flnanclal f the National Asso-

In my Oplnlon' the a Ma ter 's Men' a Department o 1988 and the results 
financial positi~ of the. t: at December 31, ~989 an~ . for the years 
ciation of Free Wlll Ba~l~~es in its financlal posltl~n principles 
of its operations and . with generally accepted accounting 
then ended, in conformity . 

· tent bas1s. applied on a consls 

Effingham, Illinois 
April 23, 1990 

Michael .Johnston 
Certified Public Accountant 

.f. d Public Accountants . t of Certl 1e 
Member,American I~stltu; Certified Public Accountants 

& Illinois Soclety o 
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Proposed 1991 Budget 
Income 

Gifts ................ 
D e • I o • e e 0 o e e o 0 • 0 e • 0 e • e e 0 o 0 e • • e 0 0 ues · · · · · · · · · · · · · ............ . 
M 

......... .............. . 
aster's Men Day ............................................... . 

National Ministries ·s·~~d~· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ....... . 
Sales . . Y · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .............. . 
ArrAcK.Ad. s~j~···· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ·· · ···· ........................ . 
Co-operative Giving.·················································· .. 
Ti I ·························· rave · · · · · · · · · · · · ............ . 
Maste;;~ ·M~~- c~·~f~~~~~~ .......................................... . 
Interest Income 

................ . ......................... 
Other ........... . 
Endowment Tr~~t· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... . 

Master's Men Dinner.··· ···································· ......... . 

Expenses 

Audit ............ . 

.......................... ....................... 

Bo kk 
................... . 

o eeping Fee . . . . . . . . . . ..................................... . 
Booth · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Confe;~~~~- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~:: ~ ~ ~ 
Cost of Sale·s· ........................................... ................. . . . . . . . . . 
D. . ............... . 

Inner · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Eqwp~~-~t· M~i~-i~~~~~~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
Insurance, Office Conte~t· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........ . 
Led h 

s ..... 
a ers ip Conference · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Office Equipment . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Payroll Taxes .................................................. . 
P 

........................ . 
ostage · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ............ . ................. 

P . ti ....................... . nn ng · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
P ti 

................ . ramo on .......................... . 
Rent & Utillti~. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ....... . 
Salan.es · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........................ 

I 
............... .......................... . 

nsurance · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ..... . 
Retireme~t · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........ . 

T I h ............... 0 ........... . 

Ieep one ······························· ··· .............. 
Tiravel .............................. . ..... ..... ......... 

Director 

$ 25,000.00 
20,000.00 

4,500.00 
7,500.00 
1,500.00 
6,000.00 

26,000.00 
2,000.00 
9, 750.00 

250.00 
6,000.00 
3,125.00 

$111,625.00 

$ 600.00 
900.00 
200.00 

7,500.00 
1,000.00 
3,250.00 

500.00 
300.00 
500.00 

1,500.00 
3,060.00 
3,000.00 

11,500.00 
2,000.00 

12,000.00 
40,000.00 

6,031.00 
1,283.10 
2,000.00 

................. 
Board ·········· ············· · ····· ··· ··· ··· ····· ···· 9,000.00 .................. 

Miscellaneous ........... ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ .· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . 3, 000. 00 
...... ······ ... ..... .... 500.00 ................... 

Endowment Trust Deposits are a . $111,625.00 
Designated disbursements to M· ~pro~~tely $1 0, 000 per year. 

$1,000 per year. ISStons reJects are approximately 
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1990 
BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE 

We closed the second decade of our ministry with nearly 1, 000 mem­
bers; over $8.1 million in assets, and; more than $4.8 million invested in 
church loans. Over the past five years, the pension fund has experienced 
an average increase of 17 .So/o. We have come a long way. We praise the 
Lord for what He has done through this department. Thank you for your 
faithful support. 

This year a much needed staff member has been added. Our Trustees 
are pleased to announce the appointment of William W. Evans as Admin­
istrative Assistant. He joins us this month, July 1990. 

Brother Evans, better known as Bill, is well known among us. A native 
of Springfield, Missouri and graduate of Free Will Baptist Bible College, he 
served as pastor for 21 years in New Hampshire, Missouri, Georgia and 
Kentucky. Brother Evans comes well qualified for this new position in our 
department. For 12 years he served as member of the Board, 10 years as 
chairman. 

One of the many duties our trustees carry out is the investment of our 
minstry's fast growing $8.1 million dollar fund . They continue to invest in 
loans to both established churches and mission churches. Currently 38% 
of the church loans ($1. 8 million) are to 26 mission churches in 14 
states . 

Present mission church loan balances are as follows: 

Alabama ........................ $164,660 North Carolina ................ 108,062 
Arizona ............................. 22,186 Ohio ............................... 180,600 
Arkansas ........................... 68,818 Oklahoma ....................... 188, 918 
California ........................ 510,048 South Carolina ................ 227,079 
Colorado ......................... 126,236 Texas ............ .................... 94,645 
Indiana ................................ 9,343 Virginia ............................. 95,69 3 
Michigan ........................... 1 0, 531 Wyoming ............ ..... ... ... ... 30,033 

$1,836,852 

Applications for mission church loans are submitted by mission boards 
or by associations. Applications for established church loans are submitted 
by the individual churches. 

As we enter our third decade there is much yet to be done. Among 
those areas of need are: 

(1) a disability plan, 
(2) an emergency assistance fund to help retired ministers and their wives 

or their widows in times of extraordinary need, 
(3) housing facilities for older adults. 

Yes, we need your continued prayers and support to continue the na­
tional ministry. But, you ought to do something on a person-to-person 
basis. I challenge you to: 
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(1) Minister to our retired pastors and their wives or pastors'widows who 
live near you. Some have serious health problems. Others face an un­
certain financial future. Learn what their needs are. Help them. Invite 
them into your home for a meal. 

(2) Pray for our aging pastors who are still ministering, some in their sev­
enties. Pray that they may have continued strength and good health. 
We have so many churches that need them. 

(3) Pray that doors of opportunity will open for our retired ministers who 
are unable to pastor full time but want to continue to serve in some 
way. 

(4) Pray that churches will open doors of service to our retired laypeople 
who want to continue serving. 

(5) Challenge your quarterly meeting, district and state association to begin 
or expand its ministry to the aging and elderly. 

And, don't forget your pastor and church staff. Enroll them in the pen­
sion plan or review what you are giving toward their retirement and make 
sure it is fair and adequate. 

Again, thank you for caring. May God grant us the best decade ever as 
we strive to obey Him in providing for those who preach and further the 
cause of Christ at home and on foreign fields. 

Herman L. Hersey 
General Director 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE OF 
TilE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Balance Shccl 

l>ccembcr 31, 1989 

1989 
Unrestricted Retirement Plant 

Assets Operations found fund 

Cash end cuh equivalents s 9,040 1,334,027 
Investments, f11r velue (note 2) 1,981,938 
Funds invested with retirement fund 63,629 
Accrued interest receiveble 29,437 
Notes receiveble from participants or the retirement 

fund end churches nnd denonun•linnal agenc1cs ol 
the Nellonal Association o f free Will llaptists (note 3) 4,844,270 

Orrice furniture, equipment, and automobiles, at cost, 

less eccumulated depreci•Lion of $54,125 (note 4) 26,859 
Total assets s 72,669 8,189,672 26,859 

Liabilities and fund llal;rnces 

Linbilihes: 

Notes pnynble s 1,000 
Accounts pnynble nnd nccrucd Cllpenscs 7,061 8,546 
Unenrned Joan orig1nnt ion fees (note 5) 81,560 
Interest benring revocnble trusts (includmg $63,629 investw 

from Unresll n:h:d Operations) 1,272,475 

TotAl linbrlities 7,061 1,363,581 
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Tol31 
All founds 

1,343,067 

1,981,938 

63,629 
29,437 

4,844,270 

26,859 

8,289,200 

1,000 

15,607 

81,560 

1,272,475 

1,370,642 

Fund bal•ncts (note 5): 

OpeiiiiOM 

Relllt~nt fund 
led 15 reserve funds [)cS1gn1 

Net ,,,est~d '" plant 

Total rund balances 

Tollll liabilities end fund b:tlances 

65,608 
6,752,780 

73,3 11 

65,608 6,826,091 

72,669 $=~== 
8,189,672 

. d Cl s in Fund Balances Statement of Fund Transacltons an tangc 

Yenr ended Deccmllcr 31, 1989 

Unrestricted Retirement 

Addttions: 
Contributions from pnr ticipnnts 

GifiJ 
Interest Income _ notes receivable 

Investment income . . 
Net reeliz.ed end unreahz.ed gants 

of investment portfolio 
forfeitures end lnte chRrges 
1\mortltalion or lo.1n origmnlion fees (note 5) 

Mt~ellaneous 

Total additions 

Deductions: 

Salaries 
F unge benefits 
Trevel and promotional 

Office supplies 

llousing 
Mmistry lo senior adults 

Occupnncy 
nonrd members expense 
Legal Rnd nuditing 

Miscellnneo11s 

l>ettrecintion 
Interest eltpense 

Wathdrawal of funds 

lnsurence 

Total expenses 

Operations 

s 
27,917 

4,8 10 

175 

32,902 

68,625 
26,662 

24,225 

I 5,797 

24 ,000 
54 

li,OGO 

13,025 
4,887 

1,807 

1,311 

191,453 

Net incrense (decrease) in fllnds for the ye.1r 

Fund belnnces, beginning of yenr • as 1estnted (note 5) 

Transfers emong funds and other changes: 

(158,551) 

55,118 

(5,632) 
To plant fund for asset acqUISition 

Enrollment and administrative fees 

Fund balance, end of year 

Operating cash flows: 

Cash received from : 
Contributions from participants 
Gifts 
Interest income - notes receivnhlc 
Investment income 
Forfeitures ond IR le chArges 
M iscelleneous 

174,673 

s 65,608 

Statement of Cash Plows 

Year ended l)ecernber 3 1, 1989 

Unrestricted 
Operations 

s 
27,917 

4,810 

175 

.,__ . g notes 10 financial staternentl'. ...,.. accompanym 
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Fund 

606,369 

507,033 

212,687 

138,989 
6,078 

15,578 

307 

1,487,041 

118,358 

264,224 

382,582 

1,104,459 

5,896,305 

(174,673) 

6,826,09 1 

Reti rement 
Pund 

606,369 

507,033 
217,295 

6,078 
307 

65.608 
6,752,780 

26,859 

26,859 

26,859 

l'lanl 

Pund 

13,554 

1),554 

( 13,554) 

34,781 

5,632 

26,859 

Plant 
fund 

73,31t 

26,859 

6,918,558 

8,289,200 

Total 

1111 funds 

606.369 
21,917 

507,033 

217,497 

I 38,989 
6,078 

15,578 
482 

1,519,943 

68,625 

26,662 

24,225 

I 5,797 

24,000 

54 

11,060 
13,025 
4 ,887 

1,807 

13,554 

118,358 

264,224 
I,J II 

587,589 

932,354 

5,986,204 

6,918,558 

Tolnl 

All Punds 

606,369 
27,917 

507,033 
222,105 

6,078 
482 



Cash paid for: 
Supplien and employees 
Interest 
Withdrawal of funds by participants 

Net opera ti ng Cllsh flows 

f inancing cash nowa: 

Net increase in revocable trusls 

Net financing cash flows 
' 

Investing casb flows: 

Purcbuea of office furniture and equipment 

I nvestmen\1: 
lncreJISe in funds invested wilh the retinnent fund 

Purchases 

Proceeds 

Notes receivable: 

New loans m11de 
Collection of notes receivable 

Net Investing cash flows 

Net dec ruse in caah and cash equivnlenls for the year 

T ransferl for enrollment a nd •dminisrr:~Live feel 

Cuh • nd cash eq ui vale nt.s: 

Beginning or year 

End or yeu 

See 1ccompanying notes to rinanc:ial stAtements. 

(196,246) 

(163,344) 

(5 ,632) 

(10,572) 

(16,204) 

(179,548) 

174,673 

13,915 

s 9,040 

Nutcs to Financial SlalcmcnlS 

.l.>eccmber 31, 1969 

(ll8,358) 
(266,678) 

952,046 

153,684 

153,684 

(1,941,018) 

1,411,738 

( 1,104,416) 

302,054 

( 1,331,642) 

(225,9 12) 

(174,673) 

1,734,612 

1,334,027 

( 196,246) 
( 118,JS8) 
(266,678) 

. 788,702 

153,684 

153,684 

(5,632) 

(IO,S72} 
(1,941,018) 

1,411,738 

(1,104,416) 

302,054 

(1,347,846) 

(405,460) 

1.748,521 

I ,343,061 

Board of Retirement nd Insurance i• operated under the auspices o f The Nationnl Association of Free Will Baptist. . The 

putpo$0 of the Board i• to maintain contributory reti rement 1ccounlS for l icensed or ordained minis t.er1 and lay e mployees 
of chun :hea, schools and denomina tional agendes of the Natiomd Association of Free Will Baptist.. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting l'olicics 
. . 

The major accounting principle!! and practice~ followed by the BoarcJ or Retirement and lnsu rnnce of The Nation•! 

J.uociation or Free Will Bnptists are l're.senlcd below to as.!ist the reader in evaluat ing the fonancilll st.G temen~ . 

fynd Accounlinz 

In order lo ensure observauce of lirnitalions and re~lfictions placed on IJ•e use or resources available to lin: Board, 

the accouuls of the Board are maiutained in accordnnce with u,., principles o r "funll accounting•. This is the 

procedure by wlr ich resources for vario us puq~s a re c l~ ss ilied for ac:coun li ng 1nd reporting purposes inlo fum.l$ 

that are in accordDnce witlt activities or <\bjec tives ~pecilied. The accompanying financial lbtenleuu ne presented 
on the acc rua I method o r accounting. 

rronl Assets and Depreciation 

Uses of operating funds for plant acquisilions are accounled for as trans fer1 to plant funds. Deprec:ialion of 
equipment is provided over ll•e eslimnted u•dul lives of the respective assets on 1 str•ight line b~s i s . 

Jncome Taxes 

The Board is exempl fron1 income lues; accordingly, no provision for income lues has been tnode in · 
accompanying rinRnci"l stalements. · 

Casl1 anll cash equivalents 

For the purpose of lire sta1e111ent or cnsh nows, I he [)Qard considers all cash on hand, demand deposit accounts 

and highly liquid debt instruments with 1 nrnturily or three months or lest to be cash and cash equivalents. 

76 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

; 
l 

' 
(5) 

I 

l 

I 

I 

t 
' \ 
I 

I 
I 

I 

Jl!vcstments 

I nts·c:~nsist or the rollowiug: 
(nves nre 

Church bomls (nt stated ~nlue) 

MutuRI ruucls 

Common stocks 
u.s. Trensury notes 

. ' 
·,· 

Following is • SUI!lllllry or noles ~eceivr~ble: 

ParticipllnL notes 
Churches and agency notes 

s 

$ 

., 
Market 

Value Cost 

61,500 61 ,500 

549,153 544,281 

1,092,684 899,.59 

118,60 I 254,63 I 

1.981,938 1,759,871 

$ 41,005 

4 ,803,265 

$ 4,844,270 

I d P ency no tes are secured by lirst 

P 
. , loot·• are secured l>y rel ire ruent account bnlnnces. Churc I an g 

.rtiC:IJlllll ~ . I t d Olletty 
, '1 perfected security inlcrcsl rn the re n e pr • 

rnortg~ge or s1m1 nr . 

· and i\ulomo i lcs 

Depreciation expense amounted to $13.554 in 1989. 

Change in Accounting d S ' l 1 91 • Accounting for 
. . f F' . I Accounting Standards Boar tatemen ' . 

In order to cortform to the proviSions o ·ma.nctn • . . uirin Loans and Costl Asso<:iated wrth 

Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Assoc:inted wrth o.n~rnali:~ :~~=lion ~ee reven ue& fronl the period .in ~hich the 
Le ses" lhe Board changed its method or recogmzmg to g d ' I fund bn1aoce at tho begrnmng of . 

I • n f the related loan- Ac:cor mg y. . 
loan was ntade to recognition over the I e o . . unt of unellrned loan originalioll fees. 

-- .. b $59 676 lo record the begmrung IIIlO 
1989 has been decreaseu Y • . · · 

Tcny A. tlil\ · 
llus..-11 E. Ne-al 
N;~ncy ~. Alkn 

Hill, Nul & Allen, P.C. 
Cerrificd ruhlic Accountants. 

Jndeoendent Auditors' Report 

Doard of Directors 
Doard o£ Reliremetit and Insurance or The 

Nationa' Association or free W.ill Daplisls: . 

' 

1\f('lliW<l<l<l ES\'Olli"l' (.('Ill (( 

761 llltlllic kury lkluk,·;mt 
5uit~ tOl 
BrtHIW\l<lll, TN l7(l27 
TEL: 61 '5/371-34115 
fAX: 61 '11377-HAA 

. . . . . d . r Retirelllent and lnsuunc:e or The Nnt ioual 
We have audiled lhe lml3t1Ce sheet of Doar o I 1989 d the rc:lnted s h•lcrneiiiS of fund 
Assoc:i~tiou (lr Free Will lln]'t i:ol~ M or l)ccelllber 3 . . . • I ll . . . ' 
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transactions and changes in fund balances and cosh nows for the . 
statements are tire responsibility of tl 

0 
d' year then ended. ntese financrnl 

re oar s management Ou 'bT · 
opinion on these financial stnt~mcrrts '-•s ·' .o· . r response r rty rs to express an 

"" eu on our nuurt. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with cnerall nc .. 
require that we pion and JJerforrn tire n ·''t tg b . y cepted audrtrng s t.nm.lards. Those standards 

· uu r o O lnrn rensonnble 11ssu bo h 
statements nrc free of material misstntenr l A d . rnnce a ut w ether the financial 

. en · n nu rt rncludes exnmin · t b · . 
supporhng the amounts nnd disclosures r'rr tl fi . I rng, on n est asls, evrdence 

re mancm statements An d't 1 · 
the accounting principles used 

8 
_, . . "' • • nu I n so rncludes assessing 

nu s1gn111CRnt est1mntes mnde b 
the overnll financial statement presentnti W bel' y nrnnngement, ns well ns evaluating 
our opinion. on. e leve llrnl our nudit provides a re.,son:rble bnsls for 

In our opinion, the finnncin l slnlemenls referred to above . . 
rinnncinl position of Board of R t' 

1 
d 

1 
present fnlrly • Ill nil mnterinl respects, the 

Baptists ns of Decenrbe~ 3 I 198e91 ren~~: "~: nsurar~ce of the National Associntion of Free Will 
• , nnu ounu transnctrons ond chn rg · ~ d b 

for the yenr t11en ended in conforn .
1 

•
11 1 

1 
es 

111 
un alnnces nnd cash nows 

u y WI ' genera ly accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in note 5 to the financ ial statements lhe B nrd I . 
loan origination fees to conform to th . . ' . o. . c rnnged Its meliJod of accounting for 
• Accounting for Nonrefundable Fe e ~~oCovlsrons of F.rnnnclnl Accounting Stnndnrds Board # 91, 

es nnu sts Assocrnted w'th 0 · · · 
Costs Associated witll Lenses. . ' 

1 
rrgrnntrng or Acquiring Loans and 

March IJ, 1990 

Proposed Budget 1991 

SAlARIES EMPLOYEE .BENEATS .......................................................... $109' 045 
HOUSING .................. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... .... 41 ,000 
TRAVEL/PR.OMOTION ..... ......................... ................. ......... ..... 38,400 
AUTO /TRA VEL/MAINITNAN CE .............................................. 32' 000 
AUTO FUND · · · · · · .. · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · .......... 3 ,500 

.. . . . .. . . .. . . . . . . .. . . . . . .. 6 000 PlANT FUND . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' 
OFFICE SUPPI iFS/EXPENSE .................. · ·· ··· ····· ··· ... ··· ... ··· ........ 16,000 
EQUIPMENT /MAINTENANCE ....... ....... · .. ······ .. ···· .. ···· .... ···· .. ··· .. 15,500 
PUBLICATIONS ............. . · · · · ·· ··· ····· ··· ··· ······ ··· · · ····· .5 ,000 
DEPARTMENT's .sHAR·E·aF.iNsuRANc f..?Rf:M .......... .. ........ ..... 6,ooo 
ALERT MINISTRIES IUM ...... .. .. .. ......... 300 

Bo 
............... 2 000 ARD EXPENSE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' 

................ .. 8 500 INSURANCE .......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·. , 
LEGAL/ A UD rriN (i .... ......................... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 4 , 000 
MISCELlANEOUS .... .... ............. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ...... .. 1 0 , 000 

............ ...................... .......... ....... .............. ..... 1.500 

TOTAL ............... $ ··································· ·············· ················· 298,745 
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sUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING 
REPORT 

Our department operates under the name of Randall House Publica­
tions. The name of Randall comes from our founding father Benjamin 
Randall. The word "house" has to do with our location . We occupy a 
50,000 square foot building on 8 1/3 acres of land. We are thankful that 

it is all paid for. 
The word "publications" stands for our ministry. Our main thrust is our 

publications. It requires a great deal of our energy. We call our curriculum 
"Lifeline Bible-based Curriculum." We believe it to be a curriculum for the 
90's. It features brand new cycles for our teens and adults. 

We do have other ministries. We promote church growth through our 
enlargement campaigns, attendance booster clubs, seminars, conferences, 
and publications. We also support a very vital youth ministry. When you 
buy our curriculum you are helping to support our ministries. 

If there is any way that we can help you and serve you better, please let 
us know. May God bless you as you serve Him. 

Yours in His service , 

Randall House Publications 
Sunday School and Church Training Department 
Dr. Roger C . Reeds, General Director 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATIONS 
Statements of Activity and Changes in Fund Balance 

Yenrs ended February 28, 1990 and 1989 

Revenues: 

Net snles: 

Curriculum 

Randall House books 

Merchandise 

Bulletrns 

Vacation B1ble School 

Bookstore 

Prrnting 

Other soles 

Net sales 

Freight and handling 

Other income 
Comnmsron income on hymnal sales (note 7) 

Gain on disposition of assets 

Expenses: 

Cost of snles: 

Inventory nt beginning of yenr 

Merchnnd1se purchases 

Deprec1ntion 
Edllorrnl nnd orrnting preparation 
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s 1,707,918 

75,461 

37,127 

87,535 

7,637 

147,696 

5,146 

78,426 

2,146,946 

80,646 

4,962 

13,001 

2,245,555 

849,532 

258,656 

47,503 

395,913 

1,723,027 

86,546 

22,037 

80,900 

10,571 

147,930 

10,436 

80,263 

2,161,710 

97,219 

4,725 

41,372 

6,591 

2,311,617 

700,037 

265,328 

48,612 

371,870 



Pnnting production 

Span1sh department 

Less inventory at end of year 

Selling, general and admmistrative: 
Administrative 

Bookstore 

flookkeeping 
Dudding 

Sales and promotion 
Shipping 

General 

Deprecin tion 

Interest expense, including finance charges 

Total expenses 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenses before Youth Dep:trtment 
Youth Department (note 6) 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenses 
Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

See 11ccompanying notes to fin~~ncial statements. 

Balance Sheets 

February 28, 1990 and 1989 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash nnd interest bearing deposits 
Accounts receivable: 

Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 

of $7,000 in 1990 and $8,000 in 1989 
Employees 11nd other 

Total receivables 

Inventory, a t lower of cost (fi rst-in, first-out method) or market 
Deferred charges 

Total current nssets 

Property, plant and equ1pment and capitalized leases (notes 2 and 3): 
Land 

Buildmg 

Pnntmg serv1ce equ1pment 

Office and administrative equipment 
Automobiles and trucks 

Less accumulated depreciatjon and amortization 

Net property, plant and equipment and capitalized lenses 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Current liabilities: 

Notes payable to bank 

Current installments of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations (note 3) 
Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 

Due to affiliated organization (note 7) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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484,664 

64,813 
2,101,081 

886,757 

1,214,324 

95,578 

110,494 

160,232 

126,924 
91,430 

162,660 

58,782 

83,878 

87,782 
977,760 

2,192,084 

53,471 
(74,118) 

(20,647) 

1,003,813 
$ 983,166 

$ 41,704 

198,834 

1,503 

200,337 

886,757 

18,365 

1, 147,163 

133,795 

639,250 

505,513 

300,143 

89,599 

1,668,300 

812,374 

855,926 

$ 2,003,089 

$ 298,57 1 

117,807 

154,403 

42,174 

105,704 

631,622 
75,763 

2.093,232 
849,532 

1,243,70() 

86,858 

99,881 
136,178 
137 ,06-l 
82,997 

166,921 

56,779 

86,741 
82,457 

935,876 

2,179,576 

132,041 

(64,345) 

67,696 
936,117 

1,003,813 

76,279 

169,696 
I, 911 

171,607 

849,532 
17,613 

1,115,031 

127,873 

638,195 

483,139 

273,243 

68,401 

1,590,851 
691,100 

899,751 

2,014,782 

150,000 

107,046 

234,673 

46,717 

105,360 

Total current linblhttes 

d b d capitalized lease obligations (note 3) 
Long·term e t on 

Fund b:JI3nCe 

eommttments (notes 4,5 and 7) 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended February 28, 1990 and 1989 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

r venues over (under) expenses 
Excess o re "le excess of revenues over (under) 

AdJ. ustments to reconc1 . . . 
h ovided by operating acllvthes expenses to net cas pr . . 

Depreciation and amortt.z.allon 
Coin on disposal of equipment 

(Increase) decrease in: 

Receivables 

Inventories 
Deferred charges 

Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued expenses 
Due from nffihnted organization 

Customer deposits 

Net cash used by operating activities 

CISh flows from Investing Activities 

Purchase of equipment 
Proceeds from disposition of equipment 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Cash flows from Financing Activities 

Proceeds from: 

Short-term debt 
Long-term debt 

Repayments of: 
Short-term debt 

Long-term debt 

h "ded (used) by f:nancing activities Net cas prov1 · 

Net decrease in cash 

Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: . 
Interest, including finance charges paid 

See . tes to financial statements. accompanytog no 

Notes to Financial Statements 

February 28, 1990 and 1989 

• 

718,659 

301,264 

983,166 

$ 2,003,089 

$ (20,647) 

131,381 

(28,730} 
(37 ,225) 

(752) 

(80,270} 

{4,543) 
344 

(40,442} 

(87 ,556) 

$ 

(87 ,556) 

148,571 

61,296 

(116,444) 

93,423 

(34,575) 

76,279 

41,704 

$=..;8;;,5=,8=94= 

643,796 

367,173 

1,003,813 

2,014,782 

67,696 

135,353 
(6,591} 

55,033 
(149,495} 

(335) 

(82,857} 

4,364 

105,360 
(145,349) 

(16,821} 

(60,529) 

18,850 

(41,679) 

103,611 

(50,000) 

(85,712) 

(32,101) 

(90,601) 

166,880 

76,279 

82,145 

The Oonrd operates under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists and is governed by a 

Board of Directors. 

(J) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Inventories . f h fi ,_. 
• be" determtned by use o t e IrS tn, . stated at the lower of cost or mllrket, With cost mg Jnventones are 

first-out method. 

81 



Pronerty. Plant and Equipment 

Property • plant and equipment are stated at cost D . . 
Expenditures for maintenance and re . . I epreclnllon IS provided using the straight-line method. 

pairs, renewa s and beuerments thnt d · · 
useful lives of assets are expensed . d ' · 

0 
not s1gna ficantly extend the 

as mcurre . 

Tncome Taxes 

The Board is exempt from Federal and state income taxes· . . . . made in the accounts. • accordmgly • no prov1s1on for ancome taxes is 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash nows the Board 'd 
highly liquid debt instruments purchased ·c'h • . consl ers all cash funds, cash bank accounts and 

h 
' WI o maturaty within three mo th f h b 1 

cas and cash equivalents. n s o l e a ance sheet date to be 

(2) Property. Plant and Equipment and Capitalized Leases (see note 3) 

Depreciation and amortization charged too at ' 1990 and $135,353 in 1989. per IOns computed on the straight-line method was $131,381 in 

Components of capitalized leases are as follows: 1990 1989 

Printing service equipment $ 227,879 205,879 
Office and administrative equipment 73,380 66,523 

301,259 272,402 
Less accumulated amortization 92,666. 56,988 

208,593 215,4 14 

(3) Long-term debt and Capitalized Lease Obligations 

A summary of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations is as follows: 

Long-term debt: 1990 

8% to 13.5% equipment obligations, maturing through 
January 1995 payable monthly $2,724 including interest 
secured by related equipment. • 

11.5% unsecured instsllment note, payable monthly 
at $466 including interest through January 1992. 

s 

10.75% to 13.875~ instsllment obligations payable to the 

Board of ~etirem~nt and Insurance of the National Association 
of Free .Well ~aptlsts, payable in monthly installments of 
$4,251 mcludmg interest, through February 1994. 

Total long-term debt 

Capitalited lease obligations: 

$96.1~ 153to 16.8% obligations under apitnl leases payable monthly 
• - see note 2 

Less current maturites or long-term debt and capital 
lease obligations 

Maturities of long-term debt and capitalited I 
Lo I d b 

e.ases are as follows · 
ng- erm e t: · 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
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$ 

$ 

61,908 

9,577 

162,115 

233,600 

185,471 

419,071 

117,807 

301,264 

62,615 
59,093 
55,342 
52,159 

4,391 

63,043 

13,799 

192,109 

268,951 

205,268 

474,219 

107,046 

367,173 

Capitslited leases: . . . 
The Board leases certain equipment under capitol leases (see note 2). The obhgataons are beang 
amort1ted by that portion of annual rentals in excess of anterest. Interest was imputed using 

rates ranging from 9.1 ~ to 16.8~ based on the lessor's amplacat rate of rerum. 

(4) 

The following is a schedule, by years, of future man1mum lease payments under capital leases 

es of february 28, 1990. 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 

Less amount representing interest 

Present value of net minimum lease payments 

$ 73,840 
73,840 
40,829 
29,368 

6,294 

224,171 

38,700 

$ ===1=8=5 ·:::47==1= 

Operating Leases 
The Board leases certain equipment under a number of operating lenses. Rent expense under such 

operating leases amounted to $66,944 for the year ended February 28, 1990. 
Minimum annual rentnls under noncancelable operating lenses are as follows: 

$ 61,061 
20,649 

6,387 
2,913 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 

91,010 

(5) Pension 
The Board participates in the master pension plan of the Board of Retirement and Insurance of the National 

Association or Free WiJI Baptists. The plan is contributory and in matched up to a maximum of 5% of 
compensation. Employees with two years of service may participate. Pension expenses amounted to $21,973 
in 1990 and $17,690 in 1989. The pension plan is a defined contribution plan. Under the plan, on account is 
maintained for each participant and upon retirement the partic1p~nt con either receive a lump-sum distribution 

(6) 

(7) 

or purchase one of several types of annuity contracts. 

Youth Department 
The purpose of the Youth Department of the Free Will Dnptist Sunday School Board is to provide 
ministraes and services to youth and youth workers of the Association. The following is a summary of 

the Department's activities: 

Revenue from conferences and related services 

Expenditures for conferences and related services 

General and administrative expenses 

Total expenses 

Excess of expenses over revenue 

$ _ __:.=.:..:..~ 

$.====~= 
Agreement with Affiliated Organization to Distribule Hymnals 

The Board luis ngreed to warehouse ond distribute hymnnls for the Executive Do:~rd of the Nntionnl 
Association of Free Will Baptists. Further, the Boord will anvo1ce the customer, collect funds and rem1t 
such collections, net of commisions or $.795 per hymnal sold, to the Executive Boord. As of February 28, 
1990 the Board was warehousing approximately 35,500 hymnals with an estimated replacement value of 

$315,000. The following summarizes the transactions under thiS agreement as of Febrcary 28, 1990. 
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Tcrr)' A I hll 
Rus:.cll F· Neal 
N.onq• <; Alkn 

Amount due to Executive Board at beginning of period 
Sales of hymnnls 

Less commissions earned 

Less remittances made to the Executive Board 

Amount due to Executive Bonrd at end o f period 

Hill, Neal & All~n, P.C. 
Certified Public Accoumanrs 

Year ended 

February 28, 

1990 

s 105,360 

148,345 

(13,001) 
(135,000) 

s 105,704 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Board of Directors 
Sunday School and Church Training Board 

and Randall House Publications 

Since 

Incept ion 

585,326 

(54,622) 
(425,000) 

105,704 

Br~ncwood Exccuuv~ Ctnt~r 

76 I Old I hcko1ry Boulevard 
~UII~ 101 
Urcntw•><xl. IN 17027 
TEl bl'5/377-1~1!'5 
FAX 615/377-34tl8 

We have audited the balance sheets o f Sunday School and Church T raining Board and Randall House 

Publications as o f February 28, 1990 and 1989, 1nd tho related statements of activity and changes in 

fu nd balances and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the re~ponsibility 
of the Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in 1ccordance with generally 1ccepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the 1udits to obtain reasonable 1ssurance about whether the financial 

statements Ire free of material misslltemenl. An audit includes examcnmg, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts 1nd disclosures in the financ1al sta tements. An aud1t also includes assessmg the 

accounting principles used a11d signific1nt es11m1tes made by management, as well IS evaluating the 

overall fin1ncial statement presenlltion. We believe tha t our 1udit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In our opinion, the fi nancial statements referred to 1bove present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of Sunday School and Church T raining Board and Randall House Publications as of 

Februa ry 28, 1990 and 1989, and the results of its activity 1nd chnnges in fund balances and cash flows 
for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

April 26, 1990 
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BUDGET FOR 1991 

REVENUES 
Curriculum 

Sunday School 
C.T.S. 
Spanish 

Discount to Bookstores 

Other Sales 
RHP Books 
Hymnals 
Merchandise 
Vacation Bible School 
Printing 
Bulletins 
Miscellaneous Sales 

Other Income 
Postage & Freight 
Youth Ministries 
Miscellaneous Income 

TOTAL ALL REVENUES 

EXPENSES 
Cost of Sales - Outside Purchases 

Curriculum 
Merchandise 
Bulletins 
Vacation Bible School 
Hymnals 
Randall House Books 
Miscellaneous 

Inventory Increase 

Cost of Printing Preparation 
Cost of Printing Production 
Cost of Editorial 
Cost of Spanish 

TOTAL COST OF SALES 
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$ 2,195,210.00 
98,060.00 
44,000 00 

$ 2,337,270.00 
350,000.00 

$ 1 ,987,270.00 

;i ,., 80,000.00 
80,000.00 

140,000.00 
25,000.00 

6,000.00 
90,000.00 
80,000.00 

$ 501,000.00 

$ 80,000.00 
47,000.00 
10,000.00 

$ 137,000.00 
$ 2,625,270.00 

$ 16,000.00 
100,000.00 

74,000.00 
21 ,000.00 
72,000.00 
18,000.00 
20,000.00 

$ 321,000.00 
(40,000.00) 

$ 281,000.00 

$ 162,212.00 
597,174.00 
194,145.00 

52,120.00 

$ 1,286,651.00 



I 
: ; 

GENERAL EXPENSES 
Youth Division 
Sales Division 
Administrative 
Bookkeeping 

. ·Shipping · 
Building 
Genera! 

,. 

COST OF PRINTING 
Editorial 

Salaries 
Travel 
Housing and Utilities 
ACA 

·Supplies 
Equipment Rental 

· ; . Royalties 
Writer's Fees · 
Retirement 

. . Insurance 
Postage 
Curriculum Development 
Telephone 
Miscellaneous 

Preparation 
Salaries 
Travel 
Supplies 
Equipment Rental 
Art Services 
Free Lance Layout 

.. Equipment Maintenance 
Outside Typesetting 
Postage 

. .Telephone 
.... · 'RCA · .. . 

Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 
• I • • • • 

. , :-. 

'. Productjon 
Salaries 
.Travel . 
Equipment Rental 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 132,800.00 
118,000.00 
. 98,300.00 
181,040.00 

$ 

$ 

. 168,532.00 
144,420.00 
495,527.00 1 

• 1,338,619.00 1 

103,645.00 
.. ·5,000.00 
10,000.00 
. 4,500.00 

. 1,000.00 
. '4,000.00 

6,000.00 
34,000.00 
3,000.00 

. 8,000.00 
1,000.00 
8,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

194,145.00 

97,712.00 
'·1,000.00 
7,000.00 

12,000.00 
. ·. 7,500.00 

7,000.00 
, 2,000.00 

5,000.00 
1,000.00 

'1,000.00 
9,000.00 
1,000.00 
9,000.00 
2,000.00 

162,212.00 

158,674.00 
2,000.00 
2,000.00 

! 
l 
i 

t 
I 
f 

[ 

i 

~ 

Negatives 
Plates 
Ink 
Stock 
Outside Printing 
Color Separation 

· Equipment Maintenance 
Telephone 
Supplies 
Insurance 
ACA 
Retirement 
Miscellaneous 

. . 

COST OF OPERATIONS . 
Administration 

Salaries 
Housing and Utilities 
Travel 
Supplies .. · 

. Equipment Maintenance 
Equipment Rental 
Postage 
Telephone 
ACA 
Insurance .. 
Retirement · 

. · Miscellaneous 

Sales· and Promotion 
·Salaries 
Travel 
Supplies 
Advertising 
Promotion 

· ·Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

. ~ 

Bookkeeping and Order 
Salaries 

· ... Travel 
Supplies 
Equipment Rental 
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' . 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

7,000.00 
5,000.00 
7,000.00 

150,000.00 
175,000.00 

12,000.00 
18,000.00 

1,000.00 
18,000.00 
15,000.00 
12,000.00 

4,500.00 
10,000.00 

597,174.00 

.. . 

53 ,600.00 
·14,400.00 

9,000.00 
. 3,000.00 

1,200.00 
800.00 
500.00 

1,200.00 
9,800.00 
2,800.00 

·. 2,000.00 
2,000.00 

98,300.00 
' ' ' ;; 
' 

59,800.00 
15,000.00 

1,000.00 
: 8,000.00 
. ·. 9,000.00 
10,000.00 

1,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,200.00 

. 7,000.00 
4,00.00 

118,000.00 

112,040.00 
1,000.00 
5,000.00 
3,000.00 

' • 
I 

. I 
I 
'I 

I I 
! ·r 
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i 

j ' ~ 
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6 ,000.00 Equipment Maintenance 15,000.00 Translation 1 ,000.00 Postage 
5 ,000.00 Miscellaneous 

$ 52,120.00 Telephone 
16,000.00 RCA 

9 ,000.00 Building $ 52,520.00 Retirement 
2 ,000.00 Salaries 

1,800.00 Insurance 
12,000.00 Travel 7 ,000.00 Miscellaneous 1,000.00 Supplies 

1,000.00 $ 181,040.00 Equipment Rental 
3 ,000.00 Shipping 

Equipment Maintenance 
4,000.00 Salaries $ 73,032.00 Building Maintenance 

10,000.00 Freight and Postage 60,000.00 Building Improvements 
30,000.00 Travel 

4,000.00 Utilities 
20,000.00 Supplies 

10,000.00 Building Insurance 
600.00 Equipment Rental 3,000.00 Telephone 

4 ,000.00 Equipment Maintenance 2,500.00 RCA 
1,500.00 Telephone 

1,000.00 Retirement 
7 ,000.00 FICA 

6,500.00 Insurance 
2,000.00 Retirement 

3 ,000.00 Miscellaneous 
$ 144,420.00 Insurance 

4 ,500.00 Miscellaneous 1,000.00 General 
$ 7 ,000.00 $ 168,532.00 Taxes 
12,000.00 Board Travel 
10,000.00 Youth 

Legal and Auditing 
50,000.00 Salaries $ 58,000.00 Interest Expense 
10,000.00 Travel 

10,000.00 Miscellaneous 
140,000.00 Supplies 

500.00 Depreciation . . 
160,000.00 NYC '91 

25,000.00 Reduction of Capital Obhgabons 
106,527.00 Truth and Peace '91 18,000.00 Working Capital 

$ 495,527.00 
YET '91 

2 ,500.00 Postage 
1,000.00 

$ 2,625,270.00 
Telephone 

1,000.00 TOTAL ALL REVENUES 
$ 2 ,625,270.00 

RCA 
5,500.00 TOTAL ALL EXPENSES Retirement 
1,800.00 Insurance 
7,500.00 Miscellaneous 
2,000.00 

Spanish 
$ 132,800.00 

Salaries $ 27,520.00 Travel 
1,000.00 Equipment Rental 2 ,000.00 Translation 
3,000.00 Postage 
1,000.00 Telephone 
1,600.00 Supplies 

800.00 RCA 
3 ,000.00 Retirement 
1,200.00 Insurance 
4,000.00 
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Greetings from your Board of Foreign Missions, your foreign missionar­
ies and the members of our home team. We are glad to labor together 
with God and you in sending the good news of salvation around the world. 

Good News from Abroad 
Our missionaries are winning souls, establishing churches, training 

Christian leaders and showing Christian compassion in the nine countries 
where we work. Although we have faced trials and opposition, we rejoice 
as we recall the blessings of the Lord in the last year. More than 700 peo­
ple turned to God through our ministry overseas in 1989. 

In spite of the turbulent events which occurred last year in Panama our 
missionaries reported 236 conversions. Thirty-six students are studying in 
the Bible institute this year. Our Panamanian brethren are taking the initia· 
live in planting churches in those states in the republic which have no Free Will Baptist churches. 

The Brazilian Association of Free Will Baptists selected a national to 
serve as director of their Central Bible College in Jaboticabal. Besides this 
central school, local Bible institutes are operating in three other cities. 

This past May the Ivory Coast Bible Institute graduated its first class of 
eight students. Four of these young preachers have already received calls to churches. 

Also in Cote d 'lvoire our medical team is meeting great needs through 
the clinic and hospital at Doropo. Last year they treated 11 ,016 patients. 
Each of these received a gospel witness and a number of patients were 
converted resulting in new villages being reached. 

The Cuban government has lifted restrictions against holding religious 
services in homes. As a result, our Cuban brothers have begun 15 new 
missions in the homes of believers. Pray that the government will revise its 
prohibition against building new churches. 

Roll Call Sunday 1990 found more than 7, 000 people worshipping in 
our sister churches overseas. For additional statistics see Figure 1. 

Thanks to you, Advance Celebration gifts are benefiting our ministry in several ways: 

1 7 new missionaries have been sent to the field. 
7 church buildings and one chapel have been built or are 

under construction in seven countries. 
3 Bible institutes have been assisted, including complete fund­

ing for two buildings. 

9 projects for evangelistic tools and Bible institute equipment 
have been completed in five countries. 

Our board appointed six new missionaries last year. In addition, we are 
grateful that the Aycocks have returned to Brazil and the Crosbys have 
begun language study in Spain. 

This summer five young people are serving as student missionary in­terns. 

FOREIGN MISSIONS BOARD REPORT 
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Fig. 1 Free Will Baptist Overseas Ministries Status of As of January 1 , 1990 

1989 
Licensed 

Organized Mission 1989 
Baptisms 

Missionaries 
Bible 

worn Converts 
Assigned 1o Ordained and lay 

Sludenls Churches Prtathars lns111utes Each Field PaSlors Fit I' 

Brazil 20 3 13 4 53 9 4 70 50 

Cuba 10 4 1 4 15 15 * • 

France 15 1 2 4 9** 10** 

India 2 11 6 3 16 44 94 65 

Cilte d'lvoire 35 2 23 1 9 11 40 217 16 

Japan 14 4 6 7 8 4 12 5 

Panama 6 3 19 1 21 5 9 236 42 

Spain 13 7 1 16 2 1 8 

Uruguay 7 2 9 1 6 5 4 52 14 

TOTAlS 112 36 89 9 119 75 121 698 202 

• Cuba-Unavatlable at press ltme h rch not avaJ/able • "Franc&-Siatistics for Rennes c u 

Fig. 2 Sources of Income for 1989 

4 Designated to 
Missionary Accounts 

$3,031,850 

General 
Fund 

$317,846 Undesig. 
Coop. 

$27,386 
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Interest 
Income 
$79,776 
,////////////.4 

Designated 
"Where 

Needed" 
or 

"Deficit 
Accounts " 
$59,732 

tl2?1???22l??lb 

Av. Sunday 
Ahendance 

579 

1,000 app . 

134** 

1,506 

1,786 

193 

545 

94 

204 

6,005 
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Good News from Home 

We are most grateful to God and to you for a record-breaking income of 
$3,633,252 during 1989! This enabled us to reach our budget for the 
first time in 12 years. 

Because of your generosity and the belt-tightening efforts of our 
missionaries and staff we were able to begin the new decade with all mis­
sionary accounts in the black! This is the first time in 17 years we have 
wiped out all missionary account deficits! 

To answer questions which our people often ask about our financial op­
eration, we have inserted graphs to show how our income is received and 
disbursed. Figure 2 shows the sources of our income. Figure 3 gives a 
breakdown of our $3,202,358 in expenditures last year. 

Figure 4 shows how funds designated for a missionary's ministry are 
spent. Please note that every penny goes into that missionary's account. 

We congratulate the 22 states or regional associations which exceeded 
their suggested goals for 1989: 

Arkansas, Arizona, California, Colorado, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, 
lllinois, Kansas, Maryland, Missouri, Nebraska, New Mexico, North­
west Association, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, 
Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, and West Virginia. 

Our records list 1, 688 churches which sent at least one offering for for­
eign missions during 1989. This is an increase of 113 over 1988. 

One hundred eleven churches gave over $5,000 each last year. This 
makes 15 more churches on this roll of generous supporters than we had 
in 1988. A complete list of all these generous congregations is posted at 
the foreign missions booth. 

This year we are listing the top ten churches in per capita giving to for­
eign missions. This list was compiled from the 197 churches that sent us a 
report of their Sunday school attendance for August, September and Oc­
tober of 1989. We used these figures along with our records of income. 
Listed below are the top ten churches along with their per capita givi.Ylg: 

1. Statesboro FWB Church, Statesboro, Ga. - $449.89 
2. Liberty FVJB Church, Mannford, Okla. - $248.13 
3. Tippett's Chapel FWB Church, Clayton, N.C. - $216.30 
4. Sherwood Forest FWB Church, New Bern, N.C. - $197.34 
5. Horton Heights FWB Church, Nashville, Tenn.- $189.30 
6. Faith FWB Church, Carrollton, Va. - $165.13 
7 . Fulton FWB Church, Fulton, Miss. - $156.37 
8. New Hope FWB Church, Ina, Ill. - $149.57 
9 . Cross Timbers FWB Church, Nashville, Tenn.- $146.10 

10. First FWB Church, Darlington, S.C.- $134.50 

Again this year we wish to especially honor those churches that gave 
more than $10,000 to foreign missions: 

1. Central FWB Church, Royal Oak, Mich.- $29,358 
2. Cofer's Chapel FWB Church, Nashville, Tenn. - $24,994 
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FWB Church Kinston, N.C. - $23,644 
3. Bethel . FWB Ch~rch Kingsport, Tenn. - $22,950 
4. Fello~ship FWB Church, 'Nashville, Tenn. - $22,1$41 332 
5. Done s~nCh l 'Cllro Church Clayton, N.C. - 20, 
6 T ett s ape rvvu , 

. ~~~ Church, Ina, Ill. - $19,369 427 

~:First FWB Ch:~i~~;~h O~~~h!~~·City, Okla. - $17,828 
90. SFo~ththeFWBrn OChurch Windso;, Va. - $15,68285 

1 at ' · N c $15 4 
11: First FWB CFWhurBchC,hRale~g~shi~d City,' Tenn. - $14,923 
12 Bethlehem urc , $14 570 
13. First FWB Church, Henderson, Tex. - v· , ~ -$14 040 

14. Good Springs FWB Church, PleasantB tew, NeCnn~ $14 011 
· t rt 1 ro Church New ern, · · ' 

15 Sherwood Fores rvvu ' $13 377 
16: First ~B Chur:;~;BLoC~st ~r~=~h~:: Tenn.'_ $13,149 
17. Cross Ttmbers rvv urc.' $12 780 
18 First FWB Church, Russellvtlle, Ark. - G ' $12 463 
19: Statesboro FWB Church, Statesb~r$1.2 ~·ss , 
20. First FWB Church, Moore, Okla. $ i2 152 
21. First FWB Church, Northport, Ala. - c·ty Ill - $12 033 
22. Johnston City FWB Church, Johnston1210Z1. , 
23. First FWB Church, Savannah, Ga. -·~ S C - $11 824 
24. Horse Branch FWB Chur~h •. ~urbevt ~ · V~ ~ $11 670 
25. Gateway FWB Church, Vtrg.mta ~a~ $11 6o3 ' 
26. Prospect FWB Church, ErwU:, N. · $i 1 370 
27. Trinity FWB Church, Greenvtlle, N .C: - , - $11 358 
28. Horton Heights fWB Church, N~shvtlle, Tenn. , 
29. Tupelo FWB Church, Tupelo, Mtss$. l1$~1~47 
30. First FWB Church, Monett, Mo. - , 788 
31. Liberty FWB Church, Durham, N.C. - $10760 
32. First FWB Church, Darlington, SEfs-~10te Calif. - $10,329 
33. Sherwood Forest FWB ~hurcNh, C - o$1r~094 
34 P Ll 11B Church Wtlson, . · ' . 

. eace r vv ' f F w·tl Baptist organtZa-. . d network o ree l 
The agencies of our nabonWl e ak a contribution. For example, 

tions are interdependent. Eac~~n~ ~· t e~ible College and our other col­
our department looks to F:ee a~~s end upon Randall House for our 
leges for well-trained candtdat~si WThe bepartment of Retirement and In­
Spanish Sunday school ~atent s~ide for missionary retirement. Th~ Exec­
surance manages the fun s se . a ted funds to us. We cooperate Wtth our 
utive Department channels de~tgna d fn missionary conferences. We 
Home Missions Departmenft lhn co~ u~~s g established by home missions 
are thankful to see some 0 t e c urc 
now helping to send missi~naries ove~se~ and tools for missionaries and 

The Master's Men provide some oo 
'bl . b ·1d· churches overseas. 

assist when poss1 e m Ul 10~ . C f on made an outstanding con-
The Woman's National AlDuhary othnven hl lied $223 483 into for-

. . · 1989 as ey c anne , 11 tribution to our n:'m1stt:Y 10 k d t gether to promote the Laura Be e 
eign missions. Th1s spnng we wor e 0 
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Barnard World Missions Offering for foreign missions. The women are 
also progressing toward their goal of $50,000 in the Eunice Edwards fund 
to help in church building programs overseas. In addition, they continue to 
provide many household items through the provision closet. 

The World Missions Offering for foreign missions, which is received the 
last Sunday in April each year, is a significant pillar of our support founda­
tion. In addition, we still depend heavily upon faith promise support and 
gifts from church budgets. 

For 1991 we submit a budget of $4,129,859. As you know, we are not 
like independent and parachurch organizations which appeal to a wide 
range of denominations. We must trust God to move the hearts of our 
Free Will Baptist people to finance our outreach to the unreached. 

Some Challenges We Face 

As we look toward the year 2000 and beyond we face unprecedented 
challenges. Thirteen missionaries will have reached their 65th birthday by 
the turn of the century. Recognizing this and seeing great needs on each 
field , our overseas staff has asked for 83 more missionaries in the next 
few years. In addition, we cannot ignore the 12,000 people groups which 
are waiting for a foreign missionary to establish the first church among 
them. 

As the iron curtain falls it exposes millions of unreached people to the 
potential of evangelism. We cannot turn a deaf ear to those who are cry­
ing, "Come over and help us. " 

Besides these overseas opportunities, our board is responsible for en­
lightening our stateside constituency on the divine missionary mandate. 
We estimate that more than 800 of our churches gave nothing to Free 
Will Baptist Foreign Missions last year. We look forward to the day when 
these will be great commission churches. 

The rapidly maturing Free Will Baptist churches abroad will soon be 
seeking our partnership in sending out their own "foreign missionaries. " 
We must join hands in a united witness that the world may believe in 
Christ. 

In view of these challenges we appeal to you to pray the Lord of the 
harvest to send laborers into His harvest. 

Many people have contributed to bring the ministry of Free Will Baptist 
Foreign Missions to its present position. We honor the pioneers and those 
who laid the foundation for our present outreach. 

We are depending on the Lord to build a great ministry for His glory. If 
any of our dedicated staff members can help you teach and promote mis­
sions in your church, please contact us. 

Respectfully submitted, 

R. Eugene Waddell 
General Director 
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Expenditures for 1989 
~ Miss Travel to/from Fields & Shipping 

Miss. Medical & Insurance . $123,&14 
$1&5,351 

Info. & Promo. 
Materials & Equip. 

$202,038 

Misc. Projects 
$3&,189 

Missionary Housing & 
Utilities (Field) 

$231,993 

Miss. 
Salary 
& Cost 

of 
living 
$ .31 

~ 
Miss. 

~i'!!l Supp. 
Min. 

~1!!11. $ .13 

Miss. 
Auto 
and 

Trans. 

Missionary 
Salaries & Cost of 

Living 
$83&,&48 

Miss. 

$254,051 

Supporting 
Ministries 
$342,09& Missionary 

Furniture & 
Appliances Miss. Children's 

Education 
$73,404 

$27,155 

The Missionary Dollar 
(How it Is Spent) 

Lang. 
Study 

& 
Fum. 

& 
App1. 
$ .02 

Auto 
& 

Miss. Trans. 
Med. $ .09 
& Ins. 
$ .0& . 
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Furlough 
& Travel 
to/from 

Info. & $ ·13 

Housing Promo. 
& Mat. 

MK 
Edu. 
$ .03 

Util. Eq~ip. 

Fig. 4 

Soc. 
Sec. 

& 
Ret. 
$ .08 



BOARD 01' FOREIGN MISSIONS 01' THE E•f"'"nses: 179,052 154,977 

lnformahonal and promotional 
179,052 

60,705 45,652 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

T,.vel and board 
60,705 

356,944 348,079 
356,944 

Dalancc Sheet Admonostrahve 2,624,709 50,005 2,674, 714 2,535,841 

Mossoonanes 8,483 8,483 

December 3 1, 1989 Los• on do~J'O•nl of pl~nt assets 14,420 14,410 24,137 

(with comparative tolllls for 1988) 
J)eprecoRtiOII 

Total expenses 
596,701 2,624,709 50,005 22,903 3,294,318 3,108,fo86 

1989 1988 Excess (deficiency) of support 
(163,725) 168,800 45,134 (22,903) 27,306 24,561 

Operating- and revenue over expenses 
16,522 40,303 15,742 

Unrestricted lund bAlances, beginnong of year 23,781 

nnd Total Tol.al Trnnsfers nmong funds nnd other changes: 27,461 
Restricted Plant All All To plnnt fund for nsset acquisition (27,461) 

36,083 
Assets Funds Fund Funds Funds Repayment of debt 

(36,083) 

Cosh nnd cosh equivalents (note 2) $ 1,420,961 1,420,961 1,155,020 
lnforrnntoonnl nnd promotional material 

213,934 (213,934) 
nnd equipment transfers (note 6) 

Accrued interest receivable 8,605 8,605 4,005 New mossoonnries 
45,134 (45,1 34) 

(24,740) 
Other nssels 22,583 22,583 15,524 l)isposotoon of plnnt nssets l4,740 

32,423 67,609 .Jtl,103 
Equipment, ot cost, less accumulated dcprecinlion 

Fund b.1lnncu, end of year s 35,186 
of $54, 177 in 1989 (note 4) 118,005 118,005 52,605 

Due from plant fund (note 3) 85,582 

Total assets s I ,537, 73 I 118,005 
Statement of Cash Flows 

I ,570,154 I ,2l7 ,154 
Year ended December 3 I, 1989 

Liabilities and Fund Balances (with comparative lot.:als for 1988) 

Notes payable to bank s 36,083 1989 
19118 

Accounts payable nnd accrued expenses 55,658 55,658 60,643 Opcratin!! 
Tot.:al rota! 

Due to operating fund (note 3) 85,582 Restricted 
All 

Missionaries ADVANCE Plant All 
Restncted deferred revenue (note 5): 

Unrestricted Accounts C.mi!J!ign Fund Funds Funds 
M issionnry occounts 1,223,918 1,223,918 883,711 
ADVANCE cnmpoign 222,969 222,969 206,414 Qperalln& cash nows: 

Cuh received from: 3,544.388 1,145.476 
s 344,112 3,088,582 111,694 

Tolnl liabililies 1,502,545 85,582 1,502,545 1,186,851 Contributions 80,t44 ~9.614 

Investment mcome 80,144 
4,120 1,657 

Fund balances: Other 4,120 

Unrestricted 35,186 35,186 23,781 (392,149) (2,793,509) (50,005) (3,235,663) (3.063,948) 
Cnsh paid to suppliers and employees (2,662) (2,855) 

Net invested in plant 32,423 32,42J 16,522 (2,662) 
Interest pnid 

295,073 61,689 (2,662) 390,327 331,944 
Totnl fund balances 35,186 32,423 67,609 40,303 Net operating cash Oows 36,227 

Totnl liabilities and fund balances $ 1,537,731 118,005 I ,570,154 1,227,154 hnancong cash nows: (36,083) (36,083) (12,000) 
Rerayment of debl 10,000 
Proceeds from debt (2,000) (36,083) (36,083) 

Commitments (note 7) Net linnncing cash nows 

lnveshn& cash nows: 

Statement or Support and Revenue, Expenses, Equtpment: (113,043) (113,043) (19,793) 

Transfers Among Funds and Changes in Fund Oalances Purchases of equopment 24,740 24,740 
Proceeds from disJ'OSotions 

(19,793) Year ended December 3t, 1989 (88,303) (88,303) 
Net investmg cash nows 

(with companllve tobls fur 1988) 
Net incrense (decrease) in cash 

295,073 61,689 (127 ,048) 265,941 310.151 
36,227 

1989 1988 and cash equivalents 
127,048 Opera ling 229,714 (295,07)) (61,689) 

Rectasstficahons 
Restricted TOO! I Tntnl 

Missionariea ADVANCE Plant All All Cash and cash equivnlent.s: 1,155,020 II<H,869 
1,155,020 

Unrestricted Begonntng of yenr Accounts ~•mi!J!ign Fund Funds funds 1,420,961 1.155,020 
Support and revenue: s 1,420,961 End of yenr 

Contnbultons (note In) s 364, 112 2,793,509 95,139 3,232,760 3,079,609 
Investment income 84,744 84,744 49,981 
Other 4,120 4,120 3,657 

Total support nnd revenue 432,976 2,793,509 95,139 3,321,624 3.133,247 

See accompanying notes to financial s tatements. See accompanying notes lo financial st.:alemcnls. 
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Notes to Pinancial Statements 

December 31, 1989 

Board of Foreign Missions is operated under the auspices of The Notional Association of Free Will Baptists. 

(I) 

(2) 

Summary or Significant Accounting Policies 

The major accounting principles nod practices followed by the Boord of Foreign Missions of National 
Association of Free Will Baptists are presented below to assist the reader in evaluating the financinl 

s tatements. The financial statements are presented in accordance with standards recommended in • Audits 
of Certain Nonprofit Orgnniz..1tions" an Audit and Accounting Guide (American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants). 

Fund Accounting 

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions plnced on the use of resources available to the 
Bonrd, the accounts o f the Board are maintained in accordance with the principles of "fund accOilnting". 
This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are clnssified for accounting and reporting 
purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified. 

The assets, liabilities and fund balances of the Board are reported in self-balancing fund groups as 
follows: 

a. Operating funds -such funds include unrestricted funds available for support 

of Board operations and rest ricted funds for support of missions. Unrestricted 
funds are reported as revenue in the year rece1ved or accrued. Restricted 

funds are recorded as additions to deferred revenue. Such restricted operating 
funds are recorded as revenues during the period they are expended. 

b. Plant funds - such funds represent resources restricted for plant acquisitions 
and funds expended for plant. 

Plonl Assets and Depreciation 

Uses of operating funds for plant acquisitions are accounted for as lrnnsfers to plant funds. Depreciation 

of equipment is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on n Glraight line basis. 

Income Taxes 

The Board is exempt from income taxes; accordingly, no prov1sion for income taxes has been made in 
accompanying financial st.1tements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the sl:~tement of cash nows, the Board considers all cash on deposit, money market fund~ 
and highly liqu1d debt inslnnnenls with a maturity of three months or Jess to be c.1sh ;;nd cash equivalent~ . 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consists of lhe following: 

Non-interest bearing deposits with 
linancial institutions 

Interest bearing deposits with financial 
$ 2,728 

insti tutions 997,921 
Interest bearings deposits on account with the 

Board of Retirement and Insurance of the 

National Association of Free Will Baptists 420,312 

s 1,420,961 
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(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

Jotcr- runtJ Borrowing . 
· · he urchnse of new eqmpmcnl. o..~ d $85 582 from the operating fund to fnclhl:~le I p 

The plnnl fund has vurrowe ' 

Plant founds 

Or Plnnl fund assets is as follows: A summary • 

Office furniure and equipment 

Cameras and projectors 

Automobiles 
Computer equipment 

Less necumulated depreciation 

Net invested in plnnt 

$ 38,929 
38,669 
27,762 
66,822 

172,182 
54,177 

$ 118,005 
======== 

. . ted on the straighl-line method nmounted lo $14,420 in 
Depreclntlon expense, compu 

1989. 

Restricted Dererred Revenue 

Changes in restricted deferred revenue is ns follows: 

Balance, beginning of ye.1r 

Conlribulions 

Trnnsfers 

Funds available 
Expenses and campaign expenditures 

Oalnnce, end of year 

s 

s 

Missionary 

Accounts 

883,711 
3,088,582 

45,134 

4,017,427 
2,793,509 

1,223,9 I 8 

Inrormation and Promotional Material and Equipment Transfers 

ADVANCE 
Came;!ign 

206,414 
I 11,694 
(45, 134) 

272,974 
50,005 

222,969 

Toea I 

I ,090,125 
3,200,276 

4,290,401 
2,843,514 

I ,446,887 

. counts to reimburse the unrestricted fund for informallon 
The Board charges n fee against the foreign field ac ~ from the restricted operating fund to the 
service production expenses. 

unrestricted operating fund. 

Commitments 

Pension 

These fees nre presented as trnns ers 

d I ce of lhe Nni!OIH'II . I of lhe Oo:~rd of Retirement an nsuran 
The Board participntes in ll.e master penSIOn p on II full time employees and is contributory. The 

. 1 B · 1 The pl~n covers o 
Association of Free Wll nplls s. p ,, . expenses nmounled lo $57,685. 
policy is to fund pension cosl accn•ed. ens•on 

d the Inn participant values are equal to or Jess . 
The pension pl:m is a delined conlnbullon pl~n. Un e r d dp 'I • al prior service of past service bench!" 

The•e IS no unfun e nc u:m. thnn lhe accumulaled vnlue of assels. 
nnd no unfunded value of accrued plnn benefits. 
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lrrr)' A It ill 
Ru~'-C'U F.. Nt'.11 
Nnocr S. 1\llrn 

lliU.Ncal & Allrn,P.C. 
Certifi«l ruhlic· Accountant« 

lndcocntlcnt Auditors' Report on Supplcmcnlary Data 

Board of Directors 

Board of Foreign M issiuus of The 

National Association of Free Will Unptists: 

l'r4•n•"'"wl E.l(t'ntfH't' c ·<·mc·r 

1111 01.11 .,, ""' r l!.•uh·,., t1 
~lllh' llll 
lli(IIIIA't•'<l .. , N l]!lli 
ll:l: C•l~>l\i]. HK1 
I·A:\· M'i/177- l·IIIH 

Our report on our audit of lhe hasic liunnciqlatntente;lta of Oonrd of Foreign Missions of the Nulional 
Associ11tion uf f-ree Will ORJ>Iisls for 1989 appenta on pnge 1. That audit was nn1de for the pnr1>ose 
of forrning ~n opinion on ll1e bnsic fiunncinl llntemenls tnken as a whole. Tho schedule to combine 
unrestricted fund support aoul revenue ao.U additions to restricted deferred revenue, schedule or 
unresrricled fund expense$, nrnl 8cloednle of restriclc:d fund expenses are presented for the pllrJ>O•e llf 
••lditional nttolysis "'"' nre nol 11 rctruit·ed part of I he basic liuancinlllatcments. Such in rornoution h;~s 
been subjected lo lhe nudilin~ J>rocednret nppliell in the 1udit of lho basic finnnciaJ slaten1cnls nnd, in 
our opinion, is fairly $laled in nil JMierinl rcspecls in relation to the basic finQm:ial stalemenls lakco1 
•• a whole. 

.. 

March I, 1990 

Schedule to Combine Unrestricted Fund Support and 
Revenue and Additions to Restricted Deferred Revenue 

Year ended December 31, 1989 

(With comparalive ligures for 1988) 

1989 

Restricted 
Missionary ADVANCE 

Unrestricted Account, 

. I 

' 19118 
Tolal Tolal 
All All 

Contributions 
Investment income 
Olher 

$ 344,112 
84,744 

Campaign 

3,088,582 II J ,694 

Funds Funds 

3,544,388 3,345,476 
84,744 49,981 

·.: Total support and revenue 

4,120 

$ 432,976 3,088,582 II J ,694 

Schedule of Unrestricted Fund E~penses 

December 31, 1989 

(with comparative figures for 1988) 

Unrestricted fund expenses 

Informational and promotional: 

Video and audio visual $ 
Films 

Heartbeat 

100 

4,120 

3,633,252 

. .. 

1,297 

41,259 

3,657 

3,399,114 

3,215 
157 

37 ,S 17 

Postage 
Datil processing 
Publicity 
Telephone 
Dues 
p~per supplies 

Retreat 
Tracts and books . 

Tr•vel .~d bonrd: . 
Department auto 

Board members 

HonorAriums 

Oepnrtment travel 
TrDvelers' insurance 

Administrative: 
Salaries 
Housing 

Social security 

Retirement 
Hospitalization 

Auditing 

Office rent 
Office equipment 

Maintenance of office equipment 
Office supplies 
Miscellaneous 

Employer pnyroll taxes 

Total unrestricted fund expenses 

... ... 

Schedule of Restricted Fu~d Expenses 

December 31, 1989 

. Restricted fund expenses · 

Missionaries- Foreign Fields 

Ivory coast 

France 
India 
Brazil 

Japan 
Panama ·· 

Spain 

Uruguny 

Summer missionaries 

Short-term missionaries 
Other projects 

:! 

Special investigative commiHee 

. . 
(with c.omparative figures ror 1988) 

! . .,. 

! .; 

.... 
• J 

. ') 
.. 
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$ 821,703 
371,509 
65,920 

360,447 
430,908 

156,423 
352,367 
170,913 
23,529 

1,025 . 
38,765 

2,793,509 

53,187 
16, 140 
27,350 
10,250 

555 
3, 769 

1, 192 
I ,645 

154,977 

2,411 

II ,519 
350 

30,1132 
540 

45,652 

I &5.9115 
57,420 

22,523 

5,740 

29,039 

·' 3,&00 
25,612 

I, 167 

3,517 
5,002 

8,214 

348,079 

54&,708 

802,050 

363,322 
81,607 

324,068 
443,222 

131,753 
246,236 

167,557 
8 4U 
' 

12,300 
20,574 

15,4\0 

2,616,521 

i ~ 
\ 

,. 
!' 

I 
; ., •. 
J. . 

\ I 
I : 
i; ! 
:; I 
·I ! ' I 

. ~ : 



Maintenance fees transferred to unrestricted funds 
information service production (213,934) 

45,134 

( 198,726 
Funds transferred from advance campaign for new massionaries 

Net missionary expenses 2,624,709 2,417,7!15 

ADVANCE campaign expenditures: 

General expenses 

Project expenses 
1,218 

93,921 
7,266 

110,780 

95,139 J 18,046 
Funds transferred to missionary accounts for new missionaries (45,134) 

Net ADVANCE campaign expenses 

Totnl restricted fund expenses $ 

50,005 

2,674, 714 

118,046 

2,535,8 II 

f\\~tli~~ 
I !1-""-~~~-- II ill, NcaJ & Allen, r.c 

Ccnificd l'uhh~ Al·lnuna;uu~ 

lc<l') II lloll 
Ru~<rll ~ Nr~t 
N• "'> ., ,,u,•n 

Jndepcndenl Auditors' Rcoorl 

Doard of Directors 
Doard of Foreign Miss ions of The 

National Association of Free WiU Uaplists: 

HH 111\\t'l'tfl ~t·t Ult\l' ( nlln 

761 ()ld I ht kt>l) t~•nln.11ol 
'UIIt• IOl 
111<' 111\llk~l. IN 171'17 
1 n M o;nn HI"\ 
I AX C' 11/\77. H HI\ 

We hnve nudiled lhe hnlnnre ~heel o f lloA!d of l"oreign Missions of The Nntionnl Associnlion of l"rcc 
Will llnpli<l< n~ of IJeccmher Jl, 1989, nnlllhc oclnlcd slnlenoenls of "'l'tX>rl nnd revenue, cxpno<c<, 
transfers nmong fooKls and chnngcs in fund bnlanccs nnd cosh nows for the yeM lhcn ended. These 
financial slatemenls are the rc~ponsibilily of the Uo.ud's management. Our responsibilily is co 

express a'l opinion on these financralsiAtemen!l based on our 1udrt. Informacion for the year ended 

December J I, 1988 is presenled for comp~rllivc purposes only and wu extr•cted from the financial 
slalemenls presenled by fund for lha~ year, on which we expres1ed nn unqualified opinion dalcd 
february 10, 1989. 

We conducted our andre in accordance wilh generally accepted •udihng stant!Jards. Tiaose slandnrds 

require thai we plan and I'Crform t11e audrl to oblain reasonable assurance about whetlter lhe financral 

statements are free of malerral nnsslalement . An 1ud1t includes examining, on a tesl basis, evidence 

sopporling lhe nrnounls and disclosures in the financial slalements. An audic also includes ossessrng 
the accounling principles used nnd sagnificanl eslimales made by management, as well as evaluating 

the overall financial slnlement pre~cnlallon. We believe lhnl our andre provides a reasonable l>.uas for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, lhe financial <tnlcnrcnls referred to nbove present fnorly, in all matcrinl respccls, lhc 
financial position of llo:ud uf Fcncr~n Missrons of lho Nnlionnl Association of l"rcc Will llnplosts ns 

of December 31, 1989, and lhe supporl nnd revenue, e~penses, lrnnsfcrs nmo:1g funds nnd changes in 
fund bnlnnccs nnd cnsh lluws ltu lhc ycnr lhcn ended in conforrnily wilh genernlly ncccpced 
nccounring I'' inciples . 

March I, 1990 
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1991 Budget Of Expense 

foreign Beids• 
Africa 
Brazil 
France 
India 
Japan 
Panama 
Spain 
Uruguay . 
Short-term missio~anes 
Student missionaries 
Cassette tape ministry 
Retired missionaries 
Miscellaneous projects 

Foreign Belds Total 
•Budgets for foreign expenditures ~re tuation 
subject to change where extreme uc 
In the value of the dollar occurs. 

Informational and Promotional Fund 
Video 
Audiovisuals, films 
Heartbeat magazine 
Postage 
Data Processing 
Publicity Materials 
Telephone 
Services and Dues 
Paper Supplies 
Books and Subscriptions . 
Retreat and Debriefing Sessions 
Information/Promotion Secretary 

Total . 
Less Information and Promotion 

Transfers 
Information and Promotion Total 

Trnyel and Board 
Department Auto 
Department Travel 
Traveler's Insurance 
Board Members 
Board Members' Overseas Travel 
Honorariums 

Travel and Board Total 

Administrative 
Salaries 
Administrative Housing 
Administrative Soc. Sec. 
Health Insurance 
Retirement 
Auditing 
Office Rent 
Maintenance of Office Equipment 
Office Supplies 
Miscellaneous 
Employer Payroll Taxes 

Administrative Total 

Total Regular Foreign Missions Budget 
Advance Celebration Budget 
Total Regular and Advance Budgets 

$ 982,129.00 
590,385.00 
385,129.00 
114,561.00 
536,535.00 
148,003.00 
520,650.00 
150,151.00 

10,000.00 
20,000.00 

2,800.00 
7,704.00 

27 200.00 

12,850.00 
8,100.00 

39,400.00 
65,000.00 
25,000.00 
58,530.00 
12,000.00 

160.00 
4,500.00 
2,000.00 
2,000.00 

21.271.00 
250,811.00 

(233,531.00) 
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6,000.00 
37,500.00 

600.00 
15,000.00 

5,000.00 
750.00 

206,759.00 
57,420.00 
26,983.00 
50,789.00 

4,920.00 
3,500.00 

32,000.00 
1,000.00 
3,000.00 
5,000.00 

11,111 00 

$ 3,495,24 7.00 

17,280.00 

64,850.00 

$ 402,482.00 

3,979,859.00 
150.000.00 

$4,129,859.00 



State 

Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 
Aorida · 
Georgia 
Hawau 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Montana 
Nebraska 
New Mexico 
Northeast Association 
Northwest Association 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
OkJahoma 
Pennsylvania 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
Virgin Islands 
West Virginia 
Miscellaneous 
Totals 

1991 State Goals 
With 1989 Comparisons 

1989 Goal 

$ 185,000 
4,500 

173,000 
55,500 

3,500 
85,000 

145,000 
2,500 

750 
102,000 
38,000 

1,750 
15,000 
88,000 

500 
15,000 

140,000 
62,000 

240,000 
1,000 
1,100 

500 
5,000 
5,000 

410,000 
125,000 
380,000 

1,750 
195,000 
440,000 
100,000 
115,000 

3,000 
72,500 
67,564 

$3,279,414 

1989 Actual 

$ 163,734 
5,197 

193,028 
75,240 
4,506 

72,917 
167,983 

3,618 
976 

112,187 
32,498 

1,529 
15,225 
84,588 

55 
19,613 

131,701 
56,445 

262,993 
703 

1,109 
776 

4,125 
7,176 

467,740 
125,786 
390,739 

2,511 
175,060 
506,597 
114,928 
124,654 

2,846 
76,871 

110,937 
$3,516,591 

Advance Celebration Project 
Total Regular and Advance Celebration Project 

1991 Goal 

$ 185,000 
6,200 

218,000 
85,000 

5,000 
95,000 

185,000 
4,000 
1,200 

125,000 
43,000 

2,000 
19,000 
90,000 

300 
23,000 

150,000 
66,000 

308,000 
1,000 
1,500 
1,000 
5,200 
7,500 

513,000 
142,000 
439,000 

2,900 
214,000 
568,000 
129,000 
155,000 

3,000 
85,000 

102,659 
$3,979,859 

150,000 
$4,129,859 

Northeast Association: 
Maine Northwest Association: 
New Hampshire 
Rhode Island 
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Alaska 
Oregon 
Washington 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE REPORT 

free Will Baptist Bible College has an illustrious history. Some of the 
choicest young people in our denomination have enrolled here. And, 
wherever they have gone, here at home or to foreign fields, they have 
made a dynamic impact for the Lord. Much of the progress in our 
churches that we have seen through the past several decades has been 
made by and through these faithful alumni. 

Among the most loyal, faithful and sacrificial servants in the denomina­
tion are the faculty and staff members of the college. They are dedicated, 
hard working and well trained- both professionally and experientially-to 
serve here at the college. 

One of the greatest assets of the denomination is the faculty and staff of 
the college. There has been little recognition given to these present day 
heroes of the faith. These loyal servants of the Lord have not sought for 
the praise of man. They have been content to do their duty and to wait for 
the Lord's "well done. " 

Enrollment for this year was 302. (This is down from 319 for Last year.) 
When 14 graduate students are added in for 1989-90, the total is 316 
students. We are working harder than ever to recruit students. Neil 
Gilliland is full-time as the Director of Recruitment. All traveling groups are 
for the primary purpose of student recruitment. 

The enrollment management research project has been completed. 
There are presently 16,000+ Free Will Baptist young people in high 
school- with approximately 4 ,000 of these graduating each year. Over 
half of these (2,000+) go on to college. There are about 500 students in 
Free Will Baptist colleges at the present time. 

The results of this study show that the areas of teacher education and 
business should be expanded here at the college and that we cultivate 
more sources of financial aid. A number of helpful approaches and "mar­
keting strategies" were suggested by the project. 

One thing is clear-the need for Christian workers has never been 
greater than it is today. Many churches have great difficulty in replacing 
their pastor, when the former one has resigned. It is not uncommon for a 
church to go for months without a pastor as they search for one. 

Another striking example is our own foreign missions personnel. Our 
situation is similar to that of many evangelical groups. Ken Sidey, in a 
news feature in Moody Monthly, stated, "Thirty thousand missionaries 
will retire from service by 1994. Only about 5 , 000 candidates are now in 
line to replace them." As you perhaps know, surveys have shown that 
about 7 5% of present missionaries received some or all of their formal 
training in a Bible college. 

Churches have a hard time finding second men, music directors, Chris­
tian education and youth directors, Christian day school teachers and on 
and on. The hour is late, but our daily prayer should be to the Lord of the 
harvest that He would send forth laborers into the whitened harvest fields . 

Permit me a personal word. This completes 38 years at Free Will Bap-
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tist Bible College for my wife d 
opportunity to serve the Lord ~er:f~r ~e both want to say thanks for the 
~orne capacity for another year this ·lf~ years. While I will be here in 
hves have been invested in th h d ~1 

e my last formal report 0 
at the college. Numbered amo~ ~ore s of students who have been. he~ 
who have. been trained here. g se students are our own four children 

liv::.ee Will ~aptist Bible College will always continue to be a part of our 

Respectfully submitted 

Charles A. Thigpen 
President 

, 

1989-90 Registration Report 
Enrollment Breakdowns 

By State 

Alabama 
Arkansas 
California 
Delaware 
Rorida 
Georgia 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Kansas 

15 
19 
6 
3 

11 
20 
24 

9 
2 

Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 

14 
2 

10 
5 

23 
1 

19 
11 

South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
West Virginia 

3 Foreign 

14 
59 
8 
9 
3 

12 

(The student body represents 23 states and 6 fore· tgn countries.) 

By Classification 

Freshmen ................. 89 
Sophomores ............. 79 t,::~ors .................... 44 

Specl
.al mors. . . . . . . . . . 60 

.................... 30 .......... . 

Others 

Male . . . . . . . . . . 168 F ... ........ . 
emale ................... 134 

Ministerial . . . . . . . . 69 M ....... . 
issionary ................ 35 

~ee Will Baptist. .... 286 
ther .... ................... 16 

s· 1 M mg ~ · · · · · · · · · · · ......... 223 
amed .................... 79 

106 

Enrollment Summary 1989-90 
Undergraduate Enrollment ...... First Semester .................................... 269 

Additional Enrollment ....... Second Semester ................................... 2 7 

Total Enrollment ...... First and Second Semesters ......... ... .............. 296 

Summer 1989 Enrollment Not Already Counted ............................... 6 

Total Undergraduate Enrollment. ...................................................... 302 

Graduate School Enrollment For 1989-90 ....................................... ... 14 
Master of Ministry (Not counted elsewhere} 

Total Annual Enrollment (Undergraduate and Graduate} ..................... 316 

Financial Aid Report 
Loans Issued ................................ 199 .............................. $154,020.17 
Student Workers........................... 7 6 .................................. 99,964.7 6 
Scholarship Recipients .................. 192 .................................. 57, 157.51 

Welch Library 
Total books, bound volumes, microforms, sound recordings, video-cas-
settes, instructional materials, etc ................................................ 53,853 

The May 31, 1990, financial report and proposed budget of the 
Bible College will be distributed at the National Association. The 
audit report will be presented as the college's official report. 
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1990-91 
Gift Income Budget 

Alabama................ $ 
Arizona · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 55 000.00 
Arkansa~ .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... 3:000.00 
C 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 so 
ahfornia · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , 0. 00 

C I d 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 0 000 00 

o ora o . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , . 
Connecticut.···················· ······························· .1, 000. 00 
D I 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 00 
eaware....... ····························· , 0.00 

A 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200 

ortda · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·.... . 00 
G 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 000 
eorgia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , . 00 

Hawaii · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ····· .. SO 000 00 .. . . . . . . . . . . . . ' . 
Idaho. · ··· ··· · ·· ···· ····· ······ ········· ··· ··· ·· ..... 2,000.00 
Ill. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500 00 

lnots · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 
Indiana · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 8, 000.00 
I 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 0 
owa........... ·························· , 00.00 

K 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 300 

ansas . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·... . 00 
Kentucky . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... 2, 000. 00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 
Louisiana · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , 000.00 
M I 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200 00 
a.ry and . . . . . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . 

M. h' . ... ... .. . . .. ... . . . 10 000 00 tc tgan . . . . . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . , . 
Mississippi .......... ~~~~~········ · ···· · ·······················26,000.00 
M. .. . . . . .. . . . . . . 26 000 00 tssouri. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35 
Nebraska · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , 000.00 

••••••••••••••• • ••• 0 • • • • 1 0 
Nevada · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·. , 00.00 
N J 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 300 00 
ew ersey . . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 

N M .. . .. . .. . .. . . . . 1 000 00 ew exico · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , . 
N rth 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 000 0 
o Carolina · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ' . 0 

Ohio · ······ · · · · · · ·· ······· · · ····· · · · · ···· ··· · · .. 125 000.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' 
Okl h . . . . . . . . . . . 17 000 0 a oma · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , . 0 
South Car~·~~~· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2 5, 000. 00 
South Dakota · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ······.53, 000.00 
T •. •. • .. •. • .... • • ... • •. 1 000 • ennessee · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . , . 00 
T . • .... •. • .... •. • •. •. • .. •. •. 175 0 
•exas ......... ························ , 00.00 
Vermont · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .15 000.00 

••••••••••••• 0 •• 0 • 0 • ' 

V. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 000 00 trgtrua . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . 
W hin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 000 00 as . gton . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . 
West Virginia............ ·· ···· · ····· ··· · ··· ··· ····· ··· .. 2,000.00 
W.N.A.C .................................... 10,000.00 
C 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 00 
anada ·························· 0.00 

0 
••••• 0 0 •••• 0 • • • • • • • • ' 

Virgin Islands · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .1, 000.00 
Oth ·················· 10 er . . . . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·. , 00. 00 
AJ 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65 0 
umni ··· ··· ·· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ··· ·· ··. 00.00 

• • • • • • • • 0 •• 0 •• 0 0 • • • • • • • , 

Designated Gifts · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .1 0, 000.00 
Special Gifts · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 30,000.00 
Total ......... ······ · ·· · ·· · · ·· ·· ··· ·· · ··· · ·· · ·· · ·· ·· ·· .20,000.00 

$925,000.00 
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Free Will Baptist Bible College 

1989-90 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

?C ,~,:.~ 
l ~ II ill, Nttl & AJJ~n. P.C. 

'kmo A H•ll 
R.u~ell E l'al 
t..lncy S All~n 

Ceruf1ed Public AccounL1nts 

Independent Audilors' Rem 

The Doard of Trustees 
Free WiU Baptist Dible College: 

1!1~ Ill wc>n<J 1-•rCUII\'C ( <'lilt I 

761 01<.1 lhdu•ry II""'-"'·"'' 
SUII( IOJ 
Brentwood. TN l7ll17 
TEL 615/JH ·HR~ 

FAX 6lYJ77·HRR 

We have audited the balance sheet of the Free Will Baptist Bible College u of May 31, 1990, 1nd 

the related st.atemenlS of ch:mges 1n fund b:1l1nces •nd current unrestncted funds revenue, 

expenditures :md other changes for the year then ended. These financu1l statemenlS are the 

respons1b1lity o f the College"s ITUin:lgement. Our responsibility is to expres.s 1n op1mon on these 

financ1al statemenlS hued on our aud1t. 

We conducted our aud1t in 1tcord.1nce with generally •ccepted 1ud1tang sl.1ndards. Those s1.1nd:~rds 
requ1re that we pl1n and perform the audit to obt.a an rusonable usur:~nce about whether the fin:ancio l 

statemenlS are free of mater1al masst.atement. An audit Includes eumining, on a test bu1s, e v1dence 

supporting the amounlS and d1sclosure.s an the financial statemenlS. An audit also includes assessang 

the accounting prmciples used and significant estim:~tes made by m:~nogement, as well :1s ev:~lu:ttlng 

the overall financial statement presen1.1tion. We believe th:~t our audit provides a reuon:able b:~sis 

for our opinion. 

In o ur opinion, the financial st.atemenlS referred to above present fairly, in all nuteri:~l res peelS, the 

financial position of the Free Will Baptist Bible College as of May 31, 1990, and the ch:~nges in fund 

balances and current unrestncted funds revenues, expenditures and other changes for the year then 

ended an conformity With generally accepted accountang principles. 

As d1scussed in Note 6 to the financial st:Jtements, in order to conform to the provisions of 

"StAtement of Fanonci:~IAccounting Sltlndards No. 87, Employers' Accounting for Pensions " the 
College changed ils method of 11ccount1ng for pension coslS in 1990 . 

June 26, 1990 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Balance Sheet 
May 31, 1990 

(with comparative figures for 1989) 1989 
Liabilities and Fund Balances 

1990 
Assets 1990 1989 

Current funds: -- current fund~. Unrestricted: $ 324.000 215.000 
Unrestnct . ank 40,760 Cash and interest bearing d~sits $ 27,012 36.~ Note payable to b 27.933 

Investments at fair value at ale of gift 3.000 nts payable . 24.205 29.580 
3.~ 

Prepaid e::~tpenses 20,228 2.471 
Accdou ts I credit balances and deposlts 56.392 68.493 

Accounts receivable: 
Stu en sal . 9,857 10.325 

Students accounts 7,974 13.691 
~~f~~~ re!~~es _ summer school and other 

Staff and others 131130 14,464 
Due from plant funds 25,070 - Due to other funds: 18.657 24.240 
Note receivable- plant fund 353,626 396,749 Current restricted funds 35,937 35.120 

Loan funds 41195 10,800 
Total accounts receivable 399,800 ·124,904 Agency funds 58 ,789 70,160 

Inventories 25,394 23.768 (25,742) 56.645 
Fund balance (deficit) 475.434 490,963 

Total unrestricted funds 475,434 490,963 Total unrestricted funds 

Restricted: Restricted: 18,657 24.240 
Due from current unrestricted funds 18,657 24,240 Fund balances - private 18,657 24.240 

Total restricted funds 181657 241240 Total restricted funds 
$ 494,091 515.203 

Total current funds $ Total current funds 494,091 515.203 

Loan funds : Loan funds: s 51107 4,707 

Interest bearing d~sits s 140.524 1181189 Accrued mterest 176,507 167 ,880 
Loans to students. ess allowance for doubtful Notes payable to individuals 3401190 312.503 

loans of $15,000 in 1990 and $301000 in 1989 345.343 331.781 Fund balances - private 
Due from current unrestricted funds 35.937 35.120 s 521.804 485.090 

Total loan funds $ Total loan funds 521.804 485,090 

Endowment funds : Endowment funds: 
Interest bearing deposits $ 184,808 1771027 Fund balances: $ 47,466 46.466 
Note receivable- plant funds 1,968 Endowment 85.867 851867 

Quasi-endowment I unrestricted 511475 46,662 
Scholarship, restricted s 184,808 1781995 

Total endowment funds $ 184,808 1781995_ Total endowment funds 

Annuity funds: Annuity funds: $ 9,820 14.400 
Interest bearing deposits $ 55,000 55,00l Annuity payable 45,180 401600 

Fund balance s 55,000 55.000 
Total annuity funds s 55,000 55,000 Total annuity funds -

Plant funds: Plant funds: 
Interest bearing deposits held by Trustee Due to other funds: s 353,626 396,749 

under lease obligation s !36,150 101,176 Note payable - current unrestricted funds 1,968 
Note payable- endowment funds 25 ,070 -

Investment in plant: Due to current unrestricted funds 1301000 190,000 
Land 373,069 373,069 Lease obli~tion 117,534 128,774 
Buildings and improvements 3,547,876 3,5391614 Notes paye le 
Ea,uipment 815,604 809,178 

Fund balances: Li rary books 94,586 93,324_ 

4.815,185 
Une::~tpendcd 41341,055 4,1981870 

Total investment in plant 4,831,135 Net investment in plant 41341,055 4,198,870 
Total fund balances s 4,967,285 4,916,361 

Total plant funds s 4 ,967,285 4.916,36_!.. Total plant funds 

Agency funds: Agency funds: $ 8,921 11,643 
Cash s 4,726 431 Funds held in custody for others 
Due from current unrestricted fund 4,195 10,800 
Accounts receivable 412 $ 8,921 11,643 

Total agency funds $ 8,921 11 643 Total agency funds 
I -
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Statement of Changes in Fund Dalances 

Yeu ended May, 31, 1990 

Plant Funds 

Net 
Current Funds Endowment Annuity Investment 

Unrestncted Res tric ted Loan F~ Funds Funds Unexpended In Plant ---Revenues and olher add111ons: -
Unrestncted current funds revenues s 1,896,911 
G1fts 

19,883 IJ, 2,780 156,427 
Endowment income 4,337 
Investment mcome - restncted 

8.~ 9,394 
Interest on student loons 

29,0.11 
Add1tions to !llant f:acilit1es from current funds 15,950 
Reurement of andebtedness , 1nclud•ng $1,968 

from current funds 116,332 
Adjustment of computed annuity t..:~biluy 4,580 

Total revenues and other add111ons 1,896,911 24,220 51.1 2,780 4 ,580 165,821 132.282 

Expenditures and other deductions: 

Educauonol and general expenduures I ,471,538 21,092 
Auxiliary enterpnses expenduures 428,723 5,678 
Prov1s1on for doubtful notes 

Reurement of Indebtedness 114,364 
Expons1on cnmpa1gn expense and promotion 59,312 
Interest expense 61,279 
Other 

Total expenditures and other deductions I ,900,261 26,770 234,955 

Transfers among funds and olher changes-

additions (deductions): 

Mandatory transfers for debt service (79,037) 79,037 
Reclassification of gifts among funds (3 ,033) 3,033 

Change in funds held by trustee under lease 
obligations (9,903) 9,903 

Toll! I transfers and olher changes (79,037) 69,134 9,903 

Net increase (decrease) for the yeu (82,387) (5,583) 27.Eli 5,813 4,580 142,185 

Fund balance at beginning of year 56,645 24,240 3122 - 178,995 40,600 4,198 ,870 

Fund b:~lance (deficit) at end of yeu $ (25,742) I 8,657 )40. :9j - I 84 ,808 45 , 180 4,341 ,055 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

SLatcment of Current Unrestricted Funds Revenues. 
Expenditures and Other. Changes 

Yur ended M•y 31, 1990 

(with comparative figures for 1989) 

Revenues: 

Tuition 1nd fees 
Gifts 
Endowment inct>me 
Investment income 
Sales and services of auxitia.ry enterprises 
Other sources 

Total revenues 

Ex pend itures: 
Educational and general: 

Jnstrucrion 
Academic support 
Student services 

Operation and mainrenanc:e of plant 
I nsti ruriona I support 

Total educational 1nd general expendilures 

Mandalory transfers for debt service 

TotAl educarion•l and scnertl 

Au~ti li ary enterprises: 
E~tpcndi tures 
Mandato.ry transfers for debt service 

Total auxiliary enterprises 

Total expenditures and ma!ldiltory transfers 

$ 

1990 

625,144 
664,502 

13,307 
35,605 

550,732 
7,621 

1,896,911 

SJ7,99S 
I 17, J08 
168,477 
211,923 
456,035 

1,471,538 

3,929 

1,475,467 

428,723 
75,108 

503,831 

1,979,298 

Revenues over (under) expenditures tnd other eha~tges s (82,387) 
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1989 -
664,489 
637,519 

11 ,9ffi 
40,410 

605,510 
6,8!9 

1,966,827 

493,SSO 
104,85! 
u 1,311 
20~. tS3 
431,801 

1,4 JS.680 

22.252 

1,437,932 

432.06) 
82;tSS 

· .. Sl4,218 

J,952, UO 

14,671 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE 'COLLEGE 
Proposed Budget 

·199G-91 
, ., . 

Current Unrestricted Funds 
Revenues: 

Tuition and fees 
·Gifts: 

Together Campaign 
Less Building Fund . . 
Net Operating Gifts 

Endowment income 
Investment income 

... 

$925.000 
150,000 

$775,000 

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 
Graduate school ·· 
Other sources 

Total revenues 

Expcndi t ures: 
Education and general: 

Instruction 
Academic support 
Student sctviccs 

.. 
'. 

Operation and maintenance of plant 
Institutional support 

Total education and general expenditures 

Auxiliary enterprises: ·· 
Expenditures 

Graduate school 
Contingency fund 

,, 

Total expenditures 

This infonnation is not part of the auditor's report. 

. .. 
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$629,000 

775,000 
11.000 
33,000 

503,500 
7,000 

22,500 
1,981,000 

532,203 
118,995 
185,312 
219,050 
454.547 

1,510,107 

455,268 

15,625 
-0-

$1,981,000 
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"Together We Can" Gift Report 
June 1, 1989-May 31, 1990 

Alabama ........................... $52,392.57 Ohio ..................................... 13,504.01 
Arizona ................................. 1,461.54 Oklahoma ........................... 20,518.81 
Arkansas ............................. 29,030.71 South Carolina ................... 53,900.48 
California .............................. 9,457.81 Tennessee ......................... 151,619.60 
Colorado .................................... 60.00 Texas ..................................... 9,154.65 
Connecticut .......................... 7,450.00 Vermont ..................................... 10.00 
Delaware ................................... 25.00 Virginia ............................... 19,888.27 
Aorida ................................. 15,041.49 Washington .......................... 1,029.87 
Georgia ............................... 60,900.51 
Hawaii ..................................... 255.53 

West Virginia ....................... 4,570.10 
Canada ....................................... 9850 

Idaho ........................................ 355.06 WNAC .................................. 5,250.24 
Illinois ................................. 23,416.19 
Indiana .................................. 3,461.95 
Iowa ......................................... 180.00 
Kansas ...................................... 694.06 
Kentucky ............................ 13,555.01 
Maryland .............................. 2,789.62 
Michigan ............................. 20,238.61 
Mississippi ......................... 15,473.38 
Missouri .............................. 35,141.78 
Nebraska ................................. 190.00 

Virgin Islands ......................... 600.00 
College Family ................... 23,013.48 
Matching Gifts .................. .42,033.79 
Foreign Missionaries .......... 2,898.87 
Other (Misc.) ........................ 1 ,447.35 

Tar AL ............................ $761, 109.90 

Alumni Project ................... 10,485.00 
Estates/Trusts .................. .45,399.43 

Nevada .................................... 200.00 
New Mexico .............................. 78.71 Grand Total .................... $816,994.33 
North Carolina ................ 119,722.35 

This infonnation is not part of the auditor's report. 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
3606 West End Avenue 
Nashville, Tennessee 37205 
615/383-1340 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION 

This year your fWB Foundation celebrates its tenth anniversary. W~ are 
now ministering to our denomination from the local church to the national 
ministries throu~h endowments, annuities and trusts. ~d, dozens of. our 
people have made their Wills and remembered the Lord s work as a direct 
result of the Foundation ministry. 

This department only exists for the purpose of teaching stewardship ~nd 
assisting all our ministries through planned giving gifts. Yearly.' the gt~s 
channeled through endowments increase. I believe that God Will use this 
newest department to impact the future of missions and other outreach 
programs beyond our greatest expectations. . 

The Foundation now manages 14 endowments m e·<cess of $139,000 
and 11 trusts in excess of a quarter million dollars. Total assets exceed 
$450,000. . .. 

I'm grateful for you who are becoming a part of th1s nurustry through 
your gifts. I encourage you to consider giving through our ~ndowrnent 
program. Our local, state and national ministries need continumg support 
to effectively carry out God's command to proclaim the gospel message, 
to edify believers and to equip them for service. . 

Refer to the FWB Foundation page which appears monthly m Con tact 
magazine for current information and stewardship opportunities through 
planned giving. 

Herman L. Hersey 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC. 

Balance Sheets 

Dcccmbcr31, 1989and 1988 

Assets 

Cash in bank 

Interest bearing accounts with the Board o f Retirement and Insurance 

of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Land held for investment, at contributed value 

Accrued interest income 

Tot.al assets 

Liabilities and fund Balances 

Liabilities: 

Interest-bear ing revocable trusts 

G1ft annuity paynble 

Accrued earnings payable 

Accrued and withheld payroll t.axes 

Total liabillt1es 
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s===== 

s 252,:149 
6,000 
3,865 

229 

262,443 

113.349 

6.000 
5,454 

124 ,803 



Fund balances: 
Opera lions 

Endowment funds 

Total fund b:~lances 

Total liabilities nnd fund b:~lances 

Statement of Support and Revenue, Expenses 
and Changes in Fund Dalances 

Year ended December 31, 1989 

(wiUt compar:~tive totals for 1988) 

Support :1nd revenue: 

Contributions 

Services fees charged against trust eanungs 

(Interest income of $25,898 net of eamjngs paid 
to revocable trusts beneliciaries of $13,670) 

Endowment income 
Miscellaneous mcome 

Total support and revenue 

Expenses: 

Salaries 

Social security and retirement 

Travel and promotion 

Office expense 

Publtcations 

Training and education 

Legal and uuditing 
Equipment 

Miscellaneous 

Other 

Total expenses 

Excess of support and revenues over 

expenses 

Fund balanc.: at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

s 

Operations 

9,240 

12,228 
354 

1,232 

23,054 

4,422 

684 

3,342 

1,441 

155 
1,612 

500 
299 

214 

12,669 

10,385 

4,768 

$ 15,153 
==~;, 
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1989 

Endowments 

14,306 

14,306 

14,306 

128,698 

143,004 

s 

15,15:1 

143,004 

158, 157 

420,600 

Total 
All Funds 

23,546 

12,228 
354 

1,232 

37,360 

4,422 

684 

3,342 

1,441 

155 
1,612 

500 
299 
214 

12,669 

24,691 

133,466 

158,157 

4,768 
128,698 

133,466 

258,269 

1988 
Total 

All Funds 

47,953 

5,76:1 
326 

54,042 

5,656 

838 
1,271 

1,018 

II 
556 
400 

18 

7,638 

17,406 

36,636 

96,830 

133,466 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 1989 

(with comparative totals for 1988) 

1989 1988 

Qper:~ting c:~sh flows: 

Cash recetved from: 

Contributions 

Interest income 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees 

Interest paid on revoe:~ble trusts 
Payments mnde to endowment beneliciaries 
Pnyments mode to annuitunts 

Net operating cash flow 

Financing cash flows: 

Proceeds from additions to revocable trusts 

Rep:~yment of revocable trusts 

Net financing cash flow 

Investing cash flows : 

Deposits made wtth the Bo:~rd of Retirement and 

Insurance of the National Association of 

Free Will Baptists 

Wuhdrnwals from funds invested with the Donrd of 

s 

Retirement and Insurance of the Nalion~tl Association 

of Free Will Baptists 

Net investing cnsh flow 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Beginning of year 

End of ye:~r 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

O&lCrations Endcwmcnts 

9,240 

17,085 

( 12,440) 
(13,670) 

(448) 

(233) 

139,000 

139,000 

(140,620) 

(140,620) 

( 1,853) 

3,884 

s 2,031 

14,306 
10,289 

( 10,289) 

14,306 

( 14,306) 

( 14,306) 

Noles to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Total Total 

All funds 

23,546 
27,374 

( 12,440) 
(13,670) 
( 10,289) 

(448) 

14,073 

139,000 

139,000 

(154,926) 

(154,926) 

(1,853) 

3,884 

2,031 

All runds 

47,953 

20,371 

{9,768) 
(9,735) 
(6,834) 

( 4<18) 

41,539 

10,000 
(157,000) 

(147 ,000) 

(48,641) 

157,000 

108,359 

2,898 

986 

3,884 

Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. is operated under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Bapllsts. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The major accounting principles and practices followed by the Free Will Bnptist Foundation, Inc. are 

presented below to assist the reader in evaluating the ftnnncial statements. The financial statements nre 

presented in accordance with standards recommended in ·Audits of Certain Nonprofit Organizations, • an 

Audit and Accounting Guide (Americnn Institute of Certilied Public Accountants). 
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Fund Accounting 

In order to ensure observance of hmitallons and restrictions p lnced on Lhe use of resources nvailable to Lhe 

Foundntion, the accounts are maintnined in accordance wilh the principles of • fund accounting". This is the 

procedure by which resources for vnrious purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes 1nto 

funds thn t are in accordnnce with nctivities or objectives specified. 

Basis of Financial Statements 

The nccomp:111ying finnncial stntements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundnllon is exempt from income tnxes; accordingly no provision for income taxes hns been made in 

the accompanying linancia l statements. 

Cash and Cash EQuivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash Oows, the Foundation considers all cash on hnnd, deposits in financial 

institutions and highly hquid debt instruments wilh a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash 

equivalents. 

(2) Related Party Transactions 

The Board of Retirement and Insurance of the Nat ional Association of Free Will Baptists provides office 
space and certain administrative services to the Foundation for a cost of $900. 

ta tull.Nt.-1 6r Allaa.P.C. 
unified Public Accountants 

Tcny A Hill 
a-ll E Ne.l 
Nanc-y S Alkn 

lndmn"rpt Audjloo' Bmqrt 

Board of Directon 
Free Will Oaplill Foundation, Inc.: 

Smllwoncf I:Jo«utl\"t UniCf 

7f>l Old llk:lu'tf)' llnulrva11l 
Sullc IOl 
8rcl'llwt•ttl. 1 N H027 
TEL f>t 'Y377-HII' 
FAX 61Yl77-}488 

We have •udited the belenee at-11 or Free WiU S.pl.dt Foundetioe, Inc. u of December 31, 1919 1ncl 

1911 1nd the ret• led at•lemenla or aurport 1nd revenue, ••I*••• and dun ... in fund t.tancu 1nd 
euh now. ror the year ended December 31, 1919. TheM finaacialalllemenll .,. the ruponaibilily or 
the Foundltion'a rnanaprnent . Our reapoaaibility ia to e11pnu an opinion oa theM financi•l a111cmenta 

baaed 011 our audill. 

We eoaduc:ted our audill in aec:orclance with pnerally aec:epced audilin& allndarda. ThoR allndards 
require that we plan and pet form tho audit to obta.in ruaonable UIUI'Ince about wbelher the financial 

ttatarnentaare free of ITIIterial miullternent. An audit include~ euminina, 011 a teat beai1, evidence 

supporlina the arnounta and disc:losurea in the finaacial ataia-11. An audit abo includea aueaain& 
the aeeountina principia u.sed and aianirieant NliiTIItea 1111de by ITIIna&ement, u well u evaluatina 

tho over• II financial statement pretenlltion. We believe that our audill provide 1 reuonable buis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, tho financial atatemenll rererreclto above preaent fairly , in allm~leri•l rape<: II , the 
finlnciaJ po~ition or Free Will S.ptitt Foundation, Inc. u or December 31, 1919 and 1911, and the 

aupport and revenue, expentea and chlnaea in fund bela- and cuh nowa for the year ended 
December 31, 1919 in c011rormity with aenenlly accepted aceounlin& principia. 

February 27, 1990 
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Proposed Budget 1991 

Salary/Honorariums ................................... ... ...... ............. . 
Travel and Promotion ... .. .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Publications · · · · · · · · · · ·: · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
Training and Education ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Office Expense ............................ ..................................... . 

Legal and Auditing · . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
Miscellaneous ........ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

TOTAL ....... ······································ · ............................ . 
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$12,500 
5,000 
6,000 
3,500 
4,000 
1,200 

500 
$32,700 



WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTION 
REPORT 

The women of VJNAC praise the Lord because He has given us many 
opportunities to help extend The Great Invitation around the world. 

In 1989 women gave through WNAC and directly to the missions de­
partments $473,514.37. That figure is $42,071.26 more to missions and 
related causes than in 1988. In 1990 we are already seeing an increase in 
giving to missions and to WNAC's general fund. 

In 1989 we were able to help 14 students with $17,136.50 in loans 
from the Memorial Student Loan Fund. Also we gave $2,124.26 from the 
Foreign Student Scholarship to Mexican students studying at Free Will 
Baptist Bible College. 

In March we sent out 13,929 magazines, 137 more than we did at this 
time in 1988. 

Since July, 1989 we have received notice that 16 Auxiliaries have dis­
banded. We have sent out 46 packets to new or reorganizing Auxiliaries. 

Because of the faithful giving of our women, we are putting our book­
keeping on computer. This equipment will make bookkeeping much more 
efficient and will help us greatly in making reports. 

We're celebrating our tenth anniversary year of national retreats with a 
reunion at Ridgecrest Conference Center, September 20-22, 1990. 

The Eunice Edwards Loan Fund for Churches Abroad had received 
$26,638.17 as of April 27 , 1990. With little more than a year left to 
complete our goal of $50,000, we need $23,361.83 by the end of 1991. 

Special recognition goes to our executive committee: Mary Neal, presi­
dent; June Rolen, vice president; Peggy Outland, secretary; Kay Hamp­
ton, Delois Loveless, and Marian Reece, members at large of the commit­
tee. Also, we appreciate the officers who serve at the local, district, and 
state levels. Encouraging words come to us from many of our women, and 
for these we are deeply grateful. 

The office staff at WNAC works hard and faithfully, filling orders, edit­
ing, proofreading, mailing, compiling reports and doing other countless 
duties. I especially appreciate the work of Lorene Miley, editor; Yvonne 
Wolfenbarger, executive assistant; and Sue Hayes, bookkeeper. 

In January we will introduce our theme for 1991, "Until He Comes." 
Surely His coming cannot be far away. In the meantime, let's be busy and 
watching so that when He comes He will be able to say, "You have been 
faithful. Enter into the joy of your lord." 

In Christ , 
Mary R. Wisehart 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer 
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WOMAN ' S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTION 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

GENERAL FUND 

STAT~ffiNT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
DECEMBER 31 

ASSETS 

cash 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued t axes S dent Scholarship Fund 
Reserve for Foreign tu 
Reserve for Equipment 

FUND BALA1~CE 

General 

Total liabilities and f und balance 

INCOME AND DISBURSEMENTS 

INCOME 
Printing & supplies for sale 

Magazine 
Literature 
Postage on literature 

Auxiliary dues 
Delegate fees 
Convention dinner tickets 
Other convent ion income 

Offering 
Refund 

Co-Laborer offerings 
Gi f t s for general purposes 

Emphasis offering 
Pr ovision closet 
Convention gift 

Retreat 
Promotional income 
WNAC minutes 
Miscellaneous income 
Interest income f d 
Stamp money - gener al un 

are an integral part of 
The accompanying notes 

123 

1989 --
$56,748.24 

33,434.48 

$90 , 182 . 72 

$ 4 , 442 . 23 
1 , 277.99 

785 . 11 
1,047 . 50 
7,552 .83 

82,629.89 

$90,182 . 72 

1988 

$64 ,007.79 

$64 ,007.79 

64,007 . 79 

$64 ,007.79 

DECEHBER 31 

1989 

$103,906 .83 
5,504 .4f!. 

944 .08 
17,862 . 50 

144.00 
10,369.00 

975.50 

14,399.08 

15,867.62 
4, 135.84 
4 , 237 . 22 

207.00 
143.32 

2,722.63 
158 . 50 

this statement. 

1988 

$ 75,998 .88 
6,399.42 

·898 .14 
14,740.00 

191.00 
8 , 180 . 00 

770.35 
62.18 

13,552.72 

12,317 . 31 
3, 271. 70 
3 ,000 .00 
4,682.89 

517.00 
213.00 

47.48 
3,659.08 

91.36 



Student loan administration 
Travel refund 

Total offj_ce income 

Designated contributions : 
Foreign Missions 
Home Missions 
Bible Colleges 
Foreign Student Scholarship Fund 
Other gifts for various missionary 

objectives 
Total designated contributions 

Total income 

DISBURSEMENTS 
Operating expenses: 

Printing & supplies for sale 
Printing 
Literature refund 
Supplies for resale 

Executive committee expense 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Postage 
Retreat 
Office supplies & equipment 
Office rent 
Telephone 
Mailing supplies 
Miley ' s love gift 
Auditing 
Convention dinner & expenses 
Miscellaneous 
Travel & promotion 
Subscriptions & dues 
Maintenance - equipment 
Petty cash - National 
Continuing education 
Plant fund - carpet & paint 
1989 convention expenses 
Target 90 
Postage machine purchase 
Provis ion closet 
Royalties 
Leadership conference 
Magazine expenses: 

Magazine mailing 
Magazine postage 
Magazine printing 
}fagazine refund 
Magazine mailing supplies 
Magazine supplies 

Designated refund 
Bad checks 
Insurance 

Total operating expenses 

Designated Mission Work: 
Foreign Missions 
Home Missions 
Bible Colleges 
Foreign Student Scholarship Fund 

300.00 
948.80 

182,826.40 

223,275.41 
76,052.01 
13,364.03 

2,909.37 

15,755.59 
331,356.41 

~214, 182.81 

$ 5,528.06 

1,066.58 
2,175.79 

69,650.60 
15,402.56 
4,004.21 

1. 25 
608 . 28 

6,589.20 
1,906.23 

739 .83 

400.00 
14,884.34 

744.13 
3,972.81 

40.45 
617.98 

44.25 

207. 79 
167.01 

51.98 
929.80 

1,497.09 
2,013.97 

29,520.00 
352 . 48 

281.63 
182.04 
66.34 

557.62 

164,204.30 

$223,275.41 
76,052.01 
13,364.03 
2,909.37 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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1,179 . 69 
149,772.20 

209,539.23 
59,024.09 
12,341.92 

870.00 

11,033.11 
292,808.35 

$442 , 580.55 

$ 3,832.08 
9.90 

1,278.10 
1,420.87 

66,155.97 
13,931.19 
3,575 . 56 
2,840.60 
1, 271.09 
6,242.40 
2,173.49 
1,321.18 
2,000.00 

400 . 00 
13,178.53 

536.68 
4,759.57 

100 . 02 
1,164.24 

140.00 
924.35 

1,686 . 64 
16.64 

279.44 

218 . 28 

1,357.74 
1, 725 . 15 

28,625.00 
349.22 
748.70 

1,027.09 

163,289 . 72 

$209,539.23 
59,024.09 
12,341.92 
1, 119 .oo 

Other disbursements for various 
missionary objectives 

Total designated mission work 

Total disbursements 

NET INCOHE (LOSS) 

Fund balance, beginning 

15,755 . 59 

331,356.41 

495,560.71 

18,622.10 

64,007.79 

10,983 . 11 

293,007.35 

456,297.07 

( 13,716.52) 

77,724.31 

Fund balance, ending ~ 82,629.89 $ 64,007.79 

ASSETS 

cash 
Loans receivable 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund balance 

MEMORIAL STUDENT LOAN FUND 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

DECEMBER 31 

1989 

$ 39,664.39 
62,577.43 

$102,241.82 

$102. 241. 82 

1988 

$ 43 ,028.70 
55,967.98 

$ 98,996.68 

$ 98,996 . 68 

CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

Cash balance, beginning 

RECEIPTS 

Contributions 
Student loans repaid 
Interest collected 

Total receipts 

Total to be accounted for 

DISBURSEMENTS 

Student loans 
Adminstrative expense 
Miscellaneous 

Total disbursements 

Cash balance, ending 
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DECEMBER 31 

1989 

$43,028.70 

3,169.53 
6,774.05 
4 '272.64 

14,216.22 

57,244.92 

17,136.50 
300.00 
144 . 03 

17,580.53 

$39,664 . 39 

1988 

$48,970.86 

4,694. 80 
2,596.63 
2,918 . 41 

10,209.84 

59' 180.70 

15,652.00 
500.00 

16,152.00 

$43,028.70 



EUNICE EDWARDS FUND 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

ASSETS 

Cash 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund balance 

CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

Cash balance, beginning 

RECEIPTS 

Contributions 
Interest income 

Total receipts 

Total to be accounted for 

DISBURSEMENTS 

Promotions 

Cash balance, ending 

DECEMBER 31 

1989 1988 

$24,437.81 $17,886.31 

$24 , 437.81 $17z886.31 

DECEMBER 31 

1989 1988 

$17,886.31 

5,461.48 
1,090.02 

6 ,551. so 

24,437.81 

$24,437.81 

$ 9,870.24 

8,061.61 
471.46 

8,533.07 

18,403.31 

517.00 

$17,886.31 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECE1ffiER 31, 1989 

Note 1 

The Executive Committee of the Woman's National Auxiliary Convention 

agreed to change the accounting of the General Fund from Fund Accounting 

to the accrual form of accounting. Therefore, I have changed the reporting 

thereon accordingly. 
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EZRA JONES 

G'~ 9i'tdk dc .. -&z .. t 
11111 MURFREES~ ROAD 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37211 

February 8, 1990 

woman's National Auxiliary Convention 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 
Nashville, Tennessee 

I have examined the statements of assets and liabilities of the 
General Fund, the assets and liabilities arising from cash transactions 
of the Memorial Student Loan Fund, and the Eunice Edwards Fund of the 
Woman ' s National Auxiliary Convention of National Association of Free Will 
Baptists as of December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the related statements of 
revenues collected and expenses paid for the periods then ended. My 
examinations were made in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting 
records and such other auditing procedures as I considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

In my opinion, the financial statements identified above present 
fairly the financial position of each of the aforementioned organizations 
at December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of their operations and the 
changes in the fund balances for the years then ended, in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis. 

Gifts to Missions/Missionary Objectives 
January 1, 1989-December 31, 1989 

CASH GIITS 
Foreign Missions 

Sent through WNAC 
Sent direct to department 

Home Missions 
Sent through WNAC 
Sent direct to department 

Bible Colleges 
General Funds 
Loan Funds 

Memorial Student Loan Fund 
Other Gifts 

Foreign Student Scholarship 
Retirement & Insurance 
Missions Objectives 

127 

$223,275.41 
48,965.86 

76,052.01 
15,997.10 

2,909.37 
543.50 

15,212.09 

$440,110.30 
272,241.27 

92,049.11 

13,364.03 

3,169.53 
18,664.96 



Provision Closet 
National Project: Eunice Edwards Loan Fund 
WNAC Operating Expense 

Co-Laborer Offering 
Emphasis Offering 

NON-CASH GIFfS 
Provision Closet 

TOTAL CASH AND NON-CASH GIFTS 

15,374.58 
15,867.62 

4,135.84 
5,243.36 

31,242.20 

33,404.07 
$4 73,514.37 

Top Ten Contributors to WNAC 
1989 

Co-Laborer Fund Emphasis Offering 

1. Tennessee 1. North Carolina 
2. North Carolina 2. Arkansas 
3. Arkansas 3. Tennessee 
4. Georgia 4. Missouri 
5 . California 
6. Missouri 

5. Georgia 
6. Oklahoma 

7. Michigan 7. California 
8. Mississippi 8. Alabama 
9. Indiana 9. South Carolina 

10. Ohio 10. Kentucky 

WNAC 1991 Proposed Budget 

ESTIMATED INCOME 

Co-Laborer Fund 
Convention Expense Gift 
Convention Offering 
Delegate Fees 
Dues 
Interest Income 
Literature 
Magazine Subscriptions 
Miscellaneous 
National Minutes 
WNAC Emphasis Offering 
Travel 

TOTAL INCOME 
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$ 18,900 
8,000 
1,500 

200 
24,000 

2,000 
10,000 
75,000 

500 
818 

18,900 
1,500 

$161 ,318 

ESTIMATED EXPENSE 

Salaries 
Employee Benefits 

Payroll Tax Expense 
Employee Retirement 
Health & Life Ins. 

Insurance-General & Comp. 
Audit 
Convention Expense 
Executive Committee Expense 
Literature & Printing 
CO-LABORER Magazine Expense 

Mailing 
Miscellaneous 
Printing 
Postage 

Office Rent 
Office Mailing Supplies 
Office Supplies & Equipment 
Phone 
Postage 
Promotion 
Service Contracts 
Subscriptions 
Supplies for Resale 
Travel 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL EXPENSE 
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5,660 
3,270 
7,500 

1,500 
200 

31,000 
2,400 

$ 72,018 
16,430 

650 
1,000 
4,000 
3,000 
3,000 

35,100 

12,000 
1,500 
2,000 
2,000 
4,000 
1,000 
1,200 

100 
1,000 
1,000 

320 
$161,318 
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MICHIGAN: 
Darlene Clay, H. Collins, Wanda Glisson, Thelma Hagan, Mary Johnson, 
Mary Kilgore, Margaret Staffeld, Etta Varney 

MISSISSIPPI: 
Inez Armstrong, Shirley Dykes, Eva House, Hope VanWinkle 

MISSOURI: 
Reva Baker, Patsy Braddy, Vivian Burton, Ruth Courtney, Pansy Hale, 
Faith Howe, Shirley Jackson, Barbara Lee, Joyce Marshall, Rose Mertz, 
Brenda Mitchener, Clarissa Moon, Gloria Rolandi 

NORTH CAROLINA: 
Peggy Blankenship, Lola Edwards, Maurine Lee, Loretta Lilly, Flora Mor· 
gan, Joan Peterson, Ann Truett,Virginia VanKluyve 

NEW MEXICO: 
Peggy Atkisson, Cleta Fair, Lorene Fowler, Brenda Jenkins 

OHIO: 
Doris Ball, Geraldine Beal, Barbara Chaffin, Betty Frisbee, Bobbie May· 
nard, Kathryn Rapp, Anna Sparks 
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OKLAHOMA: 
Sharon Beam, Lavenia Bingham, Mary Alice Bridgman, Debbie Burden, 
Mary Chamberlain, Fredda Davis, Nelda Gwartney, Ruby Hester, Mar­
guerite Kern, Belva Mabra, Vivian Moore, Fern Real, Carolyn Redfearn, 
Barbara Thompson, Rita Wilson, Jo Ann Wood 

SOUTH CAROl.INA: 
Joyce Bowers, Faye Hanna, Gwen Hendrix, Fran Porter, Camille Scott, 
Carolyn Wilhide 

TENNESSEE: 
Jane Bailey, Ellen Carmack, Peggy Dickerson, Arlene Farley, Fannie Har­
ris, Debbie Mitchell, Pearl Morgan, Susan Mosley, Sara Poston, Myrtle 
Reeds, Winona Riggs, Maxine Wagner, Marjorie Workman, Anne Wor­
thington 

TEXAS: 
Denise Shaw, Judy Smith, Carla Williams 

VIRGINIA: 
Donna Crabtree, Glenna Slemp 

WEST VIRGINIA: 
Barbara Samms, Myrtle Samms, Helen Suttle 

NORTHWEST DISTRICT: 
Davelle Halliburton, Lynda Hunt, Betty Plunkett 

ROCKY MOUNTAIN DISTRICT 
Nadine Hood, Joyce Johnson, Brenda Lewis, Chi Myers, Rosa Lee Tho· 
mas 

HAWAII(Locill)Willpahu 
Patsy Taylor 

IDAHO (Locill) Rupert First 
Kay Phillips 

NEBRASKA: (Locill) Omaha 
Wanda McClary 
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REGISTERED DELEGATES FROM LOCAL AUXILIARIES 

ALABAMA: 
Kathryn Houston, Jean McCraney 

ARIZONA: 
Lori Marshall, Roberta Spears 

ARKANSAS: . F lk Mary K Joslin Eileen Moore, Sharon 
Patricia Daniel, Jackie ow es, . , 
Smith 

CALIFORNIAJ:hn Ri h Neva Wood Dorothy Wright, Mary Young 
Elizabeth Cox, o a c ' ' 

GEORGIA: H d Bobbie Thomas, Susan Waters Willie Henderson, Betty en erson, 

MISSOURI: o· N ann 
Shelly Braisher' Sondra Brake, tanne aum 

NJ ~RTCH CARFOayUNe c:~y Mildred Sullivan, Julia Thomas amce ason, , 

OKLAHOMA: Barbara Harwell, Linda Bigger, Tam~e 
Wanda McClary, Betty ~dcock, v· . ·a Miller Lila Faye Morgan, Debbte 
Daniels, Pat Lewis, Gracte Lowe, trgmt , 
Standley 

TENNESSEE: . C t Linda Ellis Alice Ellis, Vernie Hersey, 
Laura Cannon, Bobbte oun s, · v· · · Weber 
Vickie Hood, Roberta Kelley' Beverly Rtggs, trgtma 

TEXAS: · R dd 
Leota Barger, Margaret Richards, Tammte o en 
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THEME: "THE GREAT INVITATION" 

SCRIPTURE: "And the Spirit and the bride say, Come, And let him that 
heareth say, Come, And let him that is athirst come And 
whosoever will, let him take the water of life freely" d~.eve­
lation 22: 17). 

HYMN: "The Woman's Hymn" 

MUSIC COORDINATOR: Lisa Wallace 

ORGANIST: JoAnna Felts 

PIAMST: Karrie Murfin 

TUESDAY MORNING, July 17, 1990 

. The fifty-fifth. annual ~e~sion of the Woman's National Auxiliary Conven­
tion convened .m the Ctvic Plaza Exhibit Hall-B, Phoenix, Arizona at 9:00 
A.M. The session was called to order by President Mary Neal. President 
Neal welcome.d the convention and brought to our attention the theme 
verse, Revelation 22:17. ~rayer requests were mentioned and prayer was 
!~d by Peggy, Outlan~; Lisa" Wallace led in the singing of the theme song 
The W?man s H~mn and All Hail the Power of Jesus' Name." 
~ormng devotions were led by Bessie Richards, missionary to Africa. 

Usm.g the ~hem~ v_ers~ of the convention she stated that we all need to 
recetve vanous mvitattons, the greatest invitation being the one issued by 
o~r Lord .. Sh~ stated there were 2. 7 billion people who have never heard 
this great mvttation. A testimony of an African was read and truly blessed 
and challen~ed each of us to help get the message of salvation to the 
wor~d. Special music entitled "Our Mission" was presented by Davelle 
Halliburton, Kent, Washington. 

Pat Atchley, Arizona president, extended a warm welcome to the very 
warm state of Arizona. 

L~rene Miley presented the National Creative Arts Contest awards as 
Delois Loveless :ead the n~es of the winners. (See reports.) 

The Credentials Comrruttee report was given by June Rolen and the 
delegates were recognized. A motion carried to adopt the report and to 
seat the delegates from states, districts, and local churches named. (See 
report.) 

.The Executive Secretary-Treasurer report was given by Dr. Mary Ruth 
Wisehart .. :'c.cording to the report there are a total of 10,023 members. In 
:989 Auxihanes gave $42,071.26 more to missions and related causes than 
m 1988. She reported that we needed $23,361.83 given to The Eunice 
Edwards Loan Fund for Churches Abroad by the end of 1991 in order to 
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complete our goal of $50,000. A budget for the coming year of $161,~18 
resented A motion carried to accept the report of the Executive 

was P · (S ) Secretary-Treasurer and to adopt the budget. ee report. . . 
The Resolution Committee report was read .by Mar~ Ahce Bndgman. A 

motion carried to receive the report and adopt Item by Item. (See report.~ 
The Appreciation Committee report was read by Gwen He~dnx. 

Motion carried to accept the report. (See report.) Lisa Wallace led m the 
singing of "Wonderful '-:Vords of Life" and prayer was led by Kay Hampton 
to dismiss for the mornmg break. 

TUESDAY MORNING WORSHIP SERVICE 

The convention reconvened at 11:10 in the Civic Plaza Exhibit Hall-B for 
the WNAC missionary service. Lisa Wallace led in the singing of ''I Have 
Decided to Follow Jesus" and "We've a Story to Tell to the Nations." .~he 
chorus "In My Life" was also sung. Delois Loveless direc~ed the. recet~mg 
of the offering and led in prayer. A sextet presented SJ?ecial. ~usic. entitled 
"Our Great Savior." Singing in the sextet were Debbte Gnffm, Li~a W~l­
lace. Sarah Malone, Ruth McDonald, Davelle Halliburton and Debbie Stnp-

ling. J d' l 
Mary Neal introduced the speaker Dr. Ke~eth Eagleto~, . r., me tea 

missionary to Africa. Special thanks was giVen t? Auxiliaries . by Dr· 
Eagleton for their faithful support through prayers, ~~~s an? esp~Clally the 
provision closet. He stated the goal of the medical mimstry m ~ca was to 
minister to the spiritual needs while administering to the medtcal needs. 
Using the theme verse Revelation 22:17 and Matthew 11:28 ~e stated that 
over one half of the world's population would never receive the great 
invitation. Some questions about the invitation were asked: (I) Where 
gomg? (2) Who is inviting? (3) Who is the invitation for? J?r. Ea?l.eto~ 
stated that the great invitation is for (1) All races; (2) All social posttions, 
(3) All education levels; (4) All who are burdened and heavy laden; (5) All 
who are athirst for the truth. This great invitation needs an RSVP or reply. 
There is no neutrality; we either accept or reject. 

Announcements were made and we were dismissed for lunch. Prayer 
was led by Dr. Mary Ruth Wisehart. 

TUESDAY AFTERNOON, 1:30 

The afternoon session opened with the singing of "Send the Light" and 
'1 Will Praise Him" led by Lisa Wallace. 

Lorene Miley led the special missionary feature for the afternoon 
entitled "God's Hand Extended Around the World." Missionaries takir:g 
part were Patsy Vanhook, France; Rejane Eagleton, repres~nte~ Braztl; 
Susan Turnbough, Spain; Deleen Cousineau, Africa; Bessie Rtchards, 
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Africa; Patsy. Gw~rtney, Arizona; Amy Robinson, Uruguay; Judy Smith, 
Japan; f?ebbte G.nffin, Japan and Ruth McDonald, Japan. This was a very 
challengmg and mformative program. Paige Powell presented a dramatic 
reading about missions. 

T.he Registra?on Committee report was given by Pat Atchley. A motion 
earned to recetve the report. (See report.) Closing prayer was led by 
Lorene Miley. 

More than 500 attended the WNAC Fellowship Dinner in the Hyatt 
Regency Ballroom to hear Miss Rudene Kennedy. This was a blessing and 
challenge as she urged each of us to become "World Christians." To be a 
world Christian you must be willing to adjust your life style to do whatever 
it takes to help win the lost around the world. 

CALLED MEETING OF THE 
WNAC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

The WNAC Executive Committee attended the 1989 Leadership Con­
ference at the Maxwell House Hotel in Nashville Tennessee on December 
4-5. Different speakers developed the theme "Accountability." Members 
pr~sent were ~ary Neal, June Rolen, Peggy Outland, Dr. Mary Ruth 
Wtsehart, Delms Loveless, Marian Reece and Kay Hampton. 

The Committee met for their business on Wednesday morning, 
December 6, 1989, at the Maxwell House Hotel. After breakfast together 
we were welcomed by President Mary Neal. Marian Reece and Delois 
Loveless were welcomed as new members and June Rolen as a returning 
member. Delois Loveless gave a challenging devotion from Luke 24:1-4 
n~ting the widow who gave all she had to the Lord when she gave her 
mtte. We were encouraged to give our all to the Lord. 

Lorene Miley gave a report on the CO-LABORER magazine. She noted 
a loss . in subs~riptions, some due to Auxiliaries disbanding. All reports 
regardmg the siZe and content of the magazine were encouraging. Lorene 
was commended by the committee for a job well done. 

Dr. Mary .Ruth .Wisehart gave the report of the Executive Secretary­
Treasurer. Dtscusston concerning the printing of the national minutes as to 
cost, etc. Suggested that possibly the WNAC minutes could be included in 
the FWB Yearbook. Dr. Wisehart was to check on this for the committee. 
Policies and procedures were discussed concerning the staff and the exec­
utive c?mmitte~ regarding associations, retreats and board meeting. 

Mohon earned that no money be withdrawn from CD that would cause 
the balance to drop below $10,000 without the written consent of the 
majority of the board members. Motion carried to accept the report. 

Plans were finalized for the WNAC to be held in Phoenix, Arizona in 
199~. Alton Loveless to give the invocation at the Fellowship Dinner and 
Davtd Reece the benediction, 

The National Retreat to be held September 20-22, 1990: at Ridgecrest, 
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C was discussed with the following recom.m:ndations: Music 
N o~rdinator-Beverly Welch; Relaxa~ion Time-MarJOr~e lJ.!?rkman. The f U · ng speakers and topics for semmars were chosen. Abtlity to Handle 

F~ owt es Sandy Atwood· Personal Promises- Rudene Kennedy; Joy for 
mane - ' · R b p h· H 

M 
· Carolyn Lane· Boldness as a Wttness- e ecca ug , ope ourmng- ' L Th. 

the Future- Pam Wood; Facing the Power of Satan- aura tgpen. 
~~dene Kennedy would be ask~d to be the alternate speaker for the 

Friday general session. . 
Th 1991 budget was presented. After discussion from the commtttee 

the b~dget was adjusted to $161,318. Motio~ carried. to accept the budget 
as adjusted and recommend to the body for tts adopbon. 

Motion carried to accept and recommend the suggested themes for the 

next ten years. 1991 F 1 
Suggested that Anne Kiemel Anderson be .c~n~acted for our e -

lowship Dinner speaker in Charleston, West Vtrgmta. NAC 
Various suggestions for ways to increase the finan~es for W were 

discussed with some ideas presented by the Executive Secretary-Treas-

ure~otion carried to recommend to the national b?dy th~. following women 
to serve as a study committee to evaluate Woman s Auxtliary and report to 
the 1991 convention: June Rolen- California; Kay Hampton-Tennessee; 
Peggy Outland- illinois; Marguerite Kern-Oklaho~a; D~. Mary Ruth 
Wisehart- Tennessee; Diane Thomas- North Carohna; Dtana Bryant-
Florida; Donna Forrest- Arkansas. . 

The meeting was closed with prayer by Prestdent Mary Neal. 

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

The Executive Committee met at 8:00A.M. on Monday, July 16, 1990 
for breakfast in the Hyatt Regency Borein Room-B. After ~reakfast. the 
committee moved to the Board Room. The meeting began wtth devotions 
led by Marian Reece. Scripture, Revelation 2: 2, 5, 7. She stressed r~tu~n­
ing to our first love. She compared the remodeling of a house to Chnsttan 
maturity in the following ways: 

1. It takes longer than you plan. 
2. Costs more than you figured. 
3. More messy than you thought. 
4 Requires greater determination. 
We were reminded that only what we do for Christ will matter. Prayer 

by Marian Reece. Th 14 098 
The Executive Secretary-Treasurer gave a report. ere were ' 

subscribers to CO-LABORER magazine which was 70 mo:e than 1~~9. at 
this time Materials had been sent to 54 new or re-orgamzed Aux.thanes 
and 14 Actionettes. Also a computer had been purchased t~ help wtth ~he 
bookkeeping. The amount of $28,010.59 was reported m the Eumce 
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Edwards ~oan F ~nd for Church~s Abroad. A financial report was consid­
ered. ~otlon c~rned to secure Hill, Neal and Allen as auditors for WNAC. 

Mohon earned to amend the minutes of a previous executive committee 
to read as follows: that no money be withdrawn from CD that would cause 
the ba!ance to dro? below $10,000 nor money transferred from another 
fund Without t_he wn~ten consent of the majority of the board members. 

The committee discussed the convention plans for 1991. Motion carried 
that ~r. Mary Ruth Wise~art be. our speaker for our Fellowship Dinner. 
~onme Rolen to pray the mvocation and Billy Gene Outland the benedic­
tion. 

Motion carried to close the meeting. 
At 1:30 the WNA<? Seminar was held in the Hyatt Regency Ballroom C 

and D. Over}O~ ladies attended this seminar directed by Janie Aldridge. 
The theme WtU Y~u Carr~ the Invitation?" Those taking part were 
Lynette M_organ, Afrtca; Marilyn Pritchard; Judy Smith, Japan; Wanda 
Powell; Amta Sparks, Spain and Odessa Ledlow. 

The Presidents and ~ield Workers met at 3:00 in the Hyatt Regency 
Ballroom_ C and D. Pre~tdent Mary Neal led in prayer and presided over 
~he m~~tmg. The followmg persons spoke concerning the different offices 
m Auxiltary: 

June Rolen- President 
Debbie Mitchell-Field Worker 
Anne Worthington- Secretary 
Kay Hampton- Treasurer 
A ti~e of questions and answ~rs and_ sharing was held after the topics 

were gtven. Over 70 attended this meetmg. The meeting was closed with 
prayer. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Peggy Outland 
Recording Secretary 
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REPORT OF THE CREDENTIALS COMMI'I"I'EE: 

We your Credentials Committee, wish to submit the following report: 
The f~llowing state conventions have submitted reports and paid dues: 
Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, 
Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, New Mex­
ico, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, 
Virginia, West Virginia, 

The following districts have submitted reports and paid dues: Northwest 
District, Oregon, Washington, British Columbia; Rocky Mountain District, 
Colorado. 

Local Auxiliaries: Waipahu, Hawaii; First Rupert, Idaho; Riverview, 
Iowa; Marantha, Nebraska and New Durham, New Hampshire. 

Reports and dues from 23 states, 2 districts and 5 locals. 

June Rolen, Chairperson (California) 
Lila Faye Morgan, Oklahoma 
Geraldine Collins, Michigan 
Ann Truett, North Carolina 
Shirley Dykes, Mississippi 
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REPORT OF REGISTRATION COMMITTEE 

We your Registration Committee submit the following report: 

NUMBER OF PERSONS REGISTERED: 
WNAC Officers .................. ... ..... ... . ... .. .... ..... .. . .. 7 
Missionaries from 7 countries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 
Standing Delegates (State Presidents & Field Workers) .............. 21 
Elected Delegates, State, District, & Local . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150 
Local Delegates paying representation fee of $3 .... ... .. ............ 47 
Ministers and Visitors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 434 
Total Registered . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 677 

STATE, DISTRICT AND LOCAL DELEGATES 
Alabama . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
Arizona . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 
Arkansas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 
California . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 
Florida . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 
Georgia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 
Illinois . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 5 
Indiana . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. 4 
Kansas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 
Kentucky . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 
Maryland . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 
Michigan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 

lSSlSSlppt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 M' . . . 
tssourt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 M' . 

New Mexico .. ....... .......... .... . .......... ... .... .. ... .... . . 4 
North Carolina . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 
Ohio . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 
Oklahoma .. . .. . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. .. . .. . .. . . . . .. . . 26 
South Carolina .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. . .. . .. . . . 6 
Tennessee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . 23 
Texas . . . . . .. .. . . . .. . . .. . .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 
Virginia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 

es 1rg1rua . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 w tv· · · 

Northwest District ..... ..... ........... ..... .......... ... .... ... . 3 
Rocky Mountain District ... ... .. .... ....... . .... ... ..... .... .. . .. 5 

Hawaii (Waipahu-local) ......................................... 1 
Idaho (First -Rupert-local) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 
Nebraska (Maranatha-Omaha- local) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 

TOTAL VOTING DELEGATION ....................... . ....... 218 

Pat Atchley, Dixie Guild, Co-chairmen 
Ellen Marshall 
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REPORT OF THE RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE 

1. That we adopt the decade theme and the suggested themes for the next 
ten years. (See next page.) 

2 That the women named below constitute a study committee to evaluate 
· Woman's Auxiliary and report to the Convention in 1991: 

Diana Bryant, Florida 
Kay Hampton, Tennessee 
Marguerite Kern, Oklahoma 
Peggy Outland, lllinois 
June Rolen, California 
Diane Thomas, North Carolina 
Mary Ruth Wisehart, Tennessee 

Mary Alice Bridgman (Oklahoma) 
Paulette Scott (Alabama) 
Diana Bryant (Florida) 
Lynda Cantrell (California) 
Phyllis York (Kentucky) 

DECADE THEME: OUR FACES TOWARD TOMORROW 
Hebrews 12:1-2 

"0 God, Our Help in Ages Past" 

1991-The Second Coming: Until He Comes 
Titus 2:11-13 
"Jesus Is Coming Again" 

1992-Reaching the Young Woman: Teachers of Good Things 
Titus 2:3-5 
"Lord, Speak to Me" 

1993- Finance: The Grace of Giving 
Acts 20:35 
"Something for Thee" 

1994- The Bible: Light on the Way 
Psalm 119:105 
"Thy Word Have I Hid In My Heart" 
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1995- Prayer: Great .and Mighty Things Through Prayer 
Jeremtah 33:3 
"Call on Me" 

1996- Witnessing:·Hold the Light High 
Acts 13:47 
"Let My Life Be a Light" 

1997- Study: Expanding Knowledge 
2 Timothy 2:15 
"Open My Eyes That I May See" 

1998- Stewardship of Life: Living Sacrifices 
Romans 12:1-2 
"Take My Life and Let It Be" 

1999- Leadership: Passing the Torch 
2 Timothy 2:2 
"0 Master, Let Me Walk With Thee" 

2000- 0pportunities: A Door Ajar 
Revelation 3:8 
"Anywhere With Jesus" 

1990-91 WNAC NOMINATING COMMI'I"I EE MEMBERS 

Alabama 
Arkansas 
California 
Florida 
Georgia 
illinois 
Indiana 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Nebraska 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
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Odessa Ledlow 
Joyce Little 
Joan Condit 
Thelma Wiggins 
Janice Wallace 
Marilyn Irvin 
Ann Murphy 
Wilma Ankrom 
Phyllis York 
Lottie Horton 
Darlene Clay 
Hope VanWinkle 
Reva Baker 
Wanda McClary 
Katie Pinson 
Maurine Lee 
Anna Lee Sparks 
JoAnn Wood 

Rocky Mountain District 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
West Virginia 

Barbara Myers 
Faye Hanna 
Anne Worthington 
Ruth Jennische 
Donna Crabtree 
Myrtle Samms 

REPORT OF THE APPRECIATION COMMITTEE 

We, the Appreciation Committee submit the following recommenda­

tions: 

1. That we give a rising vote of thanks to President Pat Atchley and the 
Arizona Woman's Auxiliary Convention for arranging the WNAC regis­
tration, the Executive Luncheon, Banquet, favors and for the many 
things they have done to make our fifty-fifth session a blessing. 

2. That we express our thanks to our missionary speakers, Dr. Ken 
Eagleton, Bessie Richards and also to our seminar speakers Janie 
Aldridge and all those who participated in the seminar. 

3. That we express our appreciation to the Executive Committee for 
planning our convention program, securing Rudene Kennedy as our 
Banquet speaker, providing the seminar, "Will You Carry the Invita­
tion?" and also for the Leadership Packets. 

4. That we express our appreciation to the vocalists and musicians: 
Davelle Halliburton, the Sextet and also Lisa Wallace music co-ordina-
tor. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Gwen Hendrix, Chairman, SC 
Sandra Hollis, IL 
Tammy Mott, AZ 
Lottie Horton, MD 
Anna L. Sparks, OH 
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CREATIVE ARTS CONTEST 1989-90 WNAC ANNUAL REPORT, 1990 

92 women from 21 states and 2 foreign countries submitted 276 entries 

ARTICLES: 

1. "Have I No Rights" by Lynette Morgan, Cote d'Ivoire, Ivory Coast, 
Africa 

2. "Mission Quest" by Viki Turner, Carterville, MO 
3. "The Write Missionary" by Barbara Jarvis, Sapulpa, OK 
4. "The Field Outside" by Diane Thomas, Grifton, NC 

PLAYS/SKITS: 

1. "Auxiliary Roundup" by Vicki Hubbard, Russellville, AR 
2. "Late Night Visitors" by Susan Burgess, Bloomington, IL 
3. "Heroes or Zeroes" by Sue Winchester, St. Louis, MO 
4. "The Call to Missions" by Margaret Ashcraft, Morehead, KY 

PROGRAMS: 

AUXILIARY ACTIONETTE 
ACTIONETTES MEMBERS DISTRICT!:> LOCALS MEMBERS 

ORGANIZATION 
457 1 7 9 43 

8 ALABAMA 4 42 1 
ARIZONA 12 84 1,050 
ARKANSAS 4 33 376 
CALIFORNIA 

5 3 187 
FLORIDA 10 57 628 
GEORGIA 2 23 260 
ILLINOIS 2 8 109 
INDIANA 

2 6 59 
KANSAS 

5 19 256 KENTUCKY 
2 11 139 MARYLAND 
5 30 260 MICHIGAN 
4 34 297 MISSISSIPPI 
9 79 806 MJSSOURI 
2 4 23 

8 NEW MEXICO 1,091 2 7 62 NORTH CAROLINA 
5 30 376 OHIO 

1,203 3 OKLAHOMA 13 103 
4 47 672 SOUTH CAROLINA 
3 49 928 TENNESSEE 
5 26 317 TEXAS 
3 17 245 VIRGINIA 
2 17 98 \\'EST VIRGINIA 

DISTRICTS 

1. "Worship is a Lifestyle" by Sheila Scarborough, Nashville, TN 
2. "Devotion Without Measure" by Odessa Ledlow, Detroit, AL 
3. "Invitation to Fulfillment" by Margie Patton, Pleasant View, TN 
4. "Heart Check" by Mary Holland, Liberal, MO 

1 4 42 NORTHWEST (OR, WA) 
ROCKY MOUNTAIN (CO) 1 5 50 

LOCAL 

POEMS: 

1. "My Mission" by Fannie Ruth Henderson, Greeneville, TN 
2. "God's Call" by Virginia Weber, Clarksville, TN 
3. "God's Workers" by Barbara McLeary, Lawton, OK 
4. "A Missionary Heart" by Linda Sligh, Smithfield, MS 

HAWAII (WAIPAHU) 1 15 
1 8 IDAHO (RUPERT FIRST) 
1 11 IOWA (RIVERVIEW, BETTENDORF) 
1 5 NEBRASKA (MARANATHA, OMAHA) 
1 13 NEW HAMPSHIRE (NEW DURHAM FIRST) 

10,023 7 23 TOTALS 117 803 
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COMMISSION FOR THEOLOGICAL INTEGRITY 

The purpose of this Commission is: 1) To alert our people of theological 
trends that could threaten our theological integrity as a denomination, 2) 
To prepare materials that will contribute to the continued preservation of 
the theological integrity of the denomination, and 3) As the need and op­
portunity arise, to conduct seminars on subjects which are pertinent to the 
purpose of this Commission. 

In keeping with our purpose, we have prepared materials on current 
concerns and have made them available to our people for a modest cost. 
These booklets are available at our booth. 

The Commission will also conduct seminars on subjects of concern. If 
you would like to have a seminar conducted in your area, please contact 
our secretary, Reverend Fred Hall, 210 South lOth Street, Nashville, Ten­
nessee 37206. 

Leroy Forlines conducted, at this year's convention, a seminar on "The 
Roots of Moral Decay in America." If we are to minister to people in the 
1990's, it is a must that we learn how to deal with this moral decay and its 
influence. 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Dari Goodfellow, Bookkeeper 

Financial Report 

Balance in Bank, January 1, 1989 ...... ......... .......................... $1,066.38 

INCOME: 
Gifts: 

Alabama . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 
Arkansas .......................................... . 
Arizona ..................................... ........ . 
California ......................................... . 
Rorida ......... ............ ......................... . 
Georgia ........... ................................. . 
Idaho ................................................. . 
Illinois ............. .................................. . 
Indiana ............................. ................ . 
Kansas .............................................. . 
Kentucky ........................................... . 
Maryland ............................. ............. . 
Michigan .......................................... . 
M·s . . . 

I SISSI ppl .......... ............................... . 
Missouri ............................................. . 
North Carolina .................................. . 
New Mexico ........................ .............. . 

148 

19.05 
216.98 

4.58 
64.06 
82.72 
44.87 

1.01 
75.71 

126.57 
2.66 

19.79 
10.25 
56.37 
17.53 

512.00 
48.66 

.07 

98.26 
Ohl·o · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 343. 20 •••• 0 •••••••• 

Oklahoma··········································· 85.7 2 
Tennessee · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2 7 . 0 7 
Texas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11. 56 

~~~~~gi~~-(N~rth~~~t·i ·:::: ::::::::::::::::: 10~:~~ 
West Virginia ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 29 
Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20.00 
Miscellaneous Gifts · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 165. 7 4 
Special Ministries Offering .. ····· .. ··········· 

2
, 
164

. 23 
Total Gifts ..... t......................................... 1,000.59 
Sales of Litera ure . · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · .. · 50.00 
Refund on Nat'l. Assoc. Booth Expense.... 53.15 3,267.97 
Interest on Bank Account··············· .. ··· .. ··· $4,334.35 

TOTAL INCOME AND BALANCE · · · · .. · · · · ............................ . 

EXPENDITURES: 
Office Expense .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Shipping Literature Expense · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Salary /Bookkeeping · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Printing Literature ........ ·. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Nat'l. Assoc. Booth Expense · · · · · · · · · · · · .. · · · · · 
Digest of Reports ........... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Annual Meeting Expense · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. 
Writer's Expense for Manuscript ............. . 
Refund (overpayment) ........ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Bank Service Charge ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
National Assoc. Seminar Speaker Expense. 

$ 39.34 
52.50 

200.00 
1,500.00 

605.74 
80.77 

651.09 
215.00 

6.60 
40.00 

100.00 

ITURES ..... ..... 3,491.04 
TOTAL EXPEND · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... . 

BALANCE IN BANK, December 31 , 1989 ............................ $ 843.31 

1991 Recommended Budget 

Anticipated Income 
Gifts from the Cooperative Program 
Sale of literature 
Interest on bank deposit 

Total Anticipated Income 

Anticipated Expenditures 
Office expense 
Shipping materials 

149 

$2,200.00 
400.00 
100.00 

$2,700.00 

$ 175.00 
75.00 



Bookkeeping services 
National Convention Booth 
Annual Meeting expense 
Seminar expense 
Printing costs 
Writer's honoraria 

Total Anticipated Expenditures 

200.00 
500.00 
700.00 
200.00 
600.00 
250.00 

$2,700.00 

RADIO AND TELEVISION COMMISSION REPORT 

The Free Will Baptist Radio and Television Commission was established 
in 1983. Since that time we have sought to use the media to win the lost 
and strengthen the saved. We have also encouraged active involvement in 
Free Will Baptist churches. 

The Commission produced a 15-minute radio broadcast entitled "Victo­
rious Faith. " Rev. Bob Shockey was the speaker for this weekly outreach. 

The Commission pays production costs for "Victorious Faith. " Local 
churches buy air time. Write for information about airing this program in 
your community. 

The Radio and Television Commission has limited resources. We have 
no building; we have no full time employees. The only funds we have are 
those donated by Free Will Baptists. Since 1983 we have received less 
than $40,000 to operate this ministry. 

We are committed to developing a well-rounded media ministry to 
spread the Gospel. If we are to accomplish this goal, we must have your 
help. 

Pastors, please consider including us in your church budget. Put "Victo­
rious Faith" on the air in your community. Encourage your district and 
state associations to support this worthy cause. 

Larry D. Hampton 
Chairman 

Financial Report 

January 1 - December 31, 1989 

Total Projected Income-1989 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $11,7 80.00 

Projected Monthly Income.............................................. 981.6 7 

Actual Year-to-Date Income............................................ 2,972.09 

ActuaJ Average Monthly Income . . . . .. . .. . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . .. . .. . .. . . . . . 24 7. 6 7 
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Income: 
C -0 erative Plan of Support · · · · .. · · · .. · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · 

0 p ................................ . 
G·fts · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1 .......... . 

Nati~~~i ·Ministries Sunday · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Ea d ........................ . Interest rne .................................... . 

INCOME ....... .. TOTAL · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ................... . 

Expenses: 
t. . ........ 0 ••••• 0 • 0 •••••••• Promo ton ......................................... . 

Board Expense ........... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
kk . 0 •• 0 ••••••••••••• 0 ••• 0 • 0 0 ••••• 0 ••• Boo eep1ng ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Production Costs .......................................................... . 

S I. 0 •• 0 0 ••••• 0 •••••••••••• 0 •• 0 ••• upp tes ........... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
P .. 0 0 •••••••••• 0 •• 0 •••• ostage ........... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
National Convention ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Miscellaneous ................... . .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
TOTAL EXPENSES .................... ··································· 

Checking Account 
Balance on January 1, 1989 ............. · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·: · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Deposits Oncome less $551.12 deposited to savmgs) · · · · · · · · 
Ex ............. . penses .................................... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
E d. B l · · · · · · · ....... . n 1ng a ance ................ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Savings Account 
Balance on January 1, 1989 ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
D •t .................. . epOSl S .................. . ........... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

It tEa d .............. . n eres rne ..................... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
E d. B l · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · n 1ng a ance ................ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Proposed 1991 Budget 

Income 
Cooperative Plan of Support ............. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
G.tfts ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ...................... 
National Ministries Sunday ........ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Interest .............. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Expenditures 
P t. . .................. . romo ton ............... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Commission Travel Expense ............. ······· · ······················ 
Part-time work ........... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · $2oo: OO · · · ........ . 

Bookkeeper .......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · OO. OO 
Other .. .......................... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2 

P d ti t ................ . ro uc on cos s .................. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
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$ 2,142.92 
472.22 
241.90 
115.05 

$ 2,972.09 

$ 20.00 
79.50 

200.00 
300.00 
402.08 
362.25 

62.82 
13.47 

$ 1,440.12 

$ 773.20 
2,305.92 
(1,440.12) 

$ 1,639.00 

$ 2,091.38 
551.12 
115.05 

$ 2,757.55 

$ 2 ,500.00 
12,000.00 

400.00 
200.00 

$15,100.00 

$ 2,250.00 
250.00 
400.00 

1,800.00 



Supplies ........................................................... . .......... . 
Postage ................ ....................................................... . 
Equipment & Maintenance ......................... . ............ . ..... . 
Telephone ................................................................... . 
Printing .. . .................................................................... . 
National Convention ..................................................... . 

Booth ......................... . .. . ................. $200.00 
Digest. ......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150.00 
Materials.......................................... 200.00 

Broadcast Air Time ...................................................... . 

REPORT OF MUSIC COMMISSION 

500.00 
1,000.00 

500.00 
250.00 
600.00 
550.00 

7,000.00 
$15,100.00 

The 1988 session of the Free Will Baptist National Convention estatr 
lished the Music Commission. Our goal is: 

1. To Preserve Free Will Baptist hymnody by guiding and developing 
creative hymn text and tune writing, evaluating regional demands for 
gospel music needs; encouraging creative congregational singing in our 
worship and evangelistic services, and enlisting congregations to use 
Free Will Baptist hymnals. 
2. To Promote Free Will Baptist hymnody by encouraging denomina­
tional songwriters and composers to publish and distribute their own 
materials. 
3. To Prepare REJOICE: The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book 1988 for 
publication as an independent book. 
4. To Publish and Produce choral music and related recordings for use 
by choirs, youth groups and music ministries. 
5. To Publish music curriculum to meet the diverse demands identified 
with Free Will Baptist children, teens and adults. 
6. To Present music workshops/seminars for the training of children, 
teens and adults in singing, playing of instruments, accompanying 
choral conducting and worship leading. 
We have been given the responsibility of overseeing our new hymn­

book. The sales have done quite well. This year from January to Decem­
ber we have sold 20,118 books. A total of 66,824 have been sold so far. 
It is proving to be a very good tool for our church and for the first time aU 
across our denomination we are now using the same hymnbook. Because 
of the interest we are having to pay on the borrowed money the price of 
the hymnbook has been raised to $9.98. We would appreciate you send­
ing any musical or typographical errors to the commission. 

This year at the National we are having a seminar on how to incorpo­
rate hymn singing into the worship service. 
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Ian to have a music conference this year to assist ow: churches in 
We. P f music and direction of choirs. The conference will have read-

selectio~ o f' ces by children youth and adult choirs and other ing sesstons, per orman ' 

pe~ormre;s . rateful to now be included in a percentage from Co~p. We 
would :pp:!ciate it if you would include us in your church budget thts year. 

Bill Gardner, chairman 
Rodney Whaley, sec., treas. 
Doug Uttle 
Vernon Whaley 
Blaine Hughes 

Mailing Address: Music Commission 
P.O. Box 1088 
Nashville, TN 37202 

Treasurer's Report 
January - December, 1989 

R . t ..... ........ .. ....... .. ........ $ 31.37 ecet p s .......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 3 9 18 
D. b ts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1s ursemen .................... ·. · · · · · · · · · · · · 

1991 Budget 

B d ........................... $ 200.00 
oar expense .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. 1 00.00 

P .. .............................. . ostage. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 300.00 
Telephone ...... ········ · ··························································· · ····:: 150.00 
National Convention Booth · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·: .. 1 00.00 

Materials .......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... 150. 00 
S k ............................. . pea ers.................................................. 500.00 
Music Conference ................ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · _ .. _· .. _. ---
-r t l B d t ................ ..... $1,500.00 , o a u ge .................. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

HISTORICAL COMMISSION REPORT 

Commission member Steve Hasty spearhea?e.d ~e ~ 9~0 proje~t t~ 
publish a directory of Free ~ill Baptist holdings hstmg msti~ti~nJ ~~d ;~~-
viduals with historical matenals. We plan to have the pu. ts e ts. . 
able for delegates when the National Association meets m Phoerux, An-

zona in July. · f I t of 
The Commission mailed approximately 650. copte~ o . nuen o_ry 

1
_ 

Minutes to district clerks in March 1990 requestmg thetr asststance m co 
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lec~~g cComple~e .sets of minutes for every association 
e ommtsston continues to mak '1 b . . 

Record which was published in 1988 eSavat a le copt~s of. the 50-Year 
$2.00 each. · orne 350 coptes are available at 

1989 Financial Report 

Balance on hand, January 1 1989 ' ...... ............... .... ............. .. $9,302.61 

Income 
?ifts (Co-op: designated & undesignated): 
nterest (SaVIngs, First American Bank)· 

Royalties (Randall House): · 
Sales, The 50-Year Record: 

Expenditures: 
Printin~ {Minutes inventory Jist) 
Executive Office, Digest Fees: 

846.65 
612.16 

1.00 
218.00 

187.00 
26.92 

+1,677.81 

- 213.92 

Balance on hand, December 31 1989 ' ...... .. ...... $10 766 50 ~ . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' . 

1991 Budget 

INCOME 

Gifts (Designated and Co-op Plan) 
Interest (First American Bank) 
Miscellaneous 

EXPENSES 

~oks .and Materials for Historical Collection 
ecubv~ Of~ice (Digest fees) 

Other Htstoncal Projects 

154 

$1,400.00 
700.00 
200.00 

Total $2,300.00 

$1,500.00 
200.00 
600.00 

Total $2,300.00 

TARGET 90 COMMITIEE REPORT 

The Target 90 campaign, adopted during the 1985 National Conven­
tion in Nashville, Tennessee, has completed its fourth year. The five-year 
campaign has a two-fold thrust: planting 100 new Free Will Baptist 
churches and increasing net membership by 50,000 before the end of 

Statistical data for 1986-1989 reflect steady though not spectacular 1990. 

growth. 

Baptisms 
Members Added 
Members Lost 

1986 

8,517 
12,052 

7,314 

1987 

8,407 
12,134 

6,581 

1988 

7,910 
13,436 

6,454 

1989 

8,678 
12,726 

7,511 

Total 

33,512 
49,348 
27 ,860 

The campaign's four-year net membership goal was 35,000. Although 
actual gains fell 13,512 short of the campaign goal with a 21,488 net 
membership increase, I am encouraged. I praise the Lord for 33,512 con­
verts baptized and more than 100 new churches started during the last 

four years. The Target 90 Committee urges every Free Will Baptist to get involved 
in the Target 90 campaign by participating, praying and promoting 
growth for God's glory among Free Will Baptists. 

Efforts to stimulate growth for 1990 include the spring and fall Sunday 
School Enlargement Campaigns sponsored by Randall House Publica­
tions, Roll Call Sunday March 25 sponsored by the Home Missions De­
partment, and the fourth annual Target 90 Church Growth Seminar dur­
ing the National Convention in Phoenix, Arizona, sponsored by the Target 

90 Committee. 
We believe the net membership goal can be reached. We rejoice that we 

exceeded the goal of planting 100 new churches during the first three 
years of the campaign. Our goal for 1990 is to gain 15,000 new mem-

bers. Join us in this growth campaign. Together we can grow for God's glory. 

Melvin Worthington, Th.D. , CMP 
Chairman 
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BENEVOLENT FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

BENEVOLENT FUND OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

Assets 

Cash in bank 

Fund Balance 

Fund balance 

Commitments (note 2) 

Revenues - contributions 

Expenses: 

Claims paid 

Interest expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 

OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Balance Sheets 

December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

years ended December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenses 

Fund bnlnnce (deficit), beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

See accomp:mying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 378 
=~~ 974 

$ 378 
==~;, 

974 

$ 4,722 --...:.!..:..:=- 22,080 

5,3 I 8 10,737 

2,179 
14 

5,318 12.930 

(596) 9,150 

974 (8, I 76) 

s 378 974 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Operlting ciSh flows: 
CISh received from contributions 

s 4,722 22,080 

Cash paid for: (5,318) (10,737) 

(2,179) 
(14) 

Claims 
Interest 

Other 
9,150 

Net operating cash flows 

Financing cash flows: 

(596) 

(8,530) 
Repayment of debt 

(596) 620 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

CISh and cash equivalents: 974 )54 
Beganning of year 

s 378 974 
End of year ==== 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1989 and 1988 

The Benevolent Fund is operated under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. The p1n pose 

of the Fund is to pay medical claims which were defaulted on by nn insurance compnny which had contracted to 

provide coverage to participants under the Free Will Baptist Hospilllliz.ation Plan in prior periods. Claims paid are 

funded by voluntary contributions. 

(I) Summary of Signjficant Accounting Policies 

The mnjor accounting principles and practices followed by the Benevolent Fund are presented below to assist 

the render in evaluating the financial statements. The linnncial statements are presented in accordance with 

standards recommended in • Audits of Certain Nonprofit Organizations, • an Audit and Accounting G111de 

(American Institute of Certified Public Accountants). 

Fund Accounting 
In order to ensure observance of limitations nnd restrictions plnced on the use of resources available to the 
Fund, the accounts are maintained 111 accordance w1th the principles of "fund :~ccounling". This is the 

procedure by which resources for various purposes :~re class1fied for :~ccounting and reporting purposes into 

funds that are in accordance with acllv111es or objectives spec1fied. 

Income Taxes 
The Fund is exempt from income taxes; accordingly no provis1on for income t:~xes has been made in the 

:~ccompanymg financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of c:~sh nows, the Fund considers all cash on hand and deposits in financial 

institutions to be cnsh and cash equivalents. 

(2) Claims Unpaid 
The Benevolent Fund, since its inception, has paid medical claims amounting to $46,025. Such claims had 
been defaulted on by an insurance company wluch hnd contrncted to provide coverage to participants under 

the Free Will Baptist Hospitnlizntion Plan in prior periods. Claims are funded by voluntary contributions. 

As of December 31, 1989 and 1988, respectively, $25,979 nnd $32,476 remains unpaid on these medical 

claims. The following sumn1arizes the activity: 
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Clnims pnid by llenevolent Fund 

Clauus withdrawn by cl:urnnnt 

Claims unpaid as o f December 31 , 1989 

Amount o f original cl:~ims mode 

s 

$ 

Clujms 

Settled 
1989 

5,31 8 
1,180 

6 ,498 

Claims 
Settled 

Cumulative 

46,025 

1,180 

47,205 

25,979 

$ 73,184 

(3) Related Party Transactions 

The Board of Retirement and Insurance of the Nallonnl A . . . . . 
space and all administrative services to th F d SSOCIRIIOn or Free Will Bnpllsls provides ofll~:e 

Terry A Hill 
Russell E. Ne:al 
NanC) S Allen 

HiD, Neal & AIL~n, P.C. 
Certified Public Accoumants 

Commiuee of Trust 

e un at no cost. 

Independent Auditors • Reoort 

Benevolent Fund or the National 
Association or Pree Will Oaplists: 

Brentwood Executive Cenltr 
761 Old Hlckury Boulc,·:ud 
Sunr 103 
Bremwood, TN 37027 
TEL 615/377-3'1115 
FAX 6151377-HSS 

We have audited the balance sheets of the Ben v I 
Baptists ns o f December 31 1989 a d 1988 ed~:nt Fund of the National Association of Free Will 

h 
. ' n • an uoe related stateme ts f 

e anges 111 fund balance and cash now fi th n o revenue, expenses and 
responsibility o f the Fund' s mnnngeme:t or Ou~ ~ears th~~ ~nd~d. These fUUUieial statements ore Jhe 
financial statements bnsed on o'.lr audit. . esponslblhly as to express aD opinion on these 

We eonducled our audit in ncc:ordnnce wiiJ• ene.rall a .. 
require U!at we plan and perform tl• d' t g b . y ecepled nudlllng standards. Those standards 

e au I to o tam reason1ble bo 
statements are free of material 

01
•
1
ss•·te L An . • u surlnce I ut wheiJ1er the fin1nc inl 

"' men 1udatancludes · · 
s upporting the amounts and disclosur . th fi . eXImanang, on I lest basis, evidence 

es an e aoancaal statements A di 1 · 
the 1ccounting principles used ond . . r. • • n IU t a so aocludes assessing 

SlgDIIICSOt eslU111les rolde b 
the over1ll financial statement presentar W be . Y management, IS well as evaluating 
our opinion. aon. e Lteve thlt our audit providea I reasonable basis for 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to lbov . . 
financial position of tl•e Benevolent F d r U N . e present fatrly, an •II material respects, the 

un o 1e atlonal Assoc · ti r p · . 
December 31 1989 and 1988 d tJ 

18 
on o ree Will Baptists as of 

' • an 1e revenue expenses 1 d ha · ~ 
for the yenrs then ended in eon~ .t 'th ' n e nges 

10 
.und bal1nce and cash nows 

ormt y WI gener• lly accepted accounting principles. 

February 13, 1990 
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BUDGET COMMITTEE REPORT 

The National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. has approved in this con­
vention the following budget for 1991: 

Executive Office ......... ... .... .......... .. ..... .. ... ..... . 
Executive Church Bonds ... ............................. . 
Free Will Baptist Bible College ........ ........... ..... . 
Foreign Missions ... ............ .......... ... ....... ....... . 
(Includes $150,000.00 Advance Budget) 
Home Missions and Church Extension ........ ... . 
Master's Men ............................. .... ....... ....... . . 
Retirement and Insurance .............................. . 
Free Will Baptist Foundation ........ ... ...... ....... . . 
Sunday School and Church Training .............. . 
Commission for Theological Integrity ..... ........ . 
Historical Commission ..... .... ........ ... ............... . 
Music Commission ........... ............................ . 
Radio and Television Commission .. ......... .... .... . 

$ 404,535.80 
.00 

1,981 ,000.00 
4 ,129,859.00 

2,100,000.00 
111,625.00 
298,745.00 

32,700.00 
2,625,270.00 

2,700.00 
2,300.00 
1,500.00 

15,100.00 

$11 ,705,334.80 
TOTAL 

All these ministries receive funds through the Cooperative Plan except for Exec­
utive Church Bonds, and the Sunday School and Church Training Department 

which are self-sustaining. 
The Budget Committee recommends that gifts received through the Coopera-

tive Plan be allocated to the national ministries on the following basis: 

1. Underwrite the Executive Office Administrative Budget above those gifts re­

ceived directly. 
2. Disburse the balance of undesignated funds to the following national ministries 

according to these percentages: 
Free Will Baptist Bible College ............... ........ ..................... ................... 23 % 
Foreign Missions ....... ..... ....................................... .... ....... .... ........ ........ 23 o/o 
Home Missions .................................. ............................... ................... 18 °/o 
Board of Retirement and Insurance ............ .... ... .... , ... ........................ ..... 14 % 
Master's Men ........... ...... ........... .......... ............ ...... ....... .... .................... 14 % 
Free Will Baptist Foundation ................................................................... 6 % 
Commission for Theologi~l lnte~ty .. ............ ...... ........... ..................... 0.5 % 
Histori~l Commission ............... .......................................................... 0. 5 % 
Music Commission ........... : ............. ........... ............................ .......... 0. 5 % 
Radio and Television Commission ......................................................... 0.5 % 
TOTAL 100 % 

Respectfully Submitted, Your Servants, 

Melvin Worthington, Executive Secretary 
Charles Thigpen, President of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
R. Eugene Waddell, General Director of Foreign Missions Department 
Roy Thomas, General Director of Home Missions Department 
Herman Hersey, General Director of Retirement and Insurance Department 
James Vallance, General Director of Master's Men Department 
Roger Reeds, General Director of Sunday School and Church Training 

Department 
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GENERAL BOARD REPORT 

The General Board met Monday, July 16, 1990, in the Hyatt Regency 
Hotel, Phoenix, Arizona. As a result of that meeting we offer the following 
report and recommendations. 

1. We have heard the reports of the Executive Office, Home Missions 
Department, Master's Men Department, Retirement Department, Sun­
day School and Church Training Department, Foreign Missions Depart· 
ment, Free Will Baptist Foundation, Free Will Baptist Bible College, the 
Commission for Theological Integrity, Music Commission, Historical 
Commission, Budget Committee, Benevolence Committee, Target 90 
Committee, Management Committee and the Radio-TV Commission. 
We recommend that these reports be received and their budgets 
adopted as each is presented. 

2. We recommend that the First Louisiana District Association, an associ­
ation organized June 9, 1990, be accepted into the National Association 
of Free Will Baptists. 

3. We recommend that the operation of the Executive Church Bonds, 
Inc., be concluded. We further recommend that the remaining funds be 
released to the Executive Office with the stipulation that these funds be 
held for two years in the event a need arises. 

4. We recommend that Anaheim, California, be the site of the National 
Association as it convenes July 16-20 in the year 2000. 

5. We recommend that the Benevolence Committee be dissolved and that 
all funds be transferred to the Free Will Baptist Foundation which will 
continue the work and reports of the activities in the future. 

6. The following recommendation comes from the Management Commit­
tee of the National Offices Building. The General Board recommends 
that it be adopted. 

1. The growth of national agencies requires immediate attention to 
relocating or renovating existing facilities. 

2. The managers estimate the cost of renovating existing facilities at 
$300,000, and we would still have old buildings. 

3. The Management Committee believes it would be better stewardship 
to put the money into new facilities instead of into existing property. 
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·tt e believes that long-term indebtedness 
4. The Ma~~~ft~:n~h~~~~~ti~g property is sold would not exceed the 

on new . . f .
1 
.. 

cost of renovating exlsbng acl ttles. 

. serious consideration to offers to purchase or sell 
In order to glVe C .tt e needs more flexibility. Therefore, ro erty, the Management ommt e . . 

fhe ~ommittee suggests the following gmdeltnes. 

f ·1·t· h ld not be contingent on 1. The possibility of pur~~~sing new act 1 tes s ou 
the sale of existing facthbes. 

2. A temporary lease should be a possibility. 

3. Long-term indebetedness is not to. ~xceed $400,000, and short-term 
indebtedness is not to exceed $1.4 milhon. 

. d t pedite the matter, that the 
The managers. recommend, t~ or er a o ~~ve the recommendations of 

Executive Commtttee b~ authonz~ t~h:~elocation of the national offices 
the Management Commttte~ .r~gar ng 
or renovation of existing faciltties. 
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REGISTRATION COMMII"I'EE REPORT 

National Convention 
State Delegates 
Local Church D~i~g~t~~ ........ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 84 
Lay Board Members · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 94 
Home Missionaries · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 16 
Foreign Missionarie~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 69 
D . . . . . . . . . . 27 

eacons · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Ministers · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . 103 
Non-Deleg~t~~ · : : : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · t>24 
District Delegates . : : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1,657 
National Officers · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 6 . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total . .. .......... . .. . .. .. . . . 2 582 
Wo~an's National Auxiliary Convention ' 
National Youth Conference · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . 786 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 004 

Grand Total .. ~ ~ ~ .· ~ .· .· ~ ~ .· ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ .· 4:372 
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CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT 

We, the Credentials Com~ittee, have examined the letters and find 
them in order as stated below. 

1. From the following associations with the right to five delegates each: 
Arizona, Alabama, Arkansas, California, Florida, Georgia, Idaho, Illinois, 
Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, 
New Mexico, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Ten­
nessee, Texas, Virginia, West Virginia. 

2. From the following district associations with the right to three delegates 
each: Atlantic Canada Association, First Colorado !Jistrict, Northeast 
Association, Northwest Association, Mexico Association, First Louisi­
ana District Association. 

3. From the following local churches reporting directly to this body with 
the right to one delegate each: Waipahu FWB Church, Waipahu, 
Hawaii; First FWB Church, Billings, Montana; Maranatha FWB Church, 
Omaha, Nebraska; Virgin Islands FWB Church, St. Croix, Virgin 
Islands. 

4. We recommend that the delegates from the three above mentioned 
categories be seated. We further recommend that all other delegates 
properly registered from local churches comprising the association be 
seated. 

5. We recommend that all legally appointed lay delegates of standing 
boards be seated, if properly registered. 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT 

Nominees to General Board 

Terms to expire in 1991 
Kansas: replacing Warner Collier, Steve Hendrix 
First Louisiana: Steve Trail 

Terms to expire in 1992 
New Mexico: replacing Earl Jenkins, Earl Jenkins 
North Carolina: replacing Tom Lilly, Tom Lilly 
Northeast Association: replacing Jim Nason, Jim Nason 
Northwest Association: replacing Mike Criswell, Mike Criswell 
Ohio: replacing Delmar Sparks, Delmar Sparks 
Oklahoma: replacing Jack Richey, Jack Richey 
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South Carolina: replacing Joe Cagle, Joe Cagle 
Tennessee: r~placing Raymond Riggs, Raymond Riggs 
T~x?s.: replact~g Thurmon Murphy, Thurmon Murphy 
Vtrgmta: replacmg Jeff Crabtree Jeff Crabtree 
West Virginia: replacing Carl Vallance, Carl Vallance 

Nominees to Executive Committee 

Terms to expire in 1992 
Replac~ng Raymo.nd Riggs (Tenn.), Tom Lilly (N.C.) 
Replacmg Jack Richey (Okla.), J ack Richey 
Replacing Carl Vallance (W.Va.), Carl Vallance 

Nominees to Bible College Trustees 

Terms to expire in 1996 
Replacing Sam Truett (N.C .), Sam Truett 
Replac~g James Earl Raper (S.C.), Larry Montgomery (Fla.) 
Replacmg J. M. Creech (Miss.), J. M. Creech 

Nominees to Foreign Missions Board 

Terms to expire in 1996 
Replac~ng Dan ~ronk (Tenn.), Alton Loveless (Ohio) 
Replac~ng Archie Mayhew (Calif.), Archie Mayhew 
Replacmg Galen Dunbar (Ga.), Galen Dunbar 

Nominees to Sunday School and Church Training Board 

Terms to expire in 1996 
Replac~ng David Sutton (Texas), David Sutton 
Replac~ng James McAllister (Calif.), James McAllister 
Replacmg Larry Hughes (Ark.), Larry Hughes 

Nominee to Home Missions Board 

Term to expire in 1993 
Replacing Richard Adams (Tenn.), Lynn Wood (Okla.) 
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Nominee to Board of Retirement 

Term to expire in 1993 
Replacing Billy Samms (W.Va.), Bobby Floars (N.C.) 

Nominee to Commission for Theological Integrity 

Term to expire in 1995 . 
Replacing Edwin Wade (Okla.), Daryl Elhs (Ill.) 

Nominee to Historical Commission 

Term to expire in 1995 
Replacing Steve Hasty (Ala.), Steve Hasty 

Nominee to Music Commission 

Term to expire in 1995 
Replacing Vernon Whaley (Okla.), Vernon Whaley 

Nominee to Radio-Television Commission 

Term to expire in 1995 
Replacing Larry Hampton (Tenn.), Bob Shockey (Tenn.) 

Nominees for General Officers 

Terms to expire in 1991 
Replacing moderator Ralph Hampton (Tenn.), Ralph Hampton . 
Replacing assistant moderator Carl Cheshier (Ark.), Carl Cheshier 
Replacing clerk Waldo Young (Okla.), Waldo You~g 
Replacing assistant clerk Keith Burden (Okla.), Ketth Burden 
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Resolutions Committee Report 

Res olution #1 Appreciation 

Whereas, the Arizona State As . . . 
graciously hosted our 54th annual soctatlt<:>n ofhF ree Wtll Baptists has so 

B .t 1 d conven ton t erefore 
e t reso ve that we express .' . , 

vote of thanks. (Adopted) our apprectatlon to them with a standing 

Resolution #2 Flag Burning 

Whereas, the American flag h fr . . . 
freedom for this Republic and as om tts mceptton been the symbol of 

Whereas, men have fo,ught 'a d d" d d . the world, and, n te un er thts banner in many parts of 

Whereas, we believe it to be a s b 1 h . American, and, ym 0 t at should mvoke pride in every 

Whereas, we oppose the decision of the U S S 
do not believe that their decisio b d · · UJ?reme Court in that we 
correct and n ase on the Ftrst Amendment to be 

, , 
Whereas, we believe a person sh ld h 

themselves by burning the American fl~~ not ave the right to express 

Therefore, be it resolved that 1 , 
National Association to Presid t ~ etter be se!lt by the clerk of this 
stand on this issue and that en_ ~sh expressmg our approval of his 
Speaker of the House and the c~~:-~ ~ sefntht toS the Supreme Court, the 

' 1 en o e enate. (Adopted) 

Resolution #3 M. · tss tonary Endo rseme nt 

. W_hereas the National Association f F Wil . 
bon ~n 1935 established the Board o? F re_e I_ B~pbsts upon organiza-
sendmg missionaries to win souls t Ch .o~etgnd Mtsst~ns as tts agency for 
countries of the world and 0 ns an establish churches in other 

Whereas our missionaries hav t br h . nine countries and e es a ts ed growmg national churches in , 
Whereas the Scriptures e alt th . f of Christ and, x e umty 0 the body under the Headship 

Whereas we value greatly th "t f b li Baptists in particular and e um Y 0 e evers in general and Free Will 

Whereas we want to 'd t . 
Free Will Baptist churches ~~;~:::te ~he umty of the Body of Christ in 

Whereas Free Will Baptists h an., 
impact of personnel who witho tve d wttnessed the disruptive and divisive 

u en orsement from the National Associa· 
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tion of Free Will Baptists go to countries where our rrusstonaries are 
ministering, and present themselves as representatives of the national body 
but are not accountable to the National Association, 

Therefore, be it resolved that this convention go on record encouraging 
churches, groups or individuals from within this National Association not 
to send personnel without endorsement from our Foreign Missions Depart­
ment into countries where our National Association missionaries are 

already working. (Adopted) 

Resolution #4 Institute for Creation Research 

Whereas, in the light of the present secular humanist efforts to teach 
evolution as fact in all levels of public education, and in light of their 
successful efforts to prohibit the teaching of creationism in the educational 
system, going so far as to revoke the graduate school certification of the 
Institute for Creation Research in the state of California, 

Therefore, be it resolved that the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists take a public stand in support of, ICR, its founder Dr. Henry 
Morris and the graduate school staff in their legal fight to regain state 
certification as a graduate school, and to commend them for their efforts 
on behalf of all of us to promote creationism as the origin of the universe 

and human life. 
We further request that a copy of this resolution be sent to Dr. Henry 

Morris of the Institute for Creation Research, and to the California State 
Department of Education. (Adopted) 
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STATISTICAL REPORT 
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560 II 8 6 I 1 

276 30 
3.042 834 186 I 

A]abama 25 13 2 6 I 
700.000 

201 53 2 
616 4 4 

Anzoo.l 1,390 295 335 33 700,000 
3.486 4 6 1 

Arl<ans.>S 125 19 156 4 

444 537 32 
~fl\111 5 4 

Canada ll 1 I 
53 5 

Colorddo 2S 153 4 4 4 

426 100 105 750.000 

F1ondb 
1.004 13 408 2 2 2 

1,732 860 246 148 3,000.000 

Georgia 8 2 2 3 
29 ll 

H<~wau 6 6 500.000 

Idaho 13 110 I I 2 

349 92 78 
864 2 2 

llh001l 49 8 46 I 
101 127 57 

Indiana 10 5 I 

Iowa 10 3 5 
61 I 1 

Kansas 28 34S 29 219 
424 266 

Kentucky 
1 I 

12 8 4 

Lo<nsoana 6 43 I I 

59 171 43 43 

Maryland 

Mexoco 98 72 22 87 I 
199 311 I 

Moe hogan 343 142 60 12 163 405.095 - _ 1.282 2 3 4 
M1561SSIPP' 294 41 384 

1.532 992 98 
M•50Un I 

I 

Montana 5 I 

Nebt<~sl<a I 

New Jersey 7 2 s 
22 4 13 I 254,819 

New Mex1co 82 487 15 12 

1.669 1.291 1.269 230 
Nonh Carolina IS IS 2 I 6 

Northea51 Assoc 50 10 10 3 1292 29 

Northwest Assoc 23 255 I 2 

856 170 362 2.583.2 29 

Ohto 
466 649 9 5 5 I 

1,468 239 414 81 
2,904 

Oklahoma I 

Puerto Roco 77 3 I 4 2 
180 144 12 

1.001 669 
South Canlilna I 

South Dakota SIS 2 2 4 I 

2,563 1,446 327 323 90 

Tennessee 325 56 59 9 107 
525 2 4 

Texa5 72 206 10 299 4 
762 437 I 

V~rg'rua 
I I 

14 1 2 2 

V~tgJn Islands II 446 I 2 

725 755 213 452 

West V~t!JI">a 2 9,622 ,372 
69 55 66 1 

Wyom1ng 030 4,1 98 586 5,814 
25,014 14.1 65 4, 

TOTALS 
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"'" 1- z 0. :>0.. Ill 

Alabama 14 14 177 173 55 92 78 71 441 90S 604 19,458 7 54 13,909,820 --10,4Q.!. 

Anzona 2 2 10 9 10 6 2 33 67 18 313 189,476 1 3 2,815,000 ~ 

15 IS 221 215 91 130 79 142 726 780 -
Arkansas 1.160 19,576 4,283,525 33 70 25,715,350 13,00 

Calilornra 7 7 73 73 64 9 53 14 545 701 352 4,385 3,423,768 25 31 27,133,040 5.044 

Canada I I 17 12 12 5 3 13 13 3 400 3 

Colorado 1 I 7 6 7 2 5 24 24 18 201 105,536 3 1,010,000 294 

Florida 9 9 71 70 44 33 55 17 214 415 218 5,273 1,838,150 25 40 10,397,036 3,642 

Georglll 10 10 120 116 39 77 97 20 255 465 246 9,724 2,798.505 36 61 18262.500 5,294 

Haw.. II I 1 I I 6 16 2 47 40,847 I 3,000,000 50 

Idaho I I 4 4 I 3 4 4 

llhno~ 6 6 43 43 25 18 24 19 I"'' 224 79 4,120 1.363.000 16 17 9,01>1.000 2.898 

lndrana 3 3 25 ~ 18 7 10 IS 59 74 73 2,004 57,156,119 7 5 2,015.000 l.ll56 

IOWil I I I I 9 10 2 68 41,001 I I 2()(),000 ~6 

Kansa• 2 2 9 9 9 7 2 21 38 26 328 192.570 3 .2- -· 1,245,000 469 

Kentucky 10 8 122 120 22 63 14 71 401 518 336 9,030 493,281 .~ _!_ - 10,871,000 ~6E_ 
2 2 2 2 1 28 24 

~owsrana 
4 101.500 2 550,000 91 

Mary"'nd 3 3 26 26 9 17 16 10 64 106 51 1,735 637,287 II 9 5.167,900 I ~21 

Me lOCO I I 21 21 13 8 2,052 

Mtdugan 5 5 44 43 40 4 28 16 234 308 159 3.850 1.670,304 7 17 11,793,000 3.506 

MISSISSIPPI 4 4 60 43 18 42 45 9 140 317 203 3,963 24 5.000.000 2.'~30 

M1ssoun 16 16 177 171 84 87 109 58 487 750 383 15,405 4,505,411 43 45 21,882,110 11,015 

Montana I I I I 3 7 150.000 .2. 
Nebraska I I I I 26 31.766 I 270,000 23 

New JerseY I I I I I 530,000 40 

New MeJOcO 2 2 6 6 6 2 4 2 IS 9 152 26,832 6 2 786,000 107 

Nor1 h C.uohna 8 7 180 130 69 65 100 32 597 1,114 527 15,057 3.339,102 68 59 15,739,704 13.090 

Northeast Assoc . I I 3 3 I 2 2 I 20 28 225 I ISO 

Northwest Assoc I I 10 9 8 I 3 6 32 46 19 277 109.000 5 3 575,000 425 

Ohro 18 18 145 145 71 74 48 103 568 737 333 10,423 2,134,410 20 22 22.806,374 11.716 

Oklahoma 24 24 261 245 lSI 106 152 71 808 1.584 788 23,501 7,243,999 64 82 44.512,126 18.930 

Puerto Roco I I I I 5,518 46 

South Carol1na 5 5 114 40 27 57 61 23 149 385 210 4,670 1,435,278 28 27 8,664,900 4,352 

South Dakota I I I I 15.593 24 

Tennessee 7 7 204 160 67 128 129 70 799 1,087 389 20.008 4,012.679 43 59 23,557,888 11.824 

Texas 8 8 58 58 42 16 27 22 ItO 236 77 2,941 670,200 12 13 6.122.224 2,172 

V~tSJn>a 5 5 95 90 47 48 20 53 353 398 12'J 6,195 1.515,913 20 4 8,966,466 4,817 

V1tg1n Islands I I I I 2 2 46,627 I I 2.000,000 41 

West V1rginia 21 21 187 187 23 164 85 102 679 763 545 11,768 989,492 4 18 11,823,275 10,809 
REPORTING PERIOD 1989-90 

Wyommg 

TOTALS 210 207 2.506 2,262 1,057 ,256 1280 973 7,946 12,537 6,583 197,.206 100,416,689 504 680 316.531.713 145,704 
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